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The City and the MSA continue to demonstrate the 
benefits of being one of the identified growth centers 
for both the Sunbelt and the nation. Orlando is 
expected to remain on most of the national lists of 
growth centers over the next 10 years and beyond. 

 

LIMITATIONS ON FLEXIBILITY - 
STATE VIEW 
 

The State of Florida is the fourth largest state with 
over 17.0 million residents and is one of the fastest 
growing, yet least taxed major state in the country. 
Local government revenue sources are restricted to 
property taxes and a limited array of permissive 
additional revenue opportunities. Because a personal 
income tax is constitutionally prohibited in Florida, 
state and local governments are continually seeking 
new and broader revenue opportunities to meet the 
service delivery and infrastructure requirements of 
our current and future population. 

 

In 1985, the State Legislature passed significant 
growth management legislation, which requires state 
and local governments to develop five-year 
financeable capital infrastructure and minimum 
standard service level programs. The State, in an 
attempt to enhance the planning for the future, which 
is projecting Florida to continue its recent growth 
patterns through the year 2005 and beyond, was 
attempting through 1985 legislation to ensure that the 
quality of life is maintained and that infrastructure 
and service delivery issues are reasonably addressed. 
The 1985 Legislature knowingly failed to address 
new revenue flexibility that would have allowed the 
State and local governments to develop financing for 
these five-year planning programs. Subsequently, the 
State legislature has been preoccupied with other 
issues, principally the need for state involvement and 
help to improve the quality of education in Florida. 
Currently declining state revenue forecasts, state 
budget balancing issues and citizen-initiated 
referendum (e.g., Court System Funding, K-12 class 
size reduction, etc.) are obviously requiring 
legislative primary attention and focus. As a result, 
other local governments' (City and County) enhanced 
revenue flexibility has not been adequately  
addressed.  

 

Local government's need for transportation, green 
space, recreation and other infrastructure 
improvements normally not associated with a paid-
for-services fee, continues to place ever tightening 
constraints on its ability to effectively plan for 
growth. Considerable attention needs to be placed on 
the broadening of the Home Rule Powers Act, in 
connection with the broadening of local government 
revenue flexibility, which would enable both 
individual City initiatives and, where appropriate, 
collective efforts on the part of the local governments 
to address major regional infrastructure programs. 

 

OUTLOOK FOR FINANCIAL FLEXIBILITY - 
CITY VIEW  

 

Facing the needs of a rapidly growing metropolitan 
community typically places a burden on the financial 
flexibility of any governmental unit. The City has 
recognized that it alone is incapable of solving all of 
the issues facing the metropolitan community. So 
instead, the City is striving to address growth 
demands on the community both by individual 
initiative and by actively participating with other 
local governments in seeking solutions to regional 
issues. 

 

Broader revenue flexibility will be essential to 
maintain Orlando's traditionally strong financial 
condition and to address the challenges of growth. 
The City, the Florida League of Cities and the 
Florida Association of Counties are seeking new 
optional local flexibility in an effort to match new 
revenues with capital objectives. The principal 
alternative (currently within reach) is additional 
property taxes; however, due to the City's urban core 
and tourism orientation, this option is not considered 
the most equitable method of addressing expanding 
capital needs. 

 

Given the diversity of size and local government 
agendas, Cities and Counties, if granted the latitude, 
might elect to reduce or eliminate property taxes in 
favor of sales or other optional choices and/or  
revamp or revisit various revenue/expenditure 
relationships to more equitably balance benefits and 
recipients. 
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State and Federal Imposed Mandates 

During the 1980’s, the State, like the Federal 
government, elected to solve problems by imposing 
mandates on local government. The use of mandates 
effectively allows legislators to report that they have 
addressed and solved an issue but relieves them of 
the often-unpopular obligation to finance or provide 
new revenue sources for the mandate. Local 
governments, who often support the resolution of the 
problem, found it increasingly difficult to implement 
mandates without broadened revenue flexibility or 
without negatively affecting the already existing 
operating and capital agendas. 

 

On November 6, 1990, the voters of Florida passed 
an amendment to the Constitution to limit the state 
legislature's ability to pass unfunded mandates 
imposing burdens upon local governments. An 
extraordinary 2/3 majority of both chambers is 
necessary to approve an unfunded mandate. Since the 
amendment, and at least partially as a result of these 
initiatives, there have been no clearly identifiable 
new mandates placed directly on local government. 
Continued concern exists regarding unfunded 
mandates (both state and federal), which come in 
various forms and their financial implications. 

 

During the 1999 legislative session, in response to 
the efforts of statewide Police and Firefighters unions 
the State, by an overwhelming vote, imposed 
significant changes/enhancements to the State 
identified “minimum” for local Police and 
Firefighters Pension benefits. The State collects 
insurance premiums to partially fund Police and 
Firefighter benefits and has determined that these 
new enhancements are only required to be 
implemented as incremental premium dollars become 
available. Local governments have continually 
argued that since pension benefits are, by statute, a 
subject of negotiations with the bargaining unit, it is 
inappropriate for the State as a third party to enhance 
pension benefits. While the City’s benefits, in 
aggregate, are substantially better than the State 
identified minimums, this form of indirect mandate 
and State bureaucratic interpretation continues to be 
troubling. 

 

Growth Management 

As previously discussed, the State has adopted the 
Growth Management Planning Act which requires 
local governments to develop a five-year plan, to 

install infrastructure support systems needed for 
growth and to maintain the types and quality of 
services presently being provided. The alternatives 
are to (a) adjust the service delivery standard or (b) 
implement a mandatory moratorium on the issuance 
of new building permits. Each community is allowed 
to establish and periodically revisit its infrastructure 
and service delivery standards and Orlando is 
considered to be in a comparably attractive economic 
position to address this demand. However, the 
concept of a financeable five-year plan for both 
capital and service delivery projections, which will 
not involve periodically diminished standards, 
requires additional (statutorily authorized) flexibility 
in local revenue options and a constructive 
atmosphere of local government cooperation/ 
collective effort. 

 

New flexible revenue options will be essential in 
meeting the service and service delivery support 
systems needs of state and local government. Delays 
in providing for new revenue flexibility, in light of 
the strictly defined Growth Management Planning 
Act, could become a major inhibitor to growth 
projected for the State, MSA and City. More 
importantly, our ability to maintain the quality of life 
that we have traditionally enjoyed may be critically 
impaired. While cities and counties require the tools 
necessary to plan for and meet the challenges of 
growth, local officials are not asking the State to 
impose a new tax. Rather, they are asking State 
legislators simply to broaden local governments’ 
horizon by authorizing new permissive revenue 
options for discretionary use. 

 

MAJOR INITIATIVES/PROGRAMS 

During each fiscal year, the City introduces or 
continues various initiatives/capital programs, each 
of which integrates the current activity of the City 
into a 5 to 15-year view of the City's future. 

 

DEVELOPMENT/CAPITAL INITIATIVES 

 

The following initiatives, some new and some on-
going, are briefly outlined to indicate the challenges 
and the opportunities related to development 
currently facing the City. 
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Parks / Open Space Initiative 

Given a concern for the adequacy of the growing 
City’s availability of open space and access to active 
recreation facilities (youth baseball, softball and 
soccer facilities, etc.), on June 30, 1999, the Mayor 
initiated and the City Council unanimously approved 
a $30,000,000 open space/active recreation initiative.  

 

This initiative will invest a revised $35,500,000 and 
is designed to meet the City’s needs through the year 
2015. The following table indicates the perceived 
deficiencies in recreation facilities and how this 
initiative will address the issue: 

 
Analysis of Active Recreation Facilities 

 
Facility 

Type

1999 
Existing 
Facilities

1999 
Surplus 

or (Need)

 
Initiative 
Proposals

2015 
Surplus 

or (Need)
Baseball/ 
Softball 

 
42 

 
(12) 

 
17 

 
(9) 

Soccer/ 
Multi-
Purpose 

 
 

5 

 
 

(13) 

 
 

19 

 
 

2 
Swimming 
Pool 

 
11 

 
2 

 
- 

 
0 

Basketball/ 
Tennis 

 
87 

 
51 

 
- 

 
43 

 

The initiative  involved (a) development of four 
major cornerstone facilities strategically located in 
the four regions of the City, (b) enhancement of 
existing parks and, (c) the acquisition and 
development of new parks (pocket parks, passive and 
active facilities). The City hopes to leverage this 
initiative through cooperative efforts with other local 
governments and through pursuing various grant 
opportunities. 

 

To finance this initiative, the City approved a 
$5,000,000 equity contribution from the General 
Fund (during the 1998-1999 fiscal year) and on 
August 14, 2002 sold $33,690,000 in bonds (which 
also reimbursed $9,100,000 in interim internal 
banking fund loans) to be amortized on a level 
principal basis over a 15- year period. 

 

With the opening of the third cornerstone park (the 
Blue Jacket Park in the northeast) on December 13, 
2003 the initiative is approximately 85% complete. 
As of September 30, 2003, $29,110,000 has been 
expended, $6,233,000 is available and current 
forecasts have the remaining projects completed 
during 2003-2004. 

Downtown Development Initiatives 

On October 2, 2003, the City/CRA celebrated the 
opening of the Bank of America/Hughes mixed-use 
project, a first of its kind in the Parramore District of 
the Downtown CRA district (See Notes on Page 68). 

 

As of December 8, 2003, the City/CRA conceptually 
approved two major mixed use redevelopment efforts 
(the Plaza and 55 West) located at or near Orange 
Avenue and Church Street, the center of the City 
Downtown main business district, which could 
represent over $200 million in new development and 
separately represent a significant expansion of retail 
offering and a multiplex theatre. 

 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
(starting on page 1) summarizes the Statement of Net 
Assets and Statement of Activities and reviews the 
changes (from the beginning to the end of the period 
and current year to the prior year). The actual 
statements (in detail) are presented on pages 13 
through 15. These Government-wide statements are 
intended to present the City in a more corporate-style 
basis and provide a view of the big picture. 

 

Additionally, the Fund Financial Statements (starting 
on page 16) are designed to address the Major (or 
more significant) individual funds by category 
(governmental and proprietary), as well as the 
fiduciary funds (by category) and the component 
units. An explanation of these complementary 
presentations can be found in the MD&A (starting on 
page 2) and in the notes (See page 39). 

 

The following review of the types of commitments 
against unrestricted net assets for the governmental 
and business-type activities is designed to 
complement the otherwise available information. 

 

Commitments Against Unrestricted Net Assets 

The Unrestricted Net Asset balance is intended to be 
a corporate-styled measure of well being (or a bottom 
line) for the City and its related governmental and 
business-type activities. While the City Council and 
the administration (Mayor, the Cabinet, including the 
 Chief Financial Officer, and the Director of 
Management, Budget and Accounting, etc.) may 
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have made varying commitments against these 
balances, these choices are subject  (and within local 
discretion) to be revisited/changed by the City 
Council. 

 

The normal types of commitments are: 

Encumbrances – where a contract exists to 
purchase/ acquire some item or construct a capital 
project which will be acquired/constructed after the 
September 30, 2003 Statement date. These 
commitments are rarely revisited and may have 
consequential damages if changed. 

 

Project Commitment – where a tentative pre-
contract commitment has been made and a related 
projected budget established for a significant capital 
or maintenance effort (normally to be performed by a 
yet-to-be-hired, third-party contractor). 

 

Working Capital – is available monies set aside to 
insure the normal and ordinary conduct of business 
(the payment of bills and salaries) given certain 
cyclical flows of revenue. 

 

Other – other tentative commitments, which may be 
for future capital agendas, rainy day/emergency 
reserves, etc.  

 

It should also be understood that having reasonable 
levels of reserves is essential to the bond markets 
perceptions of local government strength and related 
ability to utilize private sector styled business 
practices, and provides for the availability to 
anticipate interest as a significant annual (recurring) 
revenue source.  

 

The City, since 1986, has operated an internal loan 
(banking) fund that uses short, medium and long-
term borrowing to finance a variety of projects. The 
internal (loan) process allows the City to (a) shorten 
the term of borrowing (5, 15 or 20 years vs. 25 or 30 
years) which significantly reduces the cost of 
borrowing, (b) accept revenue pledges which would 
not be acceptable in the normal, tax exempt 
marketplace, and (c) strategically restructure 
individual loans without third-party involvement or 
associated fees. The Orlando Internal Loan 
(Banking) structure is considered unique and would 

not be possible without the strength of the City’s 
financial position. 

Business-Type Activities 

The City’s Business-type Activities are summarized 
in the MD&A and the Government-wide financial 
statements as a consolidated single column. The 
Major individual funds are presented in the Fund 
Financial Statements (See pages 24 through 31). 

 

To complement the available presentation, the 
following schedule reflects, in summary form by 
fund, both the net income before and after 
depreciation and the debt service coverage presented 
on a bond covenant basis. The net income before and 
after depreciation demonstrates cash flow generated 
by each operation to cover all or a portion of the 
asset consumption (depreciation). The schedule also 
clearly demonstrates the General Fund subsidy 
provided to the Orlando Centroplex and the Civic 
Facilities Authority. 
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

The City does not have any outstanding property tax 
supported debt. Each of the proprietary debt issues 
are considered to be self-supporting, because the 

revenues derived from operations provide for the 
debt requirements on an annual basis. The Internal 
Loan Fund bonds and loans will be used to finance 
loans made to other funds, which may require 
subsidy. A summary of the City's total debt 
outstanding as of September 30, 2003 is reflected in 
schedule below: 

 
Bonds and Loans Outstanding & Debt Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Internal Estimated Final
Ratings Amount Loans Debt Service Internal Maturities

Moody's/S&P/Fitch(1) Outstanding MADS(2) Outstanding(3) Fixed Variable(4) Loans(4) Total Debt Loan
Primary Government:

Governmental:
 City Hall - -$                 -$            18,088$      -$              -$            2,371$       2,371$      - 2012

CRA - 22,490         2,790      25,612        2,790         -              1,647         4,437        2017 2021
I-4/Republic Dr./ - 44,840         3,335 3,335 - 3,335        2025
Conroy Rd./ - 29,210         2,842      -                  2,842         -              -                2,842        2026
Narcoossee Road - -                   -              16,291        -                -              1,487         1,487        - 2015
City Hall Garage - -                   -              7,494          -                -              769            769           - 2013
Parks Initiative - -                   -              30,500        -                -              1,938         1,938        - 2015
Lee Vista Project - -                   -              4,796          -                -              413            413           - 2015
Other - -                   -              12,098        -                -              1,411         1,411        - 2019

Proprietary:
Wastewater System Aa3/AA-/AA+ 146,865       (5) 15,798    (4) -                  13,760       1,384      -                15,144      2016 -
Parking System -/-/- 17,365         2,211      12,304        2,211         -              751            2,962        2013 2016
Arena - -                   -              9,478          -                -              1,611         1,611        - 2009

Internal Loan Fund: (139,270) -            
Fixed Rate Aa3/AA-/AA 67,950         (6) 7,415      -                  7,415         -              (7,415)       -            2022 -
Medium Term Note 33,690         (7) 4,603      -                  -                1,148      (1,148)       -            2032 -
Variable Rate VMIG1/A1+/F1+ 62,071         (8) -              -                  -                1,500      (1,500)       -            2024 -
Excess Internal Loan (9) - -                   -              -                  -                -              (2,036)       (2,036)       - -

Total Primary Government 424,481$     (2,609)$       32,353$     4,032$    299$          36,684$    

Component Unit:
Proprietary:

Civic Facilities Authority A1/A/- 2,210           528 2,609          528            -              299            827           2010 2015
Total Component Unit 2,210$         2,609$        528$          -0-$         299$          827$         

-$                
(1) All other issues are rated based on credit enhancements (bond insurance (5) Includes $37,800 of variable rate debt.

or letter of credit) and thus do not reflect the underlying City rating. (6) Capital Improvement Refunding Special Revenue Bonds 1998A&B.
(2) MADS = Maximum Annual Debt Service. (7) Capital Improvement Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2002
(3) Indicates loans made from the Internal Loan Fund. (8) Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission (SSGFC) Loan and Capital
(4) Calculates debt service using an established amortization schedule and interest Improvement Commercial Paper Notes, 1994 Series A. 

cost using an estimated interest fixed and variable rate - see Variable Rate (9) The internal loans amortize faster than the bond amortizations and, thereby, create
Program Chart. relendable proceeds.

Variable Rate Program (4) (10) Estimated at the 9/30/03 Fiscal Year-End Actual Rates of 2.42%, plus an 
Estimate assumed maximum spread of 117% to  125% 

Type Rate% (11) Estimated at the 9/30/03 Fiscal Year-End Actual Rates
Wastewater Not Required 3.59-3.67 (10)
SSGFC Line of Credit 0.95 (11)
C.P. Notes Line of Credit 1.01 (11)   

 
The Internal Loans Outstanding column reflects how 
the $139.3 million in loans have been disbursed to 
various operations. The Internal Loan’s debt service 
column adds to the activity specific debt service to 
reflect total projected debt service for the 2002/2003 
fiscal year. 

 

Careful attention is given to the pledges and 
covenants contained in the City's various bond 
ordinances.  
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The City's auditors, KPMG LLP, have prepared a 
bond and loan compliance report that is included on 
page xxv. 

 

PENSION PLANS 

 

The General Employees', Police, and Firefighter 
pension plans participate in a pooled defined benefit 
investment management program, which provides for 
a dollar equivalent participation of investment return 
and related expenses. 

 

As of October 1, 1998, the City introduced a new 
hybrid defined benefit (DB) / defined contribution 
(DC) program for the General Employees. Each 
employee had at least three years to make an elective 
choice (up to September 30, 2001) to stay in the DB 
or move to the DC. Employees with ten years of 
service (as of October 1, 1998) were given the rest of 
their career to choose. An independent consultant 
was hired to assist individuals in making this choice. 
Of the affected 1,143 employees (with less than ten 
years), 67% have elected to transfer. 

 

Pension plan activities for 2002-2003 are reflected in 
the following schedule: 

Pension Plan Activity 
(In Thousands) 

   
General Employees’ 

 
Police 

 
Firefighter 

 Defined 
Benefit

Defined 
Contributio

n

Defined 
Benefit

Defined 
Benefit

Contributions     
City $2,833 $5,004 $6,498 $2,542   
State - - 2,797 1,920 
Employee 1,275 1,729 2,324 1,809
Total $4,158 $6,733 $11,619 $6,271 
 
Net Investment 
   Income 

 
 

20,641 

 
 

10,659 

 
 

38,289 

 
 

26,982 
 
Benefits Paid 

 
7,475 

 
5,669 

 
11,234 

 
10,951 

 
Other Expenses  

 
220  

 
-600 

 
154 

 
175 

Transfers Between 
   Plans 

 
(3,662)) 

 
3,662 

 
- 

 
- 

. 

Given the events of September 11th and equity market 
difficulties, the September 30, 2003 fiscal year was a 
particularly difficult point in the market. Due to their 
diversification and under weighting in equities, the 
three defined benefit plans (General Employee, 
Firefighters, and Police), provided relatively 
favorable returns of 16.1%, 18.0%, and 18.2%, 

respectively (See pages 154, 155 and 156 for related 
investment performance).  

 

City management and the Pension Boards closely 
monitor the future costs of both benefit improvement 
and changes in retirement trends of employees. 
Recommendations of the actuaries are carefully 
considered and the City takes appropriate measures 
to ensure the actuarial soundness of the pension 
plans. City policy and State law require that the 
actuarially required contributions are made annually. 

 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

 

The City's Investment Management Program operates 
within established investment policies and focuses on 
diversity and provides for limits on instruments, 
institutions within instrument and authorized 
counterparties. The performance of a portfolio should 
be measured against comparable indices, which 
measure investment opportunity, liquidity or cash 
flow demands, and policy restrictions. 

 

Since liquidity demands will vary between 
governmental units, the following schedule reflects 
the City's portfolio performance against established 
indexes and direct U.S. Government Securities, 
which are indicative of the portfolio opportunity (one 
to five-year duration).  

 
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 

 
    55  YYeeaarr**  
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  22000033 22000022 22000011 22000000 11999999 AAnnnnuuaall
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11..9999  
22..4488  
33..7766  
66..6655  
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88..5533  

  
1100..3388  

  
1111..4411  

  
55..4444  
66..2255  
88..4444  

1100..1166  
1133..9911  

  
55..9955  

  
55..7799  

  
55..8899  

  
55..7788  
55..8899  
55..3333  
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55..7722  

  
33..0033  

  
33..2233  

  
22..2211  

  
44..7733  
44..5599  
44..2266  
11..9955  

((22..0099))  

  
55..6633  

  
55..5500  

  
55..8822  

  
33..8844  
44..1122  
44..7700  
55..3311  
66..2200  

**    AAnnnnuuaalliizzeedd  RReettuurrnn  
****IInnddiicceess  rreepprreesseenntt  mmaarrkkeett  rreettuurrnnss  ffoorr  ggeenneerriicc  sseeccuurriittiieess  mmaaiinnttaaiinneedd  bbyy  
MMeerrrriillll  LLyynncchh  oobbttaaiinneedd  ffrroomm  ““BBlloooommbbeerrgg””..  
  

 

The City operates under one of the broadest 
investment policy statements in the State. Flexibility 
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is necessary to maximize investment return within 
various markets and given various points in the 
market cycle. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The City's Risk Management Program provides for 
property, general, automobile and workers' 
compensation insurance. The following schedules 
indicate the types of reinsurance acquired, the 
deductible or retention level maintained by the 
program and, where appropriate, the limit of the 
reinsurance coverage acquired. 

 
Retention 

Level 
(Deductible) 

  
 

Coverage 

  
Limits of 
Coverage 

$350,000 
500,000 
500,000 

50,000 
50,000 

 
 

General & Automobile 
Property & Contents 

Workers’ Compensation 
Faithful Performance 

Fraud & Theft 

 $5,000,000 
200,000,000 

Unlimited 
(1) 
(2) 

 
(1)  $1,000,000 limit for public employee dishonesty coverage; 
         $5,000,000 for key employees. 
(2)  Forgery $500,000; theft and disappearance $5,000,000; 
         computer fraud $2,000,000. 
 
The City accounts for its Risk Management activities 
as an internal service fund and charges the operating 
funds annually for the anticipated actuarially 
projected ultimate incurred claims (See Notes, page 
69). As of September 30, 2003, the City has, through 
annual charges and interest earnings, provided for all 
actuarially projected losses and has accumulated an 
excess liquid reserve of $6,980,239. 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
ACCOUNTING & BUDGETING SYSTEMS 

 
In developing and evaluating the City's accounting 
system, consideration is given to the adequacy of 
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting 
controls are designed to provide reasonable but not 
absolute assurance regarding: (1) safeguarding of 
assets against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition and (2) reliability of financial records for 
preparing financial statements and maintaining 
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes: (1) the cost of control should 
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) 
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates 
and judgments by management.  

 

All internal control evaluations occur within the 
above framework. We believe that the City's internal 
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and 
provide reasonable assurance of the proper recording 
of financial transactions. Key controls are tested and 
evaluated periodically by the Management, Budget 
and Accounting Department. These efforts are 
complemented by periodic evaluations by the City's 
Office of Audit & Evaluation.  

 

Budgetary controls are maintained in the account 
group level within program or project appropriations. 
Budget to actual comparisons demonstrate how the 
actual expenses/expenditures compare to both the 
original and final revised budgets.  The following 
schedule identifies where these comparisons can be 
found: 
  

     Tab 
Starting 

Page 
Governmental Major Funds* Other RSI 96 
Governmental Non-Major Funds Combining 110 
Proprietary (Operating Funds) Supplemental 135 
 
*Including the General and Major Special Revenue Funds 
 

Each comparison also demonstrates, on the bottom of 
the schedule, the adjustment necessary to reconcile to 
GAAP. A discussion of the budget to actual 
presentation is available in the notes to the Required 
Supplemental Information (See page 95). 

 

REPORTING ENTITY 

 

The City is a Florida municipal corporation with a 
seven-member City Council comprised of the Mayor 
(elected at large) and six district Commissioners. In 
evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management 
has addressed all potential component units 
(traditionally separate reporting entities) for which 
the City may or may not be financially accountable 
and, as such, be includable within the City's basic 
financial statements. A description of the criteria for 
inclusion is described in the notes (See page 38). 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

The City of Orlando’s (the “City”) discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on 
significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, (c) identify changes in 
the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (d) identify any 
material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or 
concerns. 

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current years 
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Transmittal 
Letter (beginning on page v) and the City’s financial statements (beginning on page 13). 

 
HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Financial Highlights 

• The City’s net assets increased by $2.4 million (or .3%). The governmental net assets decreased by 
$0.2 million (or .04%) and the business-type net assets increased by $2.6 million (or .5%).  

• The governmental activities revenue increased $9.3 million (or 3.3%) and the net results from activities 
increased by $8.9 million (or 97.8%). In both years (2003 and 2002), the results of activities produced 
a decrease in net assets of $0.2 and $9.1 million, respectively.   

• The business-type activities revenue increased by $2.5 million (or 2.3%) and the net results from 
activities increased by $4.7 million (or 223.8%). In 2003, the results of activities produced an increase 
in net assets of $2.6 million and in 2002 the results of activities produced a decrease in net assets of 
$2.1 million.     

• The total cost of all City programs increased by $1.3 million (or .3%). 

• The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected on a current financial resource basis, reported 
an increase in fund balance of $3.2 million (or 5.7%), compared to a decrease of $11.8 million in the 
prior year.  

 

City Highlights 

 
• The City addressed a series of Budget Balancing initiatives (including mid-term election of a new 

Mayor, one-time non-recurring capital project deferrals, reorganization, and a Reduction in Force 
(RIF)) to reverse the 2001-2002 General Fund deficit, balance the 2002-2003 budget, and setting the 
stage for 2003-2004. For more information related thereto, please see the Transmittal Letter, page viii. 

 
• The City continued a  $35.5 million parks (open space/active recreation) initiative, which will create 

four cornerstone parks and significantly enhance existing parks/facilities (see Transmittal Letter and 
Notes, pages xi and 64, respectively). 

• The City/CRA realized the grand opening on October 2, 2003 of  the Parramore Area Housing/Office 
Complex which is designed to help enhance the CRA’s Parramore sub-district (see Notes, page 68). 

 

 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

In light of the fact that this is a very different presentation from the pre-GASB Statement #34 model, the 
following graphic is provided for your review. 
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          Government-wide                           Fund financial 

         financial statements          √             statements 
                   (new)                                         (refocused) 
          (pages 13 - 15 )                 (pages 16 - 33) 
 

Notes to the financial statements 
(expanded / restructured) 

(pages 37 - 93)

Management’s Discussion
and Analysis 

(required supplementary information) 
(new)

Required supplementary information
(other than MD&A) 

(expanded) 
(pages 95 - 102) 

M
D

&
A

 
B

as
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

O
th

er
 re

qu
ire

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The financial statement’s focus (implemented by the City in 1998/1999 and by most larger governments in 
2001/2002)) is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and on the major individual funds. Both 
perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a 
basis for comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the City’s accountability. 

 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all governmental and 
business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the Primary Government. 
The focus of the Statement of Net Assets (the “Unrestricted Net Assets”) is designed to be similar to 
bottom line results for the City and its governmental and business-type activities. This statement format 
(see page 13), for the first time, combines and consolidates governmental fund’s current financial resources 
(short-term spendable resources) with capital assets (including infrastructure) and long term obligations. 

Component Units, which are other governmental units over which the City (the City Council, acting as a 
group) can exercise influence and/or may be obligated to provide financial subsidy, are presented as a 
separate column in the government-wide statements and as individual activities in the Fund Financial 
Statement. The focus of the statements is clearly on the Primary Government and the presentation allows 
the user to address the relative relationship with the Component Units. 

The Statement of Activities (see pages 14 - 15) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various 
functions (including governmental, business-type and component unit) which are supported by the 
government’s general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s 
analysis of cost of various governmental services and/or subsidy to various business-type activities and/or 
component units. 
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The Governmental Activities reflects the City’s basic services, including police, fire, public works, and 
families, parks and recreation. Property, sales, utility services and gas taxes, along with the Orlando 
Utilities Commission contribution, finance the majority of these services. The Business-type Activities 
reflect private sector type operations (Wastewater, Centroplex, Parking, Stormwater and Solid Waste 
Management), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the cost of operation, including 
depreciation. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation 
more familiar. The focus is on Major Funds, rather than (the previous financial reporting model’s) fund 
types. 

The Governmental Major Fund presentation is presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources basis.  
This is the manner in which the financial plan (the budget) is typically developed. The flow and availability 
of liquid resources is a clear and appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are established 
for various purposes and the Fund Financial Statement allows the demonstration of sources and uses and/or 
budgeting compliance associated therewith (beginning on page 16). 

The Fund Financial Statements also allow the government to address its Fiduciary (or Trust) Funds (see 
pages 32 – 33) summarized by type (pension, investment and private purpose trusts). While these Funds 
represent trust responsibilities of the government, these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent 
discretionary assets of the government. Therefore, these assets are not presented as part of the Government-
Wide Financial Statements. 

While the Total column on the Business-type Fund Financial Statements (see pages 24 – 31) may be the 
same as the Business-type column at the Government-Wide Financial Statement, the Governmental Major 
Funds Total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement focus (current financial 
resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on the page following each statement (see 
pages 18 and 22). The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers 
as other financing sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. The 
reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital assets and long-term obligation 
(bonds and others) into the Governmental Activities column (in the Government-wide statements).  
Adjustment between the Business-type presentation (Government-Wide and Major Fund totals) will 
typically only occur if there is a need to redistribute excess income/loss for the Internal Service Funds to 
the customers (including Business-Type activities) and adjustments, if necessary, will be reflected on the 
bottom of the Fund Financial Statements.  

 
Infrastructure Assets 

Historically, a government’s largest group of assets (infrastructure – roads, bridges, traffic signals, 
underground pipes [unless associated with a utility], etc.) have not been reported nor depreciated in 
governmental financial statements. GASB Statement #34 requires that these assets be valued and reported 
within the Governmental column of the Government-wide Statements. Additionally, the government must 
elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset 
management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the government 
develops the asset management system (the alternative method), which periodically (at least every third 
year), by category, measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established condition levels, the 
government may record all expenditures incurred (except for additions and improvements which extend the 
asset life) in lieu of depreciation. While the City has acquired an asset management system which a) would 
allow the election to use the alternative methods, and b) will provide valuable management information, the 
City has elected to initially implement the depreciation method, and will monitor and consider, over time, a 
possible conversion to the alternative method.   
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT 
 
Summary of Net Assets 

The following table reflects a summary of Net Assets compared to prior year. 

                    as of September 30

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

Current and other assets 376.7$       378.2$       172.8$       198.7$       549.5$       576.9$       
Capital assets 485.8 473.5 524.9 513.6 1010.7 987.1
     Total assets 862.5 851.7 697.7 712.3 1,560.2      1,564.0      
Current and other liabilities 182.6 167.4 29.7 34.4 212.3 201.8
Long-term debt outstanding 233.3 237.5 183.2 195.7 416.5 433.2
     Total liabilities 415.9 404.9 212.9 230.1 628.8 635.0
Net assets:
     Invested in capital assets,
        net of related debt 387.4 381.3 361.3 338.4 748.7 719.7
    Restricted 26.7 30.0 35.3 65.7 62.0 95.7
    Unrestricted 32.5 35.5 88.2 78.1 120.7 113.6
     Total net assets 446.6$       446.8$      484.8$      482.2$      931.4$       929.0$      

Statement of Net Assets
Table 1

Primary Government
Total

Activities
Business-type

Activities
Governmental

(in millions)

 
For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Assets (page 13). 

 
Normal Impacts 

 

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Net Assets summary 
presentation. 

Net Results of Activities – which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net assets. 

Borrowing for Capital – which will increase current assets and long-term debt. 

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital – which will reduce current assets and increase capital 
assets. There is a second impact, an increase in invested in capital assets and an increase in related net debt 
which will not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt. 

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital – which will (a) reduce current assets and 
increase capital assets and (b) will reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net 
of debt. 

Principal Payment on Debt – which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) 
reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt. 

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation – which will reduce capital assets and invested in 
capital assets, net of debt. 

Current Year Impacts 

 
In the governmental activities columns, the Current and other assets and Current and other liabilities are 
equally affected by the amount of investment portfolio securities lending as of the end of each fiscal year. 
These equal and off-setting balances ($97.1 million and $79.8 million) for 2003 and 2002, respectively, 
result in a $17.3 million increase in total assets and total liabilities which does not affect the financial 
vitality of the City. This equal and off-setting asset and liability and related change therein is a result of an 
accounting treatment of securities lending as opposed to reflecting any changes in the City’s overall 
financial condition. 
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The second and third basic transactions will not directly or indirectly affect the unrestricted net asset 
balance.  

The remaining basic transactions directly/indirectly affect the unrestricted net assets as indicated in Table 2. 
The adjusted results of operations, current assets used for capital and bond principal payments clearly 
demonstrate the change in unrestricted net assets. 

 

(in millions)

Business
Governmental Type Primary

Activities Activities Government

Unrestricted Net Assets (9/30/02) 35.5$                  78.1$                  113.6$                

Results of Operations (0.1) 0.6 0.5
Internal Service Funds Income Allocation 0.0 2.0 2.0
Adjustments:
    Impact Fees(1) 3.3 26.8 30.1
   Renewal & Replacement(2) 0.0 3.6 3.6
   Depreciation(3) 30.3 28.1 58.4
   Amortization(3) 0.4 0.5 0.9
Adjusted Results of Operations 33.9 61.6 95.5

Capital Expenditures (48.5) (39.5) (88.0)
Loan Proceeds Spent on Non-Capital 
       Expenditures(4) (6.8) 0.0 (6.8)
Less:  New Borrowings(5) 7.8 0.0 7.8
Less:  Bond proceedsExpended(6) 17.3 0.0 17.3
   Current Assets used for Capital (30.2) (39.5) (69.7)

Retirements of Capital Assets 5.9 0.0 5.9
Net Proceeds from Refundings 0.0 (3.4) (3.4)
Principal Payments - All Debt (14.5) (9.6) (24.1)
Less: Principal Payments - Non Capital Debt(7) 2.1 0.0 2.1
Increase (Decrease) in Bond Reserves (0.2) 0.9 0.7
Other 0.0 0.1 0.1
Unrestricted Net Assets (9/30/03) 32.5$                  88.2$                  120.7$                

(1)Impact fees revenue and transfers out are reflected in the results of operations but does not have an
   impact on Unrestricted Net Assets; it only affects Restricted Net Assets.
(2)Renewal & Replacement decrease reflects the decrease of net assets for R&R and increases the 
   Unrestricted Results of Operations.
(3)Depreciation and amortization are treated as expenses and reduce the results of operations but do not 
   have an impact on Unrestricted Net Assets; they only affect Invested in Capital Assets (net of related debt). 
(4)Loan proceeds spent on non-capital expenditures (e.g. economic incentives or non-City assets) will not
   impact current assets used for capital.
(5)Reflects new borrowing expended for capital and non-capital purposes (either bonds or loans).
(6)Reflects prior year borrowing expended for capital.
(7)Since Non-Capital Debt is treated as a reduction in Unrestricted Net Assets, principal payments thereon, 
   do not effect the balance of Unrestricted Net Assets.

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets
Table 2

 

While the results of operations is a measure of the City’s activities, the explanation of the changes in 
unrestricted net assets provides a clearer measure of change. 
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Summary of Changes in Net Assets 
 
The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal year. 
 

 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
REVENUES
Program revenues:
    Charges for services 33.9$      34.5$      102.5$    98.7$      136.4$     133.2$     
     Federal grants and contributions 14.5       16.9       14.5         16.9        
     State grants and entitlements 8.6         4.4         8.6           4.4          
General revenues:
     Property taxes 71.7       68.6       71.7         68.6        
     Utility Services Taxes 37.7       39.2       37.7         39.2        
      Sales Tax 24.4       24.0       24.4         24.0        
      Gas Tax 7.2         7.4         7.2           7.4          
      Franchise Fees 22.7       21.7       22.7         21.7        
      OUC Contribution 33.0       28.2       33.0         28.2        
     Other Intergovernmental 19.0       18.7       19.0         18.7        
      Investment Income 8.7         8.5         6.6         7.9         15.3         16.4        
     Other general revenues 9.6         9.6         9.6           9.6          
Total revenues 291.0     281.7     109.1     106.6     400.1       388.3       

EXPENSES
Program Activities
Primary Government:
     Governmental Activities:
          General Administration 13.7       17.1       13.7         17.1        
          Executive Offices 9.6         9.6           
          Housing 10.3       10.3         
          Economic Development 14.7       14.7         
          Administrative Services 21.3        21.3        
          Planning and Development 13.8        13.8        
          Public Works 26.8       36.7       26.8         36.7        
          Families, Parks and Recreation 30.6       30.6         
          Community and Youth Services 18.1        18.1        
          Police 89.1       82.2       89.1         82.2        
          Fire 51.4       46.4       51.4         46.4        
          Management, Budget and Accounting 1.9         1.9           
          Finance 1.1         1.1           
          Community Redevelopment 10.6       20.1       10.6         20.1        
          Securities Lending 0.9         1.8         0.9           1.8          
          Lynx/Transit Subsidy 3.7         3.5         3.7           3.5          
          Street Lighting 3.9         3.5         3.9           3.5          
          Unallocated Depreciation 2.1         1.2         2.1           1.2          
          Interest Costs 9.3         8.5         9.3           8.5          
          Other 13.2       18.2       13.2         18.2        
     Business-type Activities:
          Wastewater 59.3       60.3       59.3         60.3        
          Centroplex 19.5       18.7       19.5         18.7        
          Parking 12.4       11.5       12.4         11.5        
          Stormwater Utility 8.9         8.6         8.9           8.6          
          Solid Waste 15.5       15.7       15.5         15.7        
Total expenses 292.9     292.4     115.6     114.8     408.5       407.2       

  
Transfers 1.4         (1.0)        (1.4)        1.0          
Capital Contributions 0.3         2.6         10.5       5.1         10.8         7.7          
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (0.2)          (9.1)          2.6           (2.1)          2.4           (11.2)        

Net Assets - Beginning 446.8       455.9       482.2       484.3       929.0       940.2       
Net Assets - Ending 446.6$    446.8$    484.8$    482.2$    931.4$     929.0$     

Table 3
Changes in Net Assets

(in Millions)

Activities Activities Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Total
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Normal Impacts 

There are nine basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below. 

Revenues:

Economic Condition – which can reflect a declining, stable or growing economic environment and 
has a substantial impact on property, sales, gas or other tax revenue as well as public spending habits 
for building permits, elective user fees and volumes of consumption. 

Increase/Decrease in Council approved rates – while certain tax rates are set by statute, the City 
Council has significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates (wastewater, 
parking, permitting, impact fee, recreation user fees, etc.) 

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and non-
recurring) – certain recurring revenues (state revenue sharing, block grant, etc.) may experience 
significant changes periodically while non-recurring (or one-time) grants are less predictable and often 
distorting in their impact on year to year comparisons. 

Contribution from Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC) – as the owner of the OUC (established in 
1925), the City receives an annual dividend and therefore, the ongoing competitiveness and vitality of 
OUC is important to the City’s well being. 

Market Impacts on Investment income – the City’s investment portfolio is managed using a longer 
average maturity than most governments and the market condition may cause investment income to 
fluctuate more than alternative shorter-term options. 

Expenses:

Introduction of New Programs – within the functional expense categories (Police, Fire, Public 
Works, Families, Parks and Recreation, etc.) individual programs may be added or deleted to meet 
changing community needs. 

Increase/Decrease in Authorized Personnel – changes in service demand may cause the Council to 
increase/decrease authorized staffing. Staffing costs (salary and related benefits) represent 60% of the 
City’s operating cost. 

Salary Increases (cost of living, merit and market adjustment) – the ability to attract and retain 
human and intellectual resources requires the City to strive to approach a competitive salary range 
position in the marketplace. 

Inflation – while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the City is a major consumer of 
certain commodities such as chemicals and supplies, fuels and parts. Some functions may experience 
unusual commodity specific increases. 

 
Current Year Impacts 

Revenues:  

The impacts of slower economic growth and a reduction in tourism are still impacting central Florida’s 
overall economy and many of the related revenues are flat to slightly negative. 

Property Taxes increases were a result of 4.0% increase in valuation while the millage rate (5.6916) 
was unchanged year to year. 

The OUC Contribution exceeded its $29.0 million budget by $4.0 million or 13.8% as a result of 
seasonal weather demands and wholesale demand for power. 

   

Expenses: 

As a result of the new Mayor (Buddy Dyer) Transition Team report a reorganization was 
implemented, and the following briefly addresses the major results thereof. 
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Families, Parks and Recreation is largely a combination of Community and Youth Services and 
the ($11.0 million) Parks unit which was previously part of Public Works. 

Housing was previously a sub-unit of Planning and Development. 

The new General Administration and Management, Budget and Accounting were previously part 
of Administrative Services. 

The old General Administration resulted in Executive Offices, Finance and a $5.5 million transfer 
to Economic Development. 

Planning and Development (less Housing) was moved to Economic Development. 

The major non-reorganization differences are: 

The Police Department had increases ($1.6 and $2.4 million, respectively) in health insurance and 
pension contribution costs.  Additionally, the 2003 budget included 12 new positions (including 11 
sworn) as well as step salary increases and contractually required 4.5% salary adjustments  (the 2nd 
year of a 3-year contract). 

The Fire Department also had increases ($.9 and $2.0 million, respectively) in health insurance and 
pension contribution costs.  Additionally, the 2003 budget included 30 new firefighter positions  as 
well as step salary increases and contractually required 4.5% salary adjustments  (the first year of a 3-
year contract). 

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) had a $2.6 million reduction in incentives (related to 
the Parramore Area Housing/Office Complex and  Market-rate Housing) payments.  Additionally, the 
refunding (in 2001/2002) of the Republic Drive Special Assessment Bond with Tax Increment Bonds 
triggered a $4.3 million refund of an originally required ($3.2 million) one year assessment with 
accumulated interest since special assessment payments, as designed, were never used. 

 
THE CITY FUNDS 

 
Governmental Funds 

The Capital Improvement fund, where most of the City’s smaller Capital Improvement projects are 
financed, experienced a $15.6 million (or 67.5%) reduction in fund balance.  Of this total, $9.5 million was 
a result of spending down contributions made in prior years  (a normal process).   Additional projects were 
deferred or eliminated and the freed up appropriations were then returned to the General Fund as $8.0 
million non-recurring revenue, a transfer from (not to) the Capital Improvement Fund.  Additional Capital 
Project oriented funds (Parks Initiative and Transportation Impact Fees) also experienced normal (to-
be-expected) spend down of $11.3 and $9.3 million, respectively, which reduced the available capital 
balances therein. 

The General Fund was able to reverse the prior year’s $11.85 million deficit operation to record a $3.2 
million increase in fund balance.  These results of operation include the  recording of all related one-time 
($2.0 million) termination expenses (i.e. personal leave, sick leave, where appropriate, and severance 
benefits) associated with the Reduction in Force which saw 162 filled positions eliminated. 

The CRA’s Downtown District, which is separately presented in the notes on page 87, also experienced a 
$3.7 million increase in fund balance  due to: a) a $0.5 million increase in TIF revenue, b) a $1.5 million 
reimbursement for land acquisition originally acquired by the CRA, but was ultimately determined to be a 
capital cost of the Stormwater System, and c) a $1.7 million reduction in pay-as-you-go capital and/or 
incentive cost.     

  

Business-Type Funds 

The Wastewater System experienced a $3.7 million decrease in net assets principally as a result of an 
intended rate reduction in March 1999, which was designed to return excess collected revenue to the rate 
payers.  The City anticipates revising the rate structure during 2003/2004 to conclude this excess revenue 
return. 

The Orlando Centroplex, which includes the Arena, a performing arts center and the Centroplex 
meeting/exhibit hall, is budgeted on a cash needs basis to cover operations, debt service and periodic 
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capital and when presented on an economic resource basis, routinely experiences losses (approximately 
$2.5 million).  The level of loss is inversely related to the level of attendance at major scheduled events 
(e.g. Orlando Magic (NBA), Orlando Predators (Arena Football) and Orlando Seals (World Hockey 
Association 2) games). 

The Stormwater Utility fund routinely spends about 62% of the revenue on operations and maintenance 
related cost and the remainder is targeted at capital expenditures related to stormwater facilities.  This 
year’s operating results of $6.7 million increase in net assets is primarily attributed to Developer 
contributions of $5.4 million. These Developer contributions are infrastructure assets (stormwater lines and 
pump stations) transferred to the City after the Developer has completed construction of residential or 
commercial projects.  

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The following is a brief review of the budgeting changes from the original to final budget (refer to budget 
comparison on page 96) 

On the revenue side, the primary budgetary change reflected, a) a reduction in  the OUC contribution ($4.0 
million) as a result of the prior year’s failure to receive any end-of-year adjustment to the dividend 
payment, b) as a result of project deferral/elimination in the Capital Improvement Fund, a one-time transfer 
($8.0 million) from the Capital Improvement Fund to (not from) the General Fund, and c) a 4.0 million 
increase in grant revenue. 

On the expenditure side, the primary changes had to do with the Police & Fire Department, a) $1.8 million 
and $1.9 million increases in pension contribution, respectively, b) $4.6 million and $2.8 million increase 
related to 8 and 12 additional positions, respectively, and contractually required salary increases, and c) a 
$4.0 million reduction in normal transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund. 

However, during the year, revenues exceeded budgetary estimates and expenditures were less than 
budgetary estimates, therefore eliminating the need to draw upon existing fund balances. 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

As of year end, the City had $1,010.7 million invested in a variety of capital assets, as reflected in the 
following schedule, which represents a net increase (additions less retirements and depreciation) of $23.6 
million or 2.4% from the end of last year. 
 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

Land and land rights 120.8$       120.0$       53.5$         52.0$         174.3$       172.0$       
Artwork 4.7 4.6 0.0 0.0 4.7 4.6
Buildings 79.0 80.4 190.5 190.7 269.5 271.1
Improvements other than buildings 57.0 42.7 29.1 30.4 86.1 73.1
Equipment 11.6 12.9 18.2 18.1 29.8 31.0
Motor Vehicles 24.2 23.7 0.0 0.0 24.2 23.7
Infrastructure 150.7 156.3 0.0 0.0 150.7 156.3
Sewer Lines 0.0 0.0 197.2 183.5 197.2 183.5
     Total 448.0 440.6 488.5 474.7 936.5 915.3
Work in Progress 37.8 32.9 36.4 38.9 74.2 71.8
     Total 485.8$       473.5$       524.9$       513.6$       1,010.7$    987.1$       

Business-type
Activities Totals

Table 4
Capital Assets at Year-end

(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental
Activities
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The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Capital Assets, which is presented in detail on page 
53 of the Notes. 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Beginning Balance 473.5$     513.6$     987.1$     

   Additions 70.7 69.7 140.4
   Retirement
      CWIP (25.1) (30.1) (55.2)
      Other (8.5) (0.6) (9.1)
   Depreciation (30.3) (28.1) (58.4)
      Retirement* 5.5 0.4 5.9

Ending Balance 485.8$    524.9$    1,010.7$  

* Reduction in accumulated depreciation related to retirements.

Change in Capital Assets
Table 5

(in Millions)

 
The retirements in the construction work-in-progress is equally reflected as an addition to Capital Assets. 
This year’s major additions are: 
 
 Governmental Activities: 
  Parks Initiative Projects $11.1 
  Vehicle Replacement 5.5 
  Various Construction Projects* 3.7 
  Metrowest Blvd. Extension and Bridge  2.6 
  Regional Computerized Signal System 2.4 
  Mercy Drive Improvements 1.9 
  Skateboard Park  1.5 
  Motorola Radio System Upgrade 1.5 
  Judge Road Extension 1.2 
  Semoran Streetscape Improvements 1.1 
  IBM Server 1.0 
   
 Business-type Activities 
  Various Wastewater Projects* 6.6 
  Courthouse Parking Garage Construction  6.1 
  Various Stormwater Projects* 3.8 
  RIB Site No. 6 3.2 
  Baldwin Park Sewer Lines 3.1 
  Baldwin Park Reclaimed Water System 2.2 
  Iron Bridge Rerating and Expansion 1.8 
  Water Conserv II – Stoneybrook 1.5 
  Beverly Shores Sewer Line 1.5 
  Iron Bridge Odor Control 1.4 
  Curry Ford Sewer Line 1.2 
  East Region Reclaimed Water System 1.1 
  Iron Bridge Scada 1.0 
  Iron Bridge Master Pump Station 1.0 
   
 *Includes a variety of small projects each less than $1.0 million. 
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Debt Outstanding 

As of year-end, the City had $416.5 million in debt (bonds, notes, etc.) outstanding compared to the $433.2 
million last year, a 3.9% net decrease  (considering new borrowing and debt retirement).  The key factor in 
this decrease is the normal principal payments as noted below.   

2003 2002

Governmental:
    Covenant 135.4$       137.4$       
    Special Assessment 28.9 28.9
    Tax Increment 68.3 70.6
    Capital Lease 0.7 0.6
        Sub-total 233.3 237.5
Business Type:
    Wastewater System 144.1 153.7
    Parking System 29.6 31.3
    Centroplex 9.5 10.7
        Sub-total 183.2 195.7
Total 416.5$      433.2$       

Table 6

(in Millions)
Outstanding Debt, at Year-end 

 

Principal payments of $ 14.5 million and $ 9.6 million (on  bonds, leases and internal loans) were made in 
the governmental and business-type activities, respectively. 

A significant portion of the City’s debt activity occurs in the City’s Internal Loan Fund (operating like a 
bank) and involving short, medium and long-term debt. Table 6 reflects the covenant (internal loan) debt as 
a separate line (for the governmental activities) and a portion of each line (for the business-type activities).  

The change in Governmental Activities debt (Table 6) does not reflect the revolving nature of the Internal 
Loan (Banking) Fund activity. 

 

Relendable available (9/30/02) $ 9.1 

New Loans Made (6.9) 

Investment Income Earned .5 

Administrative Expenses (.1) 

Debt Service Payments: 

 Internal Loans 14.8 

 External Payments Made (11.0)

Relendable available (9/30/03) $ 6.4  

For a broader understanding of how the internal loan complements the separately pledged debt, please see 
the Schedule on page xiv in the Transmittal Letter. 

While the City has no outstanding general obligation (G.O.) debt, we have obtained a comparable rating for 
the City’s G.O. pledge of Aa2/AA/AA+ by the three rating agencies. While the City has used third-party 
bond insurance (a synthetic AAA) for many of its programs, both the Covenant and Wastewater System 
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programs have underlying ratings of Aa3/AA-/AA and Aa3/AA-/AA+ from Moody’s Investors Service, 
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Rating, Inc. respectively. 

The City/CRA has incurred two types of non-capital related debt. In the first, the CRA borrows from the 
Internal Loan program to finance housing and/or other economic development incentive programs. The 
payback, with interest, of these loans (currently $23.0 million borrowed and $25.5 million committed) will 
be made, on a junior lien basis, from District tax increment revenues. In the second type, the City has 
issued non-rated special assessment bonds (with a tax increment backing) for the Conroy Road interchange 
with I-4 and Tax Increment Financing Bonds to refinance the Republic Drive (Universal  Boulevard) 
interchange.  Both bonds will be repaid by tax increment revenue associated with each project. Since these 
interchanges have been  transferred to the State for maintenance purposes, on the Statement of Net Assets 
this type of debt reduces Unrestricted Net Assets because the debt is not offset by capital or other City 
assets.  Further information regarding each of these projects is available in the Notes (see pages 65 - 66). 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 
The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore the State 
operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Local governments (cities, counties 
and school boards) primarily rely on property and a limited array of other permitted  taxes (sales, gasoline, 
utilities services, etc.) and fees (franchise, occupational license, etc.) for their governmental activities. 
There are a limited number of state-shared revenues and recurring and non-recurring (one-time) grants 
from both the state and federal governments. 

For the business-type and certain governmental activities (permitting, recreational programs, etc.) the user 
pays a related fee or charge associated with the service. 

The level of taxes, fees and charges for services (including development related impact fees) will have a 
bearing on the City’s specific competitive ability to (a) annex additional land into its corporate limits and 
(b) encourage development (office, retail, residential and industrial) to choose to be located in the 
jurisdiction. The City places significant emphasis on encouraging both annexation and economic 
development. There are 13 cities in Orange County (of which Orlando is significantly the largest), and even 
so, over 60% of the County’s population lives outside of any city limits. The City competes for new 
regional development with unincorporated Orange County and the surrounding cities and counties. The 
City and County both support the Economic Development Commission in situations where Central Florida 
is competing with the other areas of the state, other states and nations. 

The City has historically elected to include an Economic Growth schedule in the Transmittal Letter (see 
page vi) which reflects the last three individual years and 3, 5 and 10 year growth trends. 

As per the U.S. Department of Labor, the Orlando metropolitan area’s unemployment rate (5.1%) continues 
to be lower than either the state or federal rates (5.5% and 5.8% respectively).  With the nation’s economy 
showing signs of growth, economists are optimistic about Orlando’s tourism sector ability to return to pre 
September 11th levels by mid 2004. 

 
FINANCIAL CONTACT 

 
The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability. If 
you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the City’s Chief 
Financial Officer on the 4th floor of City Hall, 400 South Orange Avenue, PO Box 4990, Orlando, Florida 
32802-4990. 
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

 

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 217,579,763 $      108,032,941 $      325,612,704 $      1,069,609 $            
Securities Lending 97,109,065 - 97,109,065           - 
Receivables (net) 16,866,307 6,975,488 23,841,795           990,131 
Due From Component Unit 800,000 - 800,000                - 
Due From Other Governments 16,884,368 3,216,209 20,100,577           197,764 
Internal Balances (3,833,844) 3,833,844 -                           - 
Inventories 1,457,026 280,203 1,737,229             32,780 
Prepaids 62,142 35,470 97,612                  - 
Other Assets 2,679,407 962,154 3,641,561             - 
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,467,567 18,792,760 24,260,327           55,709 
Investments 21,633,064 30,727,163 52,360,227           1,261,071 

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 163,301,899 89,968,398 253,270,297         1,384,126 

 Depreciable (Net) 322,485,233 434,923,905 757,409,138 36,088,402 
Total Assets 862,491,997 697,748,535 1,560,240,532 41,079,592 

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 11,504,018 8,762,679 20,266,697 191,366 
Accrued Liabilities 6,179,628 689,576 6,869,204 49,436 
Accrued Interest Payable 4,538,616 2,962,441 7,501,057 71,738 
Advance Payments 4,036,102 14,656,443 18,692,545 - 
Due to Primary Government - - - 800,000 
Deferred Revenue 7,863,448 - 7,863,448 26,282 
Securities Lending 97,109,065 - 97,109,065 - 
Non-Current Liabilities   

Due Within One Year:  
Compensated Absences 1,351,228 212,799 1,564,027 8,394 
Loans and Leases Payable 1,255,186 1,704,288 2,959,474 220,180 
Bonds Payable 8,495,000 10,270,000 18,765,000 390,000 
Claims Liabilities 10,557,000 - 10,557,000 - 

Due In More Than One Year:
Compensated Absences 15,539,126 2,447,173 17,986,299 96,528 
Loans and Leases Payable 18,431,984 20,078,470 38,510,454 2,388,812 
Bonds Payable 205,084,416 151,188,153 356,272,569 1,815,071 
Claims Liabilities 23,914,035 - 23,914,035 - 

Long-term Advances - - - 21,632,343 
Total Liabilities 415,858,852 212,972,022 628,830,874 27,690,150 

NET ASSETS  
Invested in Capital Assets  

(net of related debt) 387,401,062 361,333,270 748,734,332 33,235,954 
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 26,727,381 16,209,928 42,937,309 - 
Debt Service - 12,000,000 12,000,000 - 
Renewal and Replacement - 7,100,091 7,100,091 248,096 

Unrestricted (Deficit) 32,504,702 88,133,224 120,637,926 (20,094,608)
Total Net Assets 446,633,145$     484,776,513$     931,409,658$     13,389,442$         

 

Primary Government

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
-13-



CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Program Revenues
Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Function/Program Activities
Primary Goverment:

Governmental Activities
General Administration 13,695,572 $       287,915 $            - $                         - $                        
Executive Offices 9,557,798 151,912 262,771 - 
Housing 10,320,047 133,588 10,058,092 996,152 
Economic Developmen 14,726,543 13,348,015 1,526,088 69,320 
Public Works 26,829,690 2,344,449 1,623,246 4,824,617 
Family, Parks and Recreation 30,584,146 2,978,977 235,609 - 
Police 89,125,527 12,045,806 3,197,936 - 
Fire 51,358,269 232,750 364,040 - 
Management, Budget and Accounting 1,860,071 - - - 
Finance 1,047,452 156,342 - - 
Community Redevelopmen 10,591,340 - - - 
Securities Lending 907,689 1,012,704 - - 
Lynx/Transit 3,725,233 - - - 
Street Lighting 3,906,772 - - - 
Other 13,233,770 1,218,179 - - 
Interest on Long-Term Deb 9,317,959 - - - 
Unallocated Depreciation 2,068,436 - - - 

Total governmental activities 292,856,314 33,910,637 17,267,782 5,890,089 
Business-type Activities  

Wastewater 59,279,719 48,673,493 - - 
Centroplex 19,472,773 15,536,063 - - 
Parking 12,450,977 11,181,564 - - 
Stormwater Utility 8,894,795 10,978,118 - - 
Solid Waste 15,534,730 16,159,991 - - 

Total business-type activities 115,632,994 102,529,229 - - 
Total primary government 408,489,308 $     136,439,866 $     17,267,782 $       5,890,089 $         

Component units:  
Downtown Development Board 2,047,989 $         - $                        - $                         - $                        
Civic Facilities Authority 7,522,764 3,553,893 - - 

Total component units 9,570,753 $         3,553,893 $         -0- $                      -0- $                     
General Revenues:

   Taxes:
     Property taxes, levied for general purpose

    Sales Tax  
    Gas Tax
    Franchise Fees
    Public Service Taxes
    Tax Increment Fees
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs  
    Orlando Utilities Commission
    Other
Impact Fees
Investment Earnings
Payment from Primary Governmen
Miscellaneous  
Capital Contributions  

Transfers:
  Subsidy Transfers
  Other Transfers  
    Total General Revenues and Transfer  
            Change in Net Assets  

Net assets - Beginning
Net assets - Ending  
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Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

 

(13,407,657)$       - $                         (13,407,657)$       - $                        
(9,143,115) - (9,143,115) - 

867,785 - 867,785 - 
216,880 - 216,880 - 

(18,037,378) - (18,037,378) - 
(27,369,560) - (27,369,560) - 
(73,881,785) - (73,881,785) - 
(50,761,479) - (50,761,479) - 
(1,860,071) - (1,860,071) - 

(891,110) - (891,110) - 
(10,591,340) - (10,591,340) - 

105,015 - 105,015 - 
(3,725,233) - (3,725,233) - 
(3,906,772) - (3,906,772) - 

(12,015,591) - (12,015,591) - 
(9,317,959) - (9,317,959) - 
(2,068,436) - (2,068,436) - 

(235,787,806) - (235,787,806) - 
 

- (10,606,226) (10,606,226) - 
- (3,936,710) (3,936,710) - 
- (1,269,413) (1,269,413) - 
- 2,083,323 2,083,323 - 
- 625,261 625,261 - 
- (13,103,765) (13,103,765) - 

(235,787,806)     (13,103,765)       (248,891,571)     -                       

-                         -                         -                        (2,047,989)       
- - - (3,968,871)
-                         -                         -                        (6,016,860)       

71,676,754 - 71,676,754 1,201,104 
24,413,099 - 24,413,099 - 
7,231,696 - 7,231,696 - 

22,643,184 - 22,643,184 - 
37,725,266 - 37,725,266 - 
8,573,811 - 8,573,811 - 

 
32,992,766 - 32,992,766 - 
10,387,107 - 10,387,107 - 
5,978,126 - 5,978,126 - 
8,745,682 6,620,777 15,366,459 139,318 

- - - 614,900 
3,592,659 - 3,592,659 445,038 

307,774 10,453,405 10,761,179 - 

(2,415,602) 2,415,602 - - 
3,810,054 (3,810,054) - - 

235,662,376 15,679,730 251,342,106 2,400,360 
(125,430) 2,575,965 2,450,535 (3,616,500)

446,758,575 482,200,548 928,959,123 17,005,942 
446,633,145$     484,776,513$     931,409,658$     13,389,442$      

Net (Expense) Revenue and

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statments.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Utilities Transportation Community
Services Impact Redevelopment

General Tax Gas Tax Fees Agency
ASSETS

Current Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,623,420 $        11,094,906 $       11,573,435 $       26,727,381 $          6,223,326 $           
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - - 5,467,567 
Restricted Investments 231,665 - - - 10,428,701 
Securities Lending Collatera 97,109,065 - - - - 
Receivables (Net)

Accounts 6,675,226 1,925,540 1,702,461 - - 
Taxes 556,562 - - - - 
Special Assessments 1,284,384 - 1,323 - - 

Due from Component Units 800,000 - - - - 
Due from Other Funds 741,438 - - - - 
Due from Other Governments 9,507,160 2,642,821 2,756,249 - - 
Prepaid Items 62,142 - - - - 
Inventories 889,868 - - - - 

Total Assets 178,480,930 $      15,663,267 $       16,033,468 $       26,727,381 $          22,119,594 $         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 3,494,973 $          440,532 $            - $                           2,025,722 $           
Accrued Liabilities 6,009,288 - - - 17,257 
Advance Payments 3,249,293 - - - 14,159 
Due to Other Funds - - - - - 
Deferred Revenue 8,033,480 - 1,323 - - 
Obligations Under Securities Lending 97,109,065 - - - - 
Accrued Interest Payable - - - - 2,241,349 

Total Liabilities 117,896,099 - 441,855 - 4,298,487 
Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Debt Service - - - - 11,944,229 
Prepaid Items 62,142 - - - - 
Inventories 889,868 - - - - 
Encumbrances 877,779 - 3,008,091 - - 

Unreserved, reported in
General Fund 58,755,042 - - - - 
Special Revenue Funds - 15,663,267 12,583,522 26,727,381 5,684,256 
Capital Project Funds - - - - 192,622 

Total Fund Balances 60,584,831 15,663,267 15,591,613 26,727,381 17,821,107 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 178,480,930 $      15,663,267 $       16,033,468 $       26,727,381 $          22,119,594 $         
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Non-Major Total 
Capital Governmental Governmental

Improvement Funds Funds

9,782,040 $          23,712,176 $        149,736,684 $      
- - 5,467,567 
- - 10,660,366 
- - 97,109,065 

355,525 61,627 10,720,379 
- - 556,562 
- - 1,285,707 
- - 800,000 
- - 741,438 

526,699 1,451,439 16,884,368 
- - 62,142 
- 34,167 924,035 

10,664,264 $        25,259,409 $        294,948,313 $      

2,406,983 $          2,357,197 $          10,725,407 $        
- 71,799 6,098,344 

754,580 18,070 4,036,102 
- 741,438 741,438 
- 2,288,645 10,323,448 
- - 97,109,065 
- - 2,241,349 

3,161,563 5,477,149 131,275,153 

- - 11,944,229 
- - 62,142 
- 34,167 924,035 

5,532,382 2,908,871 12,327,123 

- - 58,755,042 
- 4,299,642 64,958,068 

1,970,319 12,539,580 14,702,521 
7,502,701 19,782,260 163,673,160 

10,664,264 $        25,259,409 $        294,948,313 $      

 
 
 

 
 

  

 

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Fund balances - total governmental fund 163,673,160 $       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
net assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financi
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental fund

Governmental capital assets 770,958,918 $       
Less accumulated depreciation (317,146,071) 453,812,847 

Other assets used in governmental activities are not financial resource
and therefore are not reported in the governmental fund

Bond costs 2,921,298 
Less current year amortization (856,944) 2,064,354 

Long-term receivables applicable to governmental activities are not due an
collectible in the current period and therefore are not reported in fun
balance in the governmental funds

Accounts Receivable 4,199,815 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payab
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental fun

Governmental bonds payable (96,540,000)
Discount/(Premium) (688,797)
Current year amortization 52,035 
Compensated Absences (16,561,903)
Governmental leases payabl (689,466)
Governmental banking fund deb (114,502,197) (228,930,328)

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceptible to full accrual on th
entity-wide statements

Deferred Revenue 2,460,000 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certa
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of internal service fund
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net asset 49,353,297 

 Net assets of governmental activitites 446,633,145$      

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemen

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
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 -19-

 
 
 This page intentionally blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Utilities Transportation Community
Services Impact

General Tax Gas Tax Fees Agency
REVENUES

Property Taxes 71,676,754 $        - $                        - $                        - $                         - $                      
Intergovernmental

Orlando Utilities Commission Contribution 32,992,766 - - - - 
State Sales Tax 24,413,099 - - - - 
Other Intergovernmenta 15,467,644 - 13,178,350 - 17,394,899 

Occupational Licenses and Franchise Fees 28,156,910 - - - - 
Utilities Services Tax - 37,725,266 - - - 
Other Licenses, Permits and Fees 22,261,592 - 59,496 4,854,180 1,126,445 
Fines and Forfeitures 2,178,656 - - - - 
Income on Investments 3,156,235 737,132 595,189 1,335,458 520,449 
Securities Lending Income 1,012,704 - - - - 
Special Assessments 657,176 - - - - 
Other 13,101,838 - 522 - 2,404,574 

Total Revenues 215,075,374 38,462,398 13,833,557 6,189,638 21,446,367 
EXPENDITURES  

Current Operating
General Administration 16,133,535 - - 199,353 - 
Executive Offices 12,034,058 - - - - 
Housing 489,183 - - - - 
Economic Developmen 11,249,371 - - - - 
Public Works 21,899,616 - - - - 
Families, Parks and Recreation 23,954,933 - - - - 
Police 87,858,727 - - - - 
Fire 49,411,693 - - - - 
Management, Budget and Accounting 2,366,798 - - - - 
Finance 1,281,059 - - - - 
Other Expenditures 18,572,466 16,100 3,725,233 - - 
Community Redevelopment Agenc - - - - 12,364,418 

Capital Improvements - - 9,875,115 - 173,283 
Securities Lending

Interest 856,939 - - - - 
Agent Fees 50,750 - - - - 

Debt Service:
Principal Payments 3,225,635 - 1,686,943 - 4,108,476 
Interest and Other 2,370,251 - 976,011 - 5,798,945 
Total Expenditures 251,755,014 16,100 16,263,302 199,353 22,445,122 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (36,679,640) 38,446,298 (2,429,745) 5,990,285 (998,755)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
AND (USES)
Transfers In 48,582,923 - 4,490,582 - 56,192 
Transfers (Out) (8,765,682) (37,676,000) (2,910,729) (9,261,860) (1,383,224)
Bond and Loan Proceeds 110,451 - - - 6,765,000 

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 39,927,692 (37,676,000) 1,579,853 (9,261,860) 5,437,968 

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,248,052 770,298 (849,892) (3,271,575) 4,439,213 

Fund Balances - Beginning 57,336,779 14,892,969 16,441,505 29,998,956 13,381,894 

Fund Balances - Ending 60,584,831 $        15,663,267 $       15,591,613 $       26,727,381 $        17,821,107 $     

Redevelopment

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
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Non-Major Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

Improvement Funds Funds

- $                         - $                         71,676,754 $      

- - 32,992,766 
- - 24,413,099 

1,365,667 12,311,477 59,718,037 
- - 28,156,910 
- - 37,725,266 
- 1,238,633 29,540,346 

 - 2,178,656 
712,003 1,254,385 8,310,851 

- - 1,012,704 
- - 657,176 

87,196 200,744 15,794,874 
2,164,866 15,005,239 312,177,439 

- 493,948 16,826,836 
- - 12,034,058 
- 10,303,272 10,792,455 
- - 11,249,371 
- 11,502,396 33,402,012 
- 2,365,205 26,320,138 
- 588,548 88,447,275 
- - 49,411,693 
- - 2,366,798 
- - 1,281,059 
- - 22,313,799 
- - 12,364,418 

23,703,797 - 33,752,195 

- - 856,939 
- - 50,750 

 
281,882 - 9,302,936 
46,691 - 9,191,898 

24,032,370 25,253,369 339,964,630 

(21,867,504) (10,248,130) (27,787,191)

14,199,683 1,869,668 69,199,048 
(8,900,858) - (68,898,353)

971,348 - 7,846,799 
6,270,173 1,869,668 8,147,494 

(15,597,331) (8,378,462) (19,639,697)

23,100,032 28,160,722 183,312,857 

7,502,701 $          19,782,260 $        163,673,160 $    

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net change in fund balances - total governmental fund (19,639,697)$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditure
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those asse
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives

Expenditures for capital assets 36,003,560 
Less current year depreciation (24,030,236) 11,973,324 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources t
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets.  Repayment of bon
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but th
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of n
assets.  This is the amount by which proceeds exceede
repayments

Bond and loan proceeds (7,846,799)
Bond costs 23,555 
Principal payments 9,302,936 1,479,692 

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do n
provide current financial resources and therefore ar
not reported as revenues in governmental fund

Change in deferred revenue from State insurance premium 10,000 10,000 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activites do n
require the use of current financial resources and therefore ar
not reported as expenditures in governmental fund

Amortization of current year bond discount/premium 52,035 
Amortization of current year bond cost (856,944)
Change in long-term compensated absence (546,019) (1,350,928)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge th
costs of certain activities to individual funds
The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds i
reported with governmental activities 7,402,179 

Change in net assets of governmental activitie (125,430)$            

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Business-type Activties
Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Orlando Parking
System Centroplex System

Operating Revenues
User Charges 39,112,734 $      11,264,935 $      3,684,543 $        
Fees 586,354 3,654,348 5,180,067 
Parking Fines - - 2,206,008 
Other 1,576,881 616,780 110,946 

Total Operating Revenues 41,275,969 15,536,063 11,181,564 

Operating Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 11,895,530 5,241,963 3,182,002 
Contractual Services, Materials and Supplies 17,870,844 9,927,568 4,429,662 
Depreciation Expense 19,384,259 3,643,142 2,737,507 
Insurance and Other Expenses 3,400,729 331,963 849,499 

Total Operating Expenses 52,551,362 19,144,636 11,198,670 

Operating Income (Loss) (11,275,393) (3,608,573) (17,106)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income on Investments 4,839,288 107,292 866,405 
Impact Fees 7,397,524 - - 
Interest Expense (7,101,321) (380,270) (1,315,879)
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (55,980) (10,770) - 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 5,079,511 (283,748) (449,474)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers (6,195,882) (3,892,321) (466,580)

Capital Contributions 5,007,175 18,564 - 
Transfers In 164,291 1,618,628 2,296,974 
Transfers (Out) (2,709,287) - (1,509,657)

 2,462,179 1,637,192 787,317 

Change in Net Assets (3,733,703) (2,255,129) 320,737 

Net Assets - Beginning 313,681,860 59,408,382 37,852,977 

Net Assets - Ending 309,948,157 $    57,153,253 $      38,173,714 $      

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Change in net assets of business-type activities
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Governmental
Solid  Activities

Stormwater Waste  Internal
Utility Management Total Service Funds

10,957,956 $      15,915,373 $      80,935,541 $      50,552,857 $           
- 148,613 9,569,382 - 
- - 2,206,008 - 

20,162 96,005 2,420,774 1,070,831 
10,978,118 16,159,991 95,131,705 51,623,688 

2,414,282 5,172,421 27,906,198 10,192,186 
3,725,895 10,128,488 46,082,457 12,818,485 
2,203,653 134,289 28,102,850 6,256,292 

749,272 1,336,589 6,668,052 13,297,522 
9,093,102 16,771,787 108,759,557 42,564,485 

1,885,016 (611,796) (13,627,852) 9,059,203 

595,428 212,364 6,620,777 2,795,931 
- - 7,397,524 - 
- - (8,797,470) (6,131,258)

(1,777) (1,594) (70,121) 475,967 
593,651 210,770 5,150,710 (2,859,360)

2,478,667 (401,026) (8,477,142) 6,199,843 

5,427,666 - 10,453,405 2,604,767 
251,176 - 4,331,069 1,581,065 

(1,471,939) (34,638) (5,725,521) (989,342)
4,206,903 (34,638) 9,058,953 3,196,490 

6,685,570 (435,664) 581,811 9,396,333 

64,051,373 5,366,266 43,790,808 

70,736,943 $      4,930,602 $        53,187,141 $           

1,994,154 

2,575,965$       

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Business-type Activities
 Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Orlando Parking
System Centroplex System

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash Flows from Operations:
Receipts from Customers 37,781,070 $      14,907,355 $      10,524,173 $      
Repayment of Loans from Other Funds - - - 
Repayment of Loans from Component Units - - - 
Loans to Other Funds - - - 
Payments to Suppliers (20,677,158) (10,934,976) (4,673,089)
Payments to Employees (9,054,613) (4,141,657) (2,520,146)
Payments to Internal Service Funds and Administrative Fees (4,164,293) (628,690) (1,671,667)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 3,885,006 (797,968) 1,659,271 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers In 164,291 1,618,628 2,296,974 
Transfers (Out) (2,709,287) - (1,509,657)
Principal Paid on Bonds and Loans - - - 
Interest Paid on Bonds and Loans - - - 

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Noncapital Financing Activities (2,544,996) 1,618,628 787,317 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Bonds, Loans and Advances 46,970,000 - - 
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment (22,324,547) (308,334) (6,134,217)
Principal Paid on Bonds, Interfund Loans, Loans & Leases (6,663,798) (1,238,358) (1,699,434)
Payments for Advance Refunded Bonds (50,405,000) - - 
Interest Paid on Bonds, Interfund Loans, Loans and Leases (6,998,691) (380,270) (1,333,731)
Capital Contribution Other Goverments, Developers and Funds 5,007,175 18,564 - 
Impact Fees Received 8,682,042 - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - - - 

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Capital and
Related Financing Activities (25,732,819)  (1,908,398) (9,167,382)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Investments (62,685,465) - (6,941,820)
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of  Investments 63,675,030 - 6,911,500 
Interest on Investments 4,843,763 107,292 866,405 

Net Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities 5,833,328 107,292 836,085 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,559,481) (980,446) (5,884,709)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 115,866,913 2,125,563 21,772,181 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 97,307,432 $      1,145,117 $        15,887,472 $      

Classified As:
Current Assets 82,006,465 $      1,145,117 $        12,395,679 $      
Restricted Assets 15,300,967 - 3,491,793 

Totals 97,307,432 $      1,145,117 $        15,887,472 $      
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Governmental 
Solid Activities

Stormwater Waste  Internal
Utility Management Total Service Funds

10,970,091 $      16,113,868 $      90,296,557 $      51,827,632 $         
- - -                          8,902,961              
- - -                          204,339                 
- - -                          (6,875,451)

(3,864,751) (7,283,879) (47,433,853) (23,727,068)
(1,590,697) (3,686,523) (20,993,636) (8,749,793)
(1,280,724) (6,002,103) (13,747,477) (3,546,822)
4,233,919 (858,637) 8,121,591 18,035,798 

251,176 - 4,331,069 1,581,065 
(1,471,939) (34,638) (5,725,521) (989,342)

- - - (4,080,000)
- - - (5,680,386)

(1,220,763) (34,638) (1,394,452) (9,168,663)

- - 46,970,000 - 
(10,699,139) (21,045) (39,487,282) (6,438,865)

- - (9,601,590) (1,096,945)
- - (50,405,000) - 
- - (8,712,692) (16,207)

5,427,666 - 10,453,405 2,516,451 
- - 8,682,042 - 
- - - 709,590 

(5,271,473) (21,045) (42,101,117) (4,325,976)

- - (69,627,285) (11,184,153)
- - 70,586,530 11,040,384 

595,428 212,364 6,625,252 2,795,931 
595,428 212,364 7,584,497 2,652,162 

(1,662,889) (701,956) (27,789,481) 7,193,321 

10,131,925 4,718,600 154,615,182 60,624,875 

8,469,036 $        4,016,644 $        126,825,701 $    67,818,196 $         

8,469,036 $        4,016,644 $        108,032,941 $    67,818,196 $         
- - 18,792,760 - 

8,469,036 $        4,016,644 $        126,825,701 $    67,818,196 $         

      The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

(continued)

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Orlando Parking
System Centroplex System

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) (11,275,393)$     (3,608,573)$       (17,106)$            

Adjustments Not Affecting Cash:
Depreciation 19,384,259 3,643,142 2,737,507 
Amortization (154,153) - 31,042 
(Increase) Decrease in Assets
and Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable (844,026) 16,712 (675,311)
Due from Other Governments (2,650,873) - 41,913 
Inventory 54,128 3,766 - 
Prepaid Items 3,325,927 (31,510) - 
Loans to Other Funds - - - 
Loans to Component Units - - - 
Accounts Payable (3,717,662) (128,380) (358,005)
Accrued Liabilities 12,851 1,968 7,388 
Arbitrage Rebate Payable - - - 
Compensated Absences (250,052) (49,672) (84,164)
Claims Payable - - - 
Advance Payments - (645,421) (23,993)

Total Adjustments 15,160,399 2,810,605 1,676,377 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 3,885,006 $        (797,968)$          1,659,271 $        
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Governmental
Solid  Activities

Stormwater Waste  Internal 
Utility Management Total Service Funds

1,885,016 $        (611,796)$          (13,627,852)$     9,059,203 $           

2,203,653 134,289 28,102,850 6,256,292  
- - (123,111) 91,243 

(8,027) (46,123) (1,556,775) 112,701 
- - (2,608,960) - 
- - 57,894 (90,279)
- - 3,294,417 - 
- - - 2,027,510 
- - - 204,339 

88,503 (78,827) (4,194,371) (924,762)
8,663 14,073 44,943 (170,582)

- - - (82,166)
56,111 (270,253) (598,030) (311,918)

- - - 1,864,217 
- - (669,414) - 

2,348,903 (246,841) 21,749,443 8,976,595 

4,233,919 $        (858,637)$          8,121,591 $        18,035,798 $         

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Employee 
Retirement Agency

Funds Fund
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,931,352 $          989,097 $             
Accounts Receivable 35,948 - 

7,967,300 989,097 
Investments, at Fair Value

U.S. Government Obligations 88,958,599 - 
Domestic Corporate Bonds 54,829,069 - 
Foreign Sovereign Bonds 1,312,909 - 
Domestic Stocks 266,148,176 - 
International Stocks 55,205,443 - 
Short-term Investments 26,569,971 - 
Mortgages 44,241,104 - 
Real Estate 44,454,159 - 
Accrued Income 2,003,652 - 
Defined Contribution Investments 81,220,838 - 

Total Investments 664,943,920 - 

Securities Lending Collateral 205,782,317 - 
Participant Loans 3,408,665 - 

Total Assets 882,102,202 989,097 

LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending 205,782,317 - 
Accounts Payable 987,781 989,097 

Total Liabilities 206,770,098 989,097$            

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

and Other Purposes 675,332,104$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Employee 
Retirement

Funds
ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Employer 16,926,714 $     
State 3,338,074 
State in Excess of 1997 Frozen Amounts 1,378,719 
Plan Members 7,559,609 
Plan Members Buybacks 23,664 
Transfers from the General Employee Pension Plan 3,661,840 

Total Contributions 32,888,620 

Investment Income:
From Investment Activities

Net Increase in Fair
Value of Investments 83,958,027 

Interest 10,602,588 
Dividends 4,190,700 

Total Investment Income 98,751,315 
Investment Activity Expenses:

Investment Management Fees (1,997,750)
Custodian Fees (127,333)

Total Investment Expenses (2,125,083)
Net Income from Investing Activities 96,626,232 

From Securities Lending Activities:
Securities Lending 1,470,688 
Securities Lending Expenses:

Interest Expense (Returned to Borrower) (1,203,984)
Agent Fees (73,144)

Total Securities Lending Activities Expenses (1,277,128)
Net Income from Securities Lending Activities 193,560 

Total Net Investment Income 96,819,792 

Total Additions 129,708,412 

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 35,767,775 
Refunds of Contributions                                                    196,334 
Refund of Forfeitures to Employer 600,000 
Transfers to the Defined Contribution Plan 3,661,840 
Administrative Expense 319,955 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 47,864 

Total Deductions 40,593,768 

Net Increase 89,114,644 

Net Assets Held in Trust For Pension Benefits:
Net assets - Beginning of Year 586,217,460 
Net assets - End of Year 675,332,104$  

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 
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NOTE I. - SUMMARY OF 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 
 

The City of Orlando, Florida (the City), which was 
founded in 1875, has a population of an estimated 
201,900  living within an area of 107 square miles. 
The City is in the approximate center of the State of 
Florida and the four-county Orlando Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (MSA), which has an estimated 
population of 1,822,600. The City operates under a 
Charter adopted February 4, 1885, as amended, and a 
Mayor/Council form of government.  

 

The financial statements of the City have been 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body 
for governmental accounting and financial reporting. 
Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 
1989 are not applied in the preparation of the 
financial statements of the proprietary fund types in 
accordance with GASB Statement #20. The GASB 
periodically updates its codification of the existing 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards which, along with subsequent GASB 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), 
constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more 
significant of these accounting policies are described 
below. 

A.  REPORTING ENTITY 
The City is a Florida municipal corporation with a 
seven-member City Council comprised of the Mayor 
(elected at large) and six district Commissioners. In 
evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management 
has addressed all potential component units 
(traditionally separate reporting entities) for which 
the City may or may not be financially accountable 
and, as such, be includable within the City's financial 
statements. The City (the primary government) is 
financially accountable if it appoints a voting 
majority of the organization's governing board and 
(1) it is able to impose its will on the organization or 
(2) there is a potential for the organization to provide 
specific financial benefit to or impose specific 
financial burden on the City. Additionally, the 
primary government is required to consider other 
organizations for which the primary government is 
not financially accountable to determine whether the 
relationship is  such that exclusion would cause the 

reporting entity's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete.  

 

The financial statements are formatted to allow the 
user to clearly distinguish between the primary 
government and its component units. Because of the 
closeness of their relationship with the primary 
government (the City), some component units are 
blended as though they are part of the primary 
government; however, GASB suggests that most 
component units will be discretely presented.  

 

1.  Blended Component Units: 

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) - The 
City Council serves as the CRA board. Although 
legally separate, the CRA is appropriately blended as 
a governmental major fund component unit into the 
primary government. The CRA has responsibility for 
three specifically separate tax increment districts 
(which have district specific debt obligation and 
related revenues), which are disclosed in segment-
like information. (See Notes on page 87) 

 

2.  Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Governmental Fund Type 

Downtown Development Board (DDB) - The DDB 
has a separate five member board appointed by the 
City Council. Staff is shared with the CRA as the 
CRA defined area encompasses all of the DDB area. 
(See Notes on page 88) 

 

Proprietary Fund Type 
 

Civic Facilities Authority (CFA) - Although the 
City does not appoint the board (which is appointed 
by Orange County), in accordance with a 1976 tri-
party agreement (between City, County and the 
CFA), the City is primarily responsible for the 
budget, debt, deficit and management of the CFA. 
(See Notes on page 88) 

 

The component unit  fund statements reflect these 
discretely presented units. Separate financial 
statements for the CRA districts are only produced as 
necessary, upon request. Separate financial 
statements for the DDB and CFA are not presently 
developed. 
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Although not considered component units, the City 
has elected to provide limited information regarding 
the Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC), the 
Orlando Housing Authority, and the Greater Orlando 
Aviation Authority (GOAA) in the Related Parties 
note. (See Notes on page 92). Further information 
regarding these agencies, their financial statements, 
and/or operations may be obtained by contacting the 
agencies directly. 

 

Governmental accounting standards require 
reasonable separation between the Primary 
Government (including its blended component units) 
and its discretely presented component units, both in 
the financial statements and in the related notes and 
required supplementary information. Because the 
discretely presented component units, although 
legally separate, have been and are operated as if 
each is part of the primary government, there are 
limited instances where special note reference or 
separation will be required. If no separate note 
reference or categorization is made, the user should 
assume that information presented is equally 
applicable. 

B.  JOINT VENTURES 
A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization 
that results from a contractual agreement and that is 
owned, operated or governed by two or more 
participants as a separate and specific activity subject 
to joint control in which the participants retain (a) an 
on-going financial interest or (b) an on-going 
financial responsibility. The City participates in the 
following joint ventures:  
 
1.  Central Florida Fire Academy (CFFA):  

Although the City maintains the accounting records 
and produces separate financial statements for the 
CFFA, the CFFA is a joint venture primarily between 
the City, Orange County and the Orange County 
School Board to which all provide contributions 
and/or in-kind services for its on-going existence. 
(See Notes on page 90) 

 
2. Sunshine State Governmental Financing 
Commission (SSGFC):  

Although the cities of Orlando and Tallahassee 
entered into an interlocal agreement to create the 
Commission and undertook certain initial risks to 
ensure its ability to sell bonds, the Commission is a 
joint venture among the member governmental units. 
The participants' obligations in the form of loans 
from the Commission should be reflected as debt for 

each of the participating governmental units. (See 
Notes on page 91). 

C.  BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-GASB 
STATEMENT #34 
The basic financial statements include both 
government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and 
fund financial statements. While the previous 
financial reporting model emphasized fund types (the 
total of all funds of a particular type), in the new 
financial reporting model the focus is on either the 
City as a whole, or major individual funds (within the 
fund financial statements). Both the government-
wide and fund financial statements (within the basic 
financial statements) categorize primary activities as 
either governmental or business type. In the 
government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the 
governmental and business-type activities columns 
(a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, 
(b) and are reflected, on a full accrual, economic 
resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets 
and receivables as well as long-term debt and 
obligations. 

 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflects 
both the gross and net costs per functional category 
(Police, Fire, Public Works, etc.), which are 
otherwise being supported by general government 
revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain 
intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of 
Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating 
and capital grants. The program revenues must be 
directly associated with the function (Police, Fire, 
Public Works, etc.) or a business-type activity. The 
operating grants include operating-specific and 
discretionary (either operating or capital) grants 
while the capital grants column reflects capital-
specific grants. 

 

The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is 
normally covered by general revenue (property, sales 
or gas taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest 
income, etc.). Historically, the previous financial 
reporting model did not summarize or present net 
cost by function or activity. 

 

The City does not currently employ an indirect cost 
allocation system. An administrative service fee is 
charged by the General Fund to the other operating 
funds, that is eliminated at year-end like a 
reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense in 
the General Fund), to address General Fund services 
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(finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, technology 
management, etc.) provided. 

 

This government-wide focus is more on the 
sustainability of the City as an entity and the change 
in aggregate financial position resulting from the 
activities of the fiscal period. 

 

The fund financial statements are, in substance, very 
similar to the financial statements presented in the 
previous financial reporting model. Emphasis here is 
on the major funds in either the governmental or 
business-type categories. Non-major funds (by 
category) are summarized into a single column.  

 

The governmental funds’ major fund statements in 
the fund financial statements are presented on a 
current financial resource and modified accrual basis 
of accounting. This is the manner in which these 
funds are normally budgeted. This presentation is 
deemed most appropriate to (a) demonstrate legal and 
covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate the source and 
use of liquid resources, and (c) demonstrate how the 
City’s actual experience conforms to the budgeted 
fiscal plan. Since the governmental fund statements 
are presented on a different measurement focus and 
basis of accounting than the government-wide 
statements’ governmental column, a reconciliation is 
presented on the page following each statement, 
which briefly explains the adjustment necessary to 
transform the fund based financial statements into the 
governmental column of the government-wide 
presentation.   

 

Internal service funds of a government (which 
traditionally provide services primarily to other funds 
of the government) are presented, in summary form, 
as part of the proprietary fund financial statements. 
Since the principal users of the internal services are 
the City’s governmental activities, financial 
statements of internal service funds are consolidated 
into the governmental column when presented at the 
government-wide level. The costs of these services 
are allocated to the appropriate functional activity 
(Police, Fire, Public Works, etc.). 

 

When appropriate, surplus or deficits in the Internal 
Service Funds may be allocated back to customers at 
the entity-wide level Statement of Activities. This 
creates a reconciling item between the business-type 
activities column and the Proprietary Fund statements 
at the fund level as reflected on the bottom of each 
statement. 

 

The City’s fiduciary funds (which have been 
redefined and narrowed in scope) are presented in the 
fund financial statements by type (pension, private 
purpose and agency). Since, by definition, these 
assets are being held for the benefit of a third party 
(other local governments, private parties, pension 
participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address 
activities or obligations of the government, these 
funds are not incorporated into the government-wide 
statements. 

 

The focus of the Statement #34 model is on the City 
as a whole and the fund financial statements. The 
focus of the Fund Financial Statements is on the 
major individual funds of the governmental and 
business-type categories, as well as the fiduciary 
funds (by category), and the component units. Each 
presentation provides valuable information that can 
be analyzed and compared (between years and 
between governments) to enhance the usefulness of 
the information.  

D.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
The financial transactions of the City are recorded in 
individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by 
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund 
equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The 
various funds are reported by generic classification 
within the financial statements.   

 

Statement #34 sets forth minimum criteria 
(percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the 
governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds. The City electively 
added funds, as major funds, which either had debt 
outstanding or specific community focus. The non-
major funds are combined in a column in the fund 
financial statements and detailed in the combining 
section. 

 

The City reports the following major funds: 

 

1.  Governmental Funds: 

The measurement focus of the Governmental Funds 
(in the Fund Financial Statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in 
financial position (sources, uses, and balances of 
financial resources) rather than upon net income. The 
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following is a description of the Governmental Funds 
of the City:  

 

a.  General Fund accounts for several of the City’s 
primary services (Police, Fire, Public Works, 
Families, Parks and Recreation,  etc.) and is the 
primary operating unit of the City. 

 

b.  Utilities Services Tax Fund accounts for the 
receipt of the Utilities Services taxes after the 
monthly release of lien (pledged to the Wastewater 
System) and annually makes a significant 
contribution to the General Fund. 

  

c. Gas Tax Fund accounts for the receipt and 
disbursement of State gas tax revenues. These 
revenues are used to build/repair roads, cover road 
related operating cost or to contribute to the local 
transit authority (Lynx). 

 

d.  Transportation Impact Fees Fund is used to 
account for the receipt and disbursement of 
transportation impact fees, used exclusively for 
transportation related capital projects (or related debt 
services). 
 
e.  Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) is 
used to reflect the activity of the CRA.  

 

f.  Capital Improvement Fund is used to account 
for the majority of the City’s smaller capital projects. 
Revenues are received primarily from the General 
Fund. 
 
g.  Non-Major Governmental Funds is a 
summarization of all of the non-major governmental 
funds.  
 
2.  Proprietary Funds: 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon 
determination of operating income, changes in fund 
net assets, financial position, and cash flows, which 
is similar to businesses. The following is a 
description of the major Proprietary Funds of the 
City:  

 

a.  Wastewater System Fund accounts for the 
activities of the City’s Wastewater System. (See 
further description on page 62) 

 

b. Orlando Centroplex Fund accounts for the 
operation of the 17,000-seat arena, 2,500-seat 
performing arts center, and the 75,000 sq. ft. meeting 
hall/exhibit facilities. 

 

c. Parking System Fund accounts for the activity 
of the City’s Parking System, including the Parking 
Fine revenues. (See further description on page 64). 
 

d. Stormwater Utility Fund accounts for the 
activities of the Stormwater Utility which charges a 
user fee per parcel based on the amount of 
impervious surface thereon. 

 

e.  Solid Waste Management Fund accounts for the 
activities of the City’s residential and commercial 
collection system. This includes the costs of disposal 
fees charged at the County landfill.  

 

3.  Other Fund Types: 

The City additionally reports for the following Fund 
types: 

 
a.  Internal Service Funds – the City  operates a 
fleet maintenance operation, a risk management 
(insurance) program, labor pool and an internal loan 
(banking) operation,  as internal services. Due to a 
recent reorganization, the City elected to close the 
Project/Construction Management and Facilities 
Management Internal Service Funds during 2002-
2003. 

 
b.  Employee Retirement/Benefit Funds – the City 
accounts for defined benefit and defined contribution 
pensions and other benefit trusts to provide disability 
and retirement benefits for its employees/retirees. 
 
c.  Agency Fund – accounts for the City’s collection 
of School Impact Fees, at the time of building permit 
issuance, for the Orange County School Board. 
 
4.  Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities:   

GASB Statement #34 eliminates the presentation of 
Account Groups, but provides for these records to be 
maintained and incorporates the information into the 
Governmental Activities column in the government-
wide Statement of Net Assets. 
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E.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which 
revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in 
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
It relates to the timing of the measurements made, 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

 

The Government-wide Financial Statements and the 
Proprietary, Fiduciary and Component Unit Fund 
Financial Statements are presented on an accrual 
basis of accounting. The Governmental Funds in the 
Fund Financial Statements are presented on a 
modified accrual basis. 

1. Accrual: 

Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses 
are recognized when incurred.  

 

2. Modified Accrual: 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; 
i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" 
means collectible within the following 6 months. 
Expenditures are generally recognized under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related liability is incurred. The exception to this 
general rule is that principal and interest on general 
obligation long-term debt and compensated absences, 
if any, are recognized when due. 

 

In applying the "susceptible to accrual" concept to 
intergovernmental revenues pursuant to GASB 
Statement #33 (the City may act as either provider or 
recipient), the provider should recognize liabilities 
and expenses and the recipient should recognize 
receivables and revenue when the applicable 
eligibility requirements including time requirements, 
are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility 
requirements are met should, under most 
circumstances, be reported as advances by the 
provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.   

F.  BUDGETARY DATA 
1. Budgeting Policy:  

The City Council annually adopts the Budget 
Resolution for all operating funds of the City except 
for certain restricted accounts of proprietary funds, 
Police Camp and Cemetery Funds (Special Revenue 
Funds) and pension trust funds. Budgetary control is 
legally maintained at the fund level. The budget is 
prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting with encumbrances included as budgetary 

basis expenditures. The City's Budget Resolution 
provides transfer authority (1) to the Mayor and the 
Director of Management, Budget and Accounting, 
within and between departments and funds, as long 
as the total budget of the City (net of interfund 
transfers) is not increased; (2) to the Director of 
Management, Budget and Accounting to implement 
grant budgets as the grant applications are accepted 
by the City; and (3) to the Director of Management, 
Budget and Accounting to amend (re-appropriate) 
each new year's budget, to the extent of outstanding 
encumbrances, and/or unexpended project/grant 
appropriations at year end. City Council action is 
required for (1) use of the budgeted Council 
contingency, and (2) the approval of a supplemental 
appropriation(s). During the year, several 
supplemental appropriations were necessary.  

 

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying 
supplementary information reflect the original budget 
(including the prior year carry forward) and the 
amended budget (which have been adjusted for 
legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets 
during the year). Appropriations, except remaining 
project appropriations, encumbrances, and 
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of 
each fiscal year. The capital projects funds present, 
for some individual projects, the remaining project 
appropriations compared to current year 
expenditures. 

 

At the governmental fund level, outstanding 
encumbrances are a reservation of fund balance to 
reflect the reappropriation in the subsequent year. 

 

2.  Encumbrances 

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not 
represent GAAP expenditures or liabilities but 
represent budgetary accounting controls. All 
governmental fund budgets are maintained on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting except that 
budgetary basis expenditures include purchase orders 
and contracts (encumbrances) issued for goods or 
services not received at year-end.  

G. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND EQUITY 
1.  Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

The City has defined Cash and Cash Equivalents to 
include cash on hand, demand deposits, and cash 
with fiscal agent. Additionally, each fund's equity in 
the City's investment pool (See Notes on page 45) is 
considered to be a cash equivalent since the funds 
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can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time 
without prior notice or penalty.  

 

2.  Investments: 

All investments, including Pension Funds, are stated 
at fair value, which is either a quoted market price or 
the best available estimate.  

 

3.  Accounts Receivable: 

Accounts receivable are recorded in the 
Governmental, Business-type, Fiduciary, and 
Component Unit funds. Where appropriate, an 
associated allowance for doubtful accounts has been 
established in the related major funds. As of 
September 30, 2003 the allowance for doubtful 
accounts in the General Fund was $186,568. 

 
Property taxes and stormwater fees, which became 
payable during fiscal year 2003 and are uncollected 
as of September 30, 2003 are recorded as receivables, 
net of estimated uncollectibles. The allowances for 
uncollectible real property taxes and personal 
property taxes were $17,210 and $44,630 
respectively, as of year-end. 

 
4.  Due From/Due To: 

To properly allocate daily interest earnings among 
funds, the Due From/Due To (interfund) accounts are 
not used. Instead, interfund transactions are entered 
directly to the cash accounts maintained in a central 
pooled cash account in which all funds participate. 
Interfund due from/due to accounts (both between 
funds and between the primary government and 
component units) are only used at year-end. (See 
Notes on page 83)  

 

5.  Inventories: 

All City inventories are maintained on a consumption 
basis of accounting where items are purchased for 
inventory and charged to the budgetary accounts as 
the items are consumed. Inventories held by the 
General Fund consist principally of general office, 
printing, engineering, traffic control and maintenance 
supplies. Inventories included in the Enterprise 
Funds consist of chemicals, fuel and food 
concessions. Inventories included in the Internal 
Service Funds consist of maintenance parts, tires, 
fuels, and supplies. Inventories are stated at average 
or weighted average cost. Appropriate allowances 
have been recorded for obsolete and surplus items. 

6.  Advances to Other Funds: 

Various funds have made short-term advances in 
anticipation of external financing program develop-
ment. These advances are temporary in nature and 
normally bear interest at the prevailing internal loan 
rate. Long-term advances, if any, are those for which 
the timing of repayment is uncertain; thus, an 
allocable portion of fund balance would be reserved 
in governmental funds. 

 

7.   Capital Assets: 

Property, plant and equipment purchased or acquired 
is carried at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair market 
value as of the date received. The City’s 
capitalization levels are $1,000 on tangible personal 
property, $250,000 on infrastructure, including sewer 
and stormwater lines. For improvements other than 
buildings, the capital outlay must be greater than 
$10,000, extend the estimated useful life for ten 
years, and be greater than 10% of the original cost of 
the asset. Other costs incurred for repairs and 
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation 
on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis 
over the following estimated useful lives: 

    YEARS 
Buildings   4 - 50 
Improvements Other Than Buildings  7 - 25 
Equipment    2 – 20 
Vehicles    2 - 15 
Stormwater and Wastewater Lines 
     and Pump Stations   10 - 50 
Other Infrastructure  10 - 50 
 
The City has a collection of artwork presented both 
in buildings and public outdoor spaces. The true 
value of the art is expected to either be maintained or 
enhanced over time and thus, the art is not 
depreciated. If individual pieces are lost or destroyed, 
the loss is recorded. 

 

While GASB Statement #34 allows a deferral of up 
to September 30, 2006 before a government the size 
of Orlando would be required to record its historical 
infrastructure assets, the City elected (during 2001-
2002) to record its infrastructure assets to enable a 
more complete comparison with other governments 
who may have elected to record the historical 
infrastructure concurrent with their initial 
implementation of Statement #34. Additionally, a 
local government may have elected to use the 
depreciation method or the alternative (maintenance 
of service condition) method in relationship to certain 
long-lived infrastructure assets. While the City has 
acquired an asset management system which a) 
would allow the election to use the alternative 
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method, and b) will provide valuable management 
information, the City has elected to initially 
implement the depreciation method, and will monitor 
and consider, over time, a possible conversion to the 
alternative method. 

 
8.  Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums, and Issuance 
Costs: 

In the governmental funds, bond discounts, bond 
premiums and issuance costs are treated as period 
costs in the year of issue. Bond premiums and 
discounts are shown as an “Other Financing 
Source/Use”. 

 
In the proprietary funds (and for the governmental 
activities, in the Government-wide statements)  bond 
discounts, bond premiums and issuance costs are 
deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds 
using the bonds outstanding method, which 
approximates the effective interest method. Bond 
discounts and premiums are presented as a reduction 
and increase, respectively, of the face amount of the 
revenue bonds payable, whereas issuance costs are 
recorded as other assets. 

 

9.  Deferred Gain/Loss from Current Refunding 
or Advance Refunding of Debt: 

In the proprietary funds (and for the governmental 
activities, in the Government-wide statements) the 
difference between the re-acquisition price (new 
debt) and the net carrying value of the old debt on 
refunded debt transactions is deferred and amortized 
as a component of interest expense using the bonds 
outstanding method over the shorter of the remaining 
life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. The 
deferred account is offset against the new liability. 

 

10. Deferred Revenue:  

In the governmental funds, certain revenue 
transactions have been reported as deferred revenue. 
Revenue can not be recognized until it has been 
earned and it becomes available to finance 
expenditures of the current fiscal period. 

 

In the proprietary funds (and for the governmental 
activities in the Government-wide statements) 
deferred revenue is reported for unearned revenue, 
regardless of its availability. 

H.  REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
EXPENSES 
Substantially all governmental fund revenues are 
accrued. Property taxes are generally billed and 
collected within the same period in which the taxes 
are levied.  

 

Approximately 78% and 95% of the Wastewater 
System and the Solid Waste Management operating 
revenue, respectively, are billed and collected by 
OUC as agent for the City. Cash collected by OUC is 
remitted monthly to the City. The City records all 
revenues billed by OUC through the end of the fiscal 
year. 

 
Expenditures are recognized when the related fund 
liability is incurred except for the following 
permitted by generally accepted accounting 
principles:  

 
General obligation long-term debt 
principal and interest and 
compensated absences are reported, 
if any, only when due.  

Inventory costs are reported in the 
period when inventory items are 
consumed, rather than in the period 
purchased.  

 
1.  Operating Subsidies, Grants, and Impact Fees: 

Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which 
finance either capital or current operations, are 
recorded as non-operating revenue when earned. 

 

The City's wastewater treatment policy requires 
restriction of all moneys collected as impact fees. 
These fees represent a capacity charge for the 
proportionate share of the cost of expanding, over-
sizing, separating or constructing new additions to 
the Wastewater System. The City is obligated to 
expend these funds only to provide expanded 
capacity to the system and is permitted to pay 
applicable debt service on one or more series of 
bonds for the purposes as described in Notes on page 
76. 

 

Deposits received which reserve capacity in the 
City's future wastewater treatment facilities are 
recorded as a liability upon receipt. After completion 
of all legal requirements as stipulated by the City's 
wastewater treatment policy, the moneys are 
recorded as non-operating revenue in the year the 
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requirements are met. The City has pledged 
wastewater impact fees to meet expansion bond debt 
service requirements, and any additional revenue (by 
bond covenant) is set aside as a restriction of net 
assets to be used for either additional system 
expansion projects or principal repayment. 

 

2.  Interfund Transactions: 

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, 
services provided, reimbursements or transfers. 
Loans are reported as receivables and payables as 
appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at 
market or near market rates, are treated as revenues 
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur 
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a 
reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are 
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental 
or proprietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide columnar 
presentation.   

 

3.  Compensated Absences: 

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and 
sick leave and associated employee-related costs 
when earned (or estimated to be earned) by the 
employee. For Proprietary Funds and the 
government-wide Statements, the current portion is 
the amount estimated to be used in the following 
year. In accordance with GAAP, for the 
governmental funds, in the Fund Financial 
Statements, all of the compensated absences are 
considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund 
liability and represents a reconciling item between 
the fund level and government-wide presentations. 
(See Notes on page 61) 

 

NOTE II. - STEWARDSHIP, 
COMPLIANCE, AND 
ACCOUNTABILITY 

A.  COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCE RELATED 
LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS 
The City believes it has no material violations of 
finance related legal and contractual provisions. 

B.  EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER 
APPROPRIATIONS IN INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 
The City has no material excess of expenditures over 
appropriations in individual funds. The budget to 
actual comparison for non-major governmental and 
internal service funds may reflect immaterial excess. 

C.  DEFICIT FUND EQUITY   
One non-major fund had net fund equity in a deficit 
position. The H.P. Leu Gardens special revenue fund  
experienced a deficit of $119,511 due to operating 
losses in the current year. The fund will finance this 
deficit through current operations in FY2003-2004. 

NOTE III. – DETAIL NOTES – ALL 
FUNDS  

A.  ASSETS 
1.  Pooling of Cash and Investments: 

The City maintains a cash management pool for its 
cash and cash equivalents in which each fund and/or 
account or sub-account of a fund participates on a 
dollar equivalent and daily transaction basis. 
Investment earnings (which includes realized and 
unrealized gains and losses as well as interest 
income) is distributed monthly based on average 
daily balances. 

 

The use of daily sweeps of zero balance accounts 
allows for the City's portfolio to be fully invested at 
all times. Although City investment practices avoid 
uninvested deposits, Florida Statutes provide 
established risk sharing collateral poolings by banks 
and savings and loans (which are qualified public 
depositories) that insure local government deposits 
and certificates of deposit (C.D.s) with participating 
"authorized depositories". 

 

The City's cash management pool is considered to be 
a cash equivalent for reporting purposes because it is 
an internally managed mutual fund which allows 
individual funds and sub-funds to, at any time, 
deposit additional cash or make withdrawals without 
prior notice or penalty. The investment earnings on 
the City's cash management pool are reported as part 
of the investing activity. 

 

2.  Investments: 

The City's investment (cash management pool) 
guidelines, except for pension fund and deferred 
compensation assets (See Notes on pages 58 and 61, 
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respectively) and the Trustee Accounts (see schedule 
on page 50), are defined by City ordinance and 
written investment policies, which are approved by 
the City Council. The policy specifies limits by 
instrument and institution (within instrument) and 
establishes a diversified investment strategy, 
minimum credit quality and authorized institutions 
available as counterparties. Implementation and 
direction of investment strategies, within policy 
limits, are established by an internal Investment 
Committee and managed by either internal or 
external money managers. 

 

The fair values of the City’s fixed-maturity 
investments fluctuate in response to changes in 
market interest rates. Increases in prevailing interest 
rates generally translate into decrease in fair values 
of those instruments. Fair values of interest rate-
sensitive instruments may be affected by the credit 
worthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, relative 
values of alternative investments, the liquidity of the 
instrument, and other general market conditions. 

 

Third-Party Portfolio Managers 

On December 4, 2000, the City Council approved a 
staff recommendation to privatize approximately 
85% of the Cash Management Pool. The City would 
continue to manage in-house, the Liquidity, and 
Short (two years or less) Treasury portfolios 
(approximately 15%). In addition to two relatively 
small third-party assignments, the City would hire 
four new managers, two core managers (25% each), 
and two satellite managers (12.5% each). In addition, 
the City has given the two core managers broad 
authority to invest in investment grade (BBB or 
better) corporate notes and bonds and, using their 
own commingled products, to invest in the following: 

      Related 
 Percent   Percentage   
  Commingled           Per     of 
     Products  Manager  Total 
Non U.S. Investment Grade  20.0%  5.0% 
High Yield bonds  8.5%  2.1% 
Emerging Market bonds   8.5%  2.1% 
 

Each core manager’s international commingled 
products are typically in dollars or fully hedged to 
dollars (minimizing the currency risk involved), but 
the City further limited each manager’s unhedged 
capacity to 5.0% of the manager’s portfolio. 

 

The two satellite managers specialize in certain 
markets (mortgages and putable corporate bonds). 
The latitude granted to the core managers for 

strategic use of the domestic high yield market 
(4.25% maximum) complements a separate 
previously selected high yield (BB/B) manager (a 
4.5% allocation). 

The core and satellite managers are measured against 
the Merrill Lynch 1-3 year and 1-5 year government 
indexes, respectively. In addition, approximately 
3.0% of the portfolio is maintained in the Florida 
League of Cities 1-3 year government commingled 
product.  

 

The City uses an independent custodian who takes 
direction from portfolio managers (both in-house and 
external), and independently settles all specific 
instrument trades. The custodian additionally 
provides performance measurement service, which 
(a) compares individual manager performances to 
their respective index monthly, and (b) compares 
manager performance to their respective industry 
peer group quarterly. Each manager has a goal of 
exceeding their respective benchmark, net of fees, 
over a rolling three-year period. Each manager 
reports monthly on their overall guideline 
compliance, which is monitored by both the 
custodian and staff. Additionally, each manager is 
obligated to report compliance exceptions, if any, on 
an occurrence basis. 

 

General Guidelines 

The City's investment policy requires transactions to 
settle trades on a “delivery versus payment” basis 
with securities being held by the City's third party 
custodian on behalf of and in the name of the City. 
The exceptions to this policy are overnight 
repurchase agreements with the City's primary 
banking institution, mutual funds, investments held 
by a broker/dealer under a reverse repurchase 
agreement, and investments with Florida's State 
Board of Administration (SBA) Local Government 
Investment Trust. In accordance with GASB 
Statement #31, the SBA has reported that the Local 
Government Investment Trust, is a “2A-7 like” pool 
and, thus, these investments are valued using the 
pooled share price. 

 

Investments with the SBA may be made or liquidated 
by wire on a same day basis. Based on the SBA's 
investment structure and its availability to all local 
governmental units, individual unit perfection is not 
provided. The City has also developed a master 
repurchase agreement to address overnight, term and 
reverse repurchase transactions and, by policy, will 
only consider repurchase transactions with 
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institutions which have executed a similar master 
repurchase agreement prior to any such transaction. 

 

The Ordinance allows the City to enter into reverse 
repurchase agreements; that is, a sale of securities 
with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase them in 
the future at the same price plus a contract rate of 
interest. The fair value of the securities underlying 
reverse repurchase agreements normally exceeds the 
cash received, providing the dealers a margin against 
a decline in fair value of the securities. If the dealers 
(which are limited to primary dealers) default on their 
contractual obligations to resell these securities to the 
City, or provide securities or cash of at least equal 

value, the City would suffer an economic loss equal 
to the difference between the fair value plus accrued 
interest of the underlying securities and the 
repurchase agreement obligations, including accrued 
interest. There were no holdings in reverse 
repurchase agreements either during the year or at 
September 30, 2003.  

 
The City’s investment policy (a) authorizes the use of 
options, puts, forwards and futures, (b) establishes a 
minimum total portfolio duration of nine months, (c) 
establishes the maximum total portfolio duration of 
five years and (d) allows limited use of high-yield 
corporate, long duration treasuries, international 
investment grade and emerging market bonds.

TOTAL AGGREGATE PORTFOLIO IN-HOUSE MANAGEMENT EXTERNAL MANAGERS
% of Portfolio (2), (8) % of Portfolio (2) % of Portfolio (2), (8)

Actual Actual Maximum Actual Maximum Actual Maximum
Year End Year During By Year During By Year During By

Investment Vehicle: Value (1) End Year Policy End Year Policy End Year Policy

U.S. Government Debt:
Treasury Bills, Notes and Strips $83,762,576 23.30% 26.16% 6.06% 7.71% 17.24% 20.09%
Agencies (3) $0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Direct Obligations $83,762,576 23.30% 26.16% 100.00% 6.06% 7.71% 100.00% 17.24% 20.09% 100.00%

Federal Instrumentality Debt (4) $88,959,571 24.75% 28.42% 45.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 24.75% 28.42% 0.00%

Corporate Debt:
Commercial Paper  [A1/P1] $0 0.00% 4.01% 0.00% 4.01% 0.00% 0.00%
Investment Grade Corporate $81,809,783 22.76% 27.77% 0.00% 0.00% 22.76% 27.77%
Specialty Risk:

Non-US Investment Grade $6,177,420 1.72% 2.53% 12.50% 0.00% 0.00% 1.72% 2.53%
High Yield $21,623,204 6.01% 7.46% 10.00% 0.00% 0.00% 6.01% 7.46%
Emerging Markets $1,687,756 0.47% 1.11% 5.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.47% 1.11%
Un-Hedged Non-Dollar (5) $0 0.00% 0.00% 5.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Specialty Risk Total $29,488,380 8.20% 10.60% 30.00% 0.00% 0.00% 8.20% 10.60%

Total Corporate Debt $111,298,162 30.96% 45.37% 60.00% 0.00% 4.01% 30.96% 36.69%

Mortgage Backed Securities (6) $99,505,638 27.68% 29.75% 35.00% 0.00% 0.00% 27.68% 29.75%

FIxed Income Mutual Funds $8,302,745 2.31% 3.41% 0.00% 0.00% 2.31% 3.41%

Money Market Funds (7) $51,165,087 14.23% 14.23% 40.00% 14.23% 14.23% 0.00% 0.00%

Other Investments:
Repurchase Agreements $0 0.00% 0.00% 20.00% 0.00% 0.00% 20.00% 0.00% 0.00% 20.00%
Cash $0 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

Sum $442,993,780 (8) 123.23% (8) 20.29% 102.94% (8)

Fair Value Adjustment - Assets
in More than One Category (8) -$83,502,253 -23.23%

Total Fair Value (1) $359,491,527 100.00% 20.32% 79.68% 90.00%

Effective Duration 1.47 yrs. 1.96 yrs. 5.0 yrs. 0.20 yrs. 0.42yrs. 1.25 yrs. 1.80 yrs. 2.16 yrs. 6.75 yrs.

 (1)Fair Values Include Accrued Interest.  Total Accrued Interest at the end of the year was $2,616,129.91
 (2)Based on fair value at month end.
 (3) Includes debt issued by agencies of the U.S. Government which are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States.
 (4) Includes investments in the Federal Farm Bank; Federal Home Loan Bank; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.; Federal National Mortgage Association; and

Student Loan Marketing Association.
 (5)Category is considered an overlay on the Non US Investment Grade and Emerging Market Investment limits.
 (6) Included Agency and Non-Agency mortgage pass-throughs and CMOs.  
 (7) Includes investment in the Florida State Board of Administration (SBA). At year end, all investments in this category were in the SBA.

Maximum SBA balance during the year was $51,165,087.03
 (8)Total percentages will not sum to 100% based on some assets of the external managers being considered part of more than one category.   

For example, a FNMA mortgage can be included in both the mortgage category and the federal instrumentality category.

Cash Management Pool
Portfolio Characteristics
as of September 30, 2003
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In addition to the Cash Management Pool schedule, 
which reflects Aggregate, In-House, and External 
categories, the specific manager’s schedule (see page 
49) specifically addresses the individual managers 
(including the In-House portfolio), their dollar value 
and percentage allocation at the end of the year, the 
maximum specific categorical exposures at the end of 
each month and their respective policy limits. 

 

To further analyze the Cash Management Pool, a 
rating category analysis (see page 50) is provided to 
illustrate the relative riskiness of the portfolio. 

 

Trustee Portfolio Guidelines 

The City also maintains trustee accounts for debt 
service related accounts, various construction 
accounts and the CFA trustee account, which are 
invested primarily in U.S. government obligations, 
U.S. agencies and instrumentalities, tax-exempt state 
and local government securities and CDs. The 
investment policy maximums do not apply to trustee 
accounts since each account is specifically limited as 
to types of investments and maturities based on the 
intended uses and covenant restrictions. The schedule 
on page 50 reflects the investments held in the trustee 
accounts. 
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Actual Actual Maximum
Portfolio Year End Year End During By

Value % Value (1)Year (1) Policy 
IN-HOUSE MANAGEMENT $73,043,613

(1) MIN US Treas./Instrumentalities/Agency (2 year Duration Max/Single Issu $21,774,598 29.81% 29.81%

   Effective Duration 0.20yrs. 0.65 yrs. 1.25 yrs.

CORE MANAGER 1 $86,702,261

(1) MIN US Treas./Instrumentalities/Agency $43,640,107 50.3% 28.4% 25.0%

     Corporate $35,172,011 40.6% 42.8% 75.0%

     Mortgages $30,316,731 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

     High Yield (commingle) $1,855,957 2.1% 2.7% 8.5%

     Emerging Markets (commingle) $1,687,756 1.9% 2.1% 8.5%

     Non-US Invest. Grade (commingle) $0 0.0% 4.1% 20.0%

     Un-hedged Non-Dollar Denomin. $0 0.0% 0.0% 5.0%

   Effective Duration 1.29 yrs. 1.94 yrs. +/- .75yr benchmark

CORE MANAGER 2 $86,565,610

(1) MIN US Treas./Instrumentalities/Agency $50,668,793 58.5% 40.6% 25.0%

     Corporate $23,831,238 27.5% 33.2% 75.0%

     Mortgages $7,972,118 9.2% 26.5% 35.0%

     High Yield (commingled) $4,210,986 4.9% 4.9% 8.5%

     Emerging Markets (commingle) $0 0.0% 2.1% 8.5%

     Non-US Invest. Grade (commingle) $6,177,420 7.1% 7.1% 20.0%

     Un-hedged Non-Dollar Denomin. $0 0.0% 0.0% 5.0%

   Effective Duration 2.10 yrs. 2.20 yrs. +/- .75yr benchmark

SATELLITE MANAGER (Mortgage/AB) $45,541,593

(1) MIN US Treas./Instrumentalities/Agency $46,218,851 (5) 101.5% 82.2% 70.0%

     Mortgages $47,384,405 (5) 104.0% 104.0% 100.0%

   Effective Duration 1.19 yrs. 1.78 yrs. 3.50 yrs.

SATELLITE MANAGER (Putable Corp/CMB) $43,779,444

(1) MIN US Treas./Instrumentalities/Agency $10,419,797 23.8% 18.6% 15.0%

     Corporate $23,443,689 53.5% 57.8% 85.0%

     Mortgages $13,195,229 30.1% 31.1% 35.0%

     Non-US Invest. Grade $0 0.0% 0.0% 20.0%

   Effective Duration 2.35 yrs. 2.38 yrs. +/- .50 yr benchmark

OTHER SPECIALTY MANAGER (High Yield) $15,556,260

     High Yield (commingled) $15,556,260 100.00% 100.00% 100.0%

   Effective Duration 3.38 yrs. 4.02 yrs. N/A

OTHER SPECIALTY MANAGER (High Grade) $8,302,745

     High Grade (commingled) $8,302,745 100.00% 100.00% 100.0%

   Effective Duration 1.54 yrs. 1.60 yrs. 2.20 yrs.

Total for the Category $359,491,527

(1) Policy exposures for the "US Treas./Instrumentalities/Agency" category are MINIMUMS, not maximums
(2) Fair Values include accrued interest and cash.
(3) Some Manager's assets are classified in more than one category
(4) Percentage limits reflect individual managers portfolio constraints.  For example, a maximum percentage of 8.5%
     is considered 8.5% of only the manager's portfolio.  If the manager has 25% position of the entire portfolio, the 8.5% represents 
     a MAXIMUM 2.13% portion of the aggregate portfolio
(5)  Due to an unsettled purchase, the portfolio was carrying a negative cash value causing the market value of the assets to be 
     greater than the overall portfolio market value.  No overdraft was charged since the trade was not settled.

 Operating Portfolio By Manager 
September 30, 2003

Manager's Portfolio(2) (3)

(4)

(4)

(4)

(4)

(4)

(4)

(4)
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Aggregate
Portfolio

Treasury 21%
Agency 4%
Instrumentality 24%
   FNMA 15%
   FHLMC 9%
Aaa 24%
Aa 5%
A 10%
Baa 5%
Ba 1%
B 3%
<B 0%
*NR 3%

* Securities are not rated by Moody's Investor Services but are rated by other agencies such as S&P or Fitch.                        
Of the 3%, 2.4% is considered AAA by S&P and the other 0.6% is investment grade quality.                                      

Trustee Account Investment
Portfolio Characteristics

September 30, 2003

% of Portfolio   (1) Modified Duration (Yrs) (1)
Fair Actual  Maximum Actual  Maximum

Investment Vehicle (2) Value Year End During Year Year End During Year

U.S. Government Debt:
Treasury Bills, Notes and Strips 3,545,890$          6.61% 7.78% 0.48 yrs. 0.48 yrs.
State & Local Government Series -                           0.00% 0.00%
Agencies (3) -                           0.00% 0.00%
Direct Obligations 3,545,890            6.61%

Federal Instrumentality Debt (4) 29,690,386          55.38% 57.44% 0.15 yrs. 0.19 yrs.

Corporate Debt:
Commercial Paper  [A1/P1] 8,143,883            15.19% 19.26% 0.15 yrs. 0.15 yrs.
High Grade [A3/A-] -                           0.00% 0.00%
Corporate Debt 8,143,883            15.19%

FIxed Income Mutual Funds -                           0.00% 0.00%

Other Investments:
Municipals 12,000,000          22.38% 22.38% 0.02 yrs. 0.02 yrs.
Money Market Funds 231,665               0.43% 0.43%
Cash 4,063                   0.01% 8.00%
Total Other 12,235,728          22.82%   

Fair Value 53,615,887$        100.00%

Accrued Interest 8,351                   

Total Fair Value 53,624,237          

(1) Based on fair value at each month end.
(2) The minimum permitted credit rating for each Investment Vehicle, other than governmental entities, is reflected in brackets.
(3) Includes debt issued by agencies of the U.S. Government which are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States.
(4) Includes investments in the Federal Farm Bank; Federal Home Loan Bank; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.; Federal National

Mortgage Association; Resolution Funding Corporation and Student Loan Marketing Association.

Operating Portfolio By Credit Quality
September 30, 2003

Quality Breakdown
(Moody's)
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All investments are made based on reasonable 
research as to credit quality, liquidity and 
counterparty risk prior to the investment being 
acquired. 
 
The following schedule details the cash, cash 
equivalents (including the cash management pool), 
trustee and pension portfolios, (see Notes on pages 
47, 50 and 60, respectively), as shown in the 
financial statements.  
 

CASH & INVESTMENTS 9/30/03 
Primary Government: 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents $   349,873,031  
 Investments  52,360,227 
Pension & Agency Funds: 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents 8,920,449 
 Investments 664,943,920 
Component Units         2,386,389 
        Total Cash & Investments $1,078,484,016 
Investments Schedules: 
 Operating Portfolio  $   359,491,527 
 Trustee Portfolio 53,624,237 
 Pension Portfolio     664,943,920 
      Sub-total 1,078,059,684 
Other Cash/Investments: 
 Cash 630,262  
 Cash with Fiscal Agent 4,988 
 Accrued Management Fees            (210,918) 
Total Cash & Investments $1,078,484,016 
 
 
Investment performance should be measured against 
comparable indices, which measure the Portfolio 
Management Programs' investment opportunities, 
liquidity (cash flow), and demand and policy 
restrictions. Since each governmental unit's liquidity 
demands will be different, the following schedule 
reflects the City's operating portfolio performance 
against market indexes and direct U.S. Government 
securities reflective of the short term nature and 
comparable to both the target and policy average 
maximum maturities. 
 

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 
 

  5 Year* 
 % Annual Return Average 
 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 Annual 
City Operating 
  Portfolio 
US Treasury. 
   1-3 Year Index 
US Treasury 
   1-5 Year ndex 
Portfolio Indices**: 
   91 Day T. Bill 
   182 Day T. Bill 
   1 Yr. T. Note 
   2 Yr. T. Note 
   5 Yr. T. Note 

 
5.43 

 
2.62 

 
2.90 

 
1.32 
1.45 
1.82 
3.02 
3.38 

 
5.28 

 
5.65 

 
6.95 

 
1.99 
2.48 
3.76 
6.65 

10.83 

 
8.53 

 
10.38 

 
11.41 

 
5.44 
6.25 
8.44 

10.16 
13.91 

 
5.95 

 
5.79 

 
5.89 

 
5.78 
5.89 
5.33 
4.95 
5.72 

 
3.03 

 
3.23 

 
2.21 

 
4.73 
4.59 
4.26 
1.95 

(2.09) 

 
5.63 

 
5.50 

 
5.82 

 
3.84 
4.12 
4.70 
5.31 
6.20 

 
*  Annualized Return 
**Indices represent market returns for generic securities maintained by 
Merrill Lynch obtained from “Bloomberg”. 

 

3.   Securities Lending: 

The City has addressed securities lending for both its 
operating and pension portfolios. The City has a 
contract with its custodian that allows the custodian, 
acting as agent, to lend securities held in the 
portfolios. The transaction is perceived to be 
invisible to either the third party money managers or 
in-house staff who manage segments of various 
portfolios.  

 

The market for securities lending developed to 
provide temporary access to a large portfolio of 
securities for broker/dealers who might have a need 
to borrow specific instruments. The broker/dealer 
collateralizes their borrowing (in cash or with 
securities) to 102% of the security value plus accrued 
interest and this collateral (when in cash) is adjusted 
daily to maintain the 102% level. If the broker/dealer 
fails to return the security, upon request, then the 
custodian, acting as agent, will utilize the collateral to 
replace the security borrowed. The transaction 
establishes a rebate interest rate (assuming cash 
collateral), which is due back to the broker/dealer 
upon return of the security. The cash is then invested 
short-term and the City and the custodian share in the 
incremental return available above the rebate rate. 
The  short-term fixed income instruments can be 
invested in government securities (treasuries, 
agencies, instrumentalities), commercial paper, 
corporate securities (rated “A” or better), with a 
policy dollar-weighted, average maturity limit of less 
than 30days. While the securities loaned are on a 
rolling daily basis and the cash collateral can be 
deposited and/or withdrawn from the  investment on 
a daily basis, the weighted average maturity duration 
of the  investment at September 30 was 19 days. 

 

The City authorizes the lending of domestic bonds 
and equity securities. The City, as a program 
participant, assumes the risk that (a) the overnight 
investment will not equal or exceed the rebate rate, 
(b) a loss of principal in the overnight investment and 
(c) prior to entering into a recent custodial 
agreement, the risk that the collateral will not be 
sufficient, if called upon to repurchase the lost 
security. As noted above, cash collateral is invested 
in  short-term fixed income instruments. When non-
cash collateral is provided, the collateral must be 
obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government or its agencies and instrumentalities. 
The City cannot pledge or sell these obligations in 
the absence of a default by the borrower. The City 
would have credit risk if at any time the above-
mentioned 102% daily adjusted collateral falls below 
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100%. As of September 30, 2003, the City had no 
credit risk in its security lending activities.  

 

The City periodically reviews the custodian's 
practices to insure fair distribution of lending 
opportunities as well as risk evaluation of prospective 
broker/dealer borrowers. For 2002/2003 the City 
received net income of $105,015 and $193,560 from 
security lending activity for its operating and three 
pension portfolios, respectively. The City has not 
incurred a loss through its participation in this 
program.  

 

For accounting purposes, the Statements of Net 
Assets and Changes in Net Assets reflect the increase 
in assets, liabilities, interest income, and expense 
associated with securities lent.  
 
4.  Property Taxes: 

The City is permitted by State law to levy taxes up to 
10 mills of assessed valuation. The millage rate 
levied by the City for the fiscal years ended 
September 30, 1990 through 2001 was 6.0666 mills. 
For 2001/2002 and 2002/2003 the millage rate  was 
5.6916 and will remain the same for 2003/2004. 
Current tax collections (inclusive of legally available 
early payment discounts) for the City were 
approximately 98% of the total tax levy. The 
property tax calendar provides for the tax revenue to 
be billed and collected within the applicable fiscal 
year. 

 
The tax levy of the City is established by the City 
Council. Under Florida law, the assessment of all 
properties and the collection of all county, municipal, 
special district, and school board property taxes are 
provided by the County's Property Appraiser and Tax 
Collector, who are elected County officials. 

 

The property tax calendar for revenues billed, 
received, and accrued for fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2003 is shown as follows: 

Lien Date  January 1, 2002 
Certification of Taxable Value  July 1, 2002 
Final public hearing to adopt 
    proposed millage rate September 23, 2002 
 Beginning of fiscal year for 
    tax assessment October 1, 2002 
Certification of  final Taxable 
    Value  October 2, 2002 
Tax bills rendered November 1, 2002 
Property Tax Payable: 
    Maximum Discount by  November 30, 2002 
    Due Date  March 31, 2003 
    Delinquent on  April 1, 2003 
Tax Certificates issued for delinquent 
    taxes by  May 31, 2003 
 

5.  Due From Other Governments: 

The following amounts were due from other 
governments as of September 30, 2003: 
 

Name of Government   Amount 
Primary Government: 
Orange County, Florida $  1,087,992 
State of Florida 12,584,223 
Other Local Governments 3,878,127 
U.S. Housing and Urban Development 1,439,884 
Other Federal Grants     1,110,351  
   Total Primary Government $20,100,577 
 
Component Unit: 
Orange County, Florida    $     197,764   
 
Included in the Due From the State of Florida is 
$1,616,000 casualty insurance and $844,000 fire 
insurance, which represents ¾ of the 2003 calendar 
year premium tax collections typically payable to the 
City in July 2004 for contribution to the Police and 
Firefighters pension plans, respectively. The State 
has to determine that the City has annually met 
certain reporting/action requirements to be eligible to 
receive the premium tax distribution. The majority of 
the State’s distribution partially offsets the City’s 
constitutionally required payment of the actuarially 
determined annual contribution. 
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Wastewater System
Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land and land rights 27,651,764 $        - $                        - $                        27,651,764 $        
Construction in Progress 36,378,601 22,408,525 (25,034,767) 33,752,359 

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings 156,731,296 829,398 - 157,560,694 
Improvements 94,388,140 5,802,932 - 100,191,072 
Equipment 106,792,272 4,879,723 (485,956) 111,186,039 
Sewer Lines 209,864,542 13,522,358 - 223,386,900 

Totals at historical cost 631,806,615 47,442,936 (25,520,723) 653,728,828 
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings (48,693,987) (3,397,610) - (52,091,597)
Improvements (76,226,115) (5,640,000) - (81,866,115)
Equipment (89,438,143) (4,588,127) 369,937 (93,656,333)
Sewer Lines (76,886,429) (5,782,106) - (82,668,535)

Total accumulated depreciation (291,244,674) (19,407,843) 369,937 (310,282,580)

Wastewater capital assets, net 340,561,941 $      28,035,093 $        (25,150,786)$      343,446,248 $      

Orlando Centroplex
Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land and land rights 9,214,762 $          - $                        - $                        9,214,762 $          
Depreciable Assets:

Buildings 77,444,911        - - 77,444,911 
Improvements 30,316,831 65,124 - 30,381,955 
Equipment 5,489,380 246,583 (57,370) 5,678,593 

Totals at historical cost 122,465,884 311,707 (57,370) 122,720,221 
Less accumulated depreciation for: - - - - 

Buildings (27,756,760) (1,986,689) - (29,743,449)
Improvements (18,722,641) (1,460,927) - (20,183,568)
Equipment (5,136,185) (197,150) 44,851 (5,288,484)

Total accumulated depreciation (51,615,586) (3,644,766) 44,851 (55,215,501)

Orlando Centroplex capital assets, net 70,850,298 $        (3,333,059)$        (12,519)$             67,504,720 $        

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
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(continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Parking System
Non-Depreciable Assets

Land and land rights 13,004,855 $       - $                       - $                        13,004,855 $       
Construction in Progress 930,786 - (930,786) - 

Depreciable Assets
Buildings 59,413,069 7,024,479 - 66,437,548 
Improvements 3,497,489 - - 3,497,489 
Equipment 1,372,535 44,097 (8,909) 1,407,723 

Totals at historical cost 78,218,734 7,068,576 (939,695) 84,347,615 
Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings (27,473,482) (2,567,795) - (30,041,277)
Improvements (2,859,564) (64,787) - (2,924,351)
Equipment (1,248,307) (108,251) 8,662 (1,347,896)

Total accumulated depreciation (31,581,353) (2,740,833) 8,662 (34,313,524)

Parking System capital assets, net 46,637,381 $       4,327,743 $         (931,033)$           50,034,091 $       

Stormwater Utility
Non-Depreciable Assets

Land and land rights 2,104,404 $         1,474,315 $         - $                        3,578,719 $         
Construction in Progress 1,626,808 5,266,671 (4,198,705) 2,694,774 

Depreciable Assets  
Buildings 250,353 - - 250,353 
Equipment 387,345 16,403 (50,114) 353,634 
Sewer Lines 80,384,917 8,149,631 - 88,534,548 

Totals at historical cost 84,753,827 14,907,020 (4,248,819) 95,412,028 
Less accumulated depreciation for  

Buildings (16,690) (16,690) - (33,380)
Equipment (291,472) (36,040) 45,685 (281,827)
Sewer Lines (29,908,922) (2,157,447) -                          (32,066,369)

Total accumulated depreciation (30,217,084) (2,210,177) 45,685 (32,381,576)

Stormwater Utility capital assets, net 54,536,743 $       12,696,843 $       (4,203,134)$       63,030,452 $       

Solid Waste Management
Non-Depreciable Assets

Land and land rights 71,165 $              - $                       - $                        71,165 $              
Depreciable Assets

Buildings 1,402,289 - - 1,402,289 
Improvements 426,850 - - 426,850 
Equipment 1,210,420 29,290 (7,200) 1,232,510 

Totals at historical cost 3,110,724 29,290 (7,200) 3,132,814 
Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings (638,220) (59,732) - (697,952)
Improvements (405,600) (21,250) - (426,850)
Equipment (1,075,274) (61,552) 5,606 (1,131,220)

Total accumulated depreciation (2,119,094) (142,534) 5,606 (2,256,022)

Solid Waste Management capital
assets, net 991,630 $            (113,244)$          (1,594)$               876,792 $            

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

      

        -55-



CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA  
  
  

   
-56- 

 

7.  Long-Term Ground Lease: 

In the mid-1980s, the City determined that an 
adjacent hotel would assist in the full utilization of 
the City's Centroplex facilities, which included the 
75,000 sq. ft. Expo Center (a convention and 
exposition facility), the 2,500-seat Bob Carr 
Performing Arts Centre, and a 17,000-seat arena. In 
February 1985, the City entered into a lease with Py-
Vavra Development, Inc. (lessee) for property carried 
on the City's books at $140,000 and contiguous to the 
Expo Centre. The term of the lease is 75 years, with 
the provision that the lessee constructs and maintains 
a first-class hotel with first and second floor access 
into the Expo Centre. 

 

The lessee agreed to pay a base rent plus a contingent 
rent based on a percentage of the gross room 
revenues. Florida Statutes provide that while the land 
still owned by the City is not taxable, the leasehold 
improvements and tangible personal property 
estimated at $15,000,000 are subject to all ad 
valorem property taxes. The base rent is $50,000 a 
year. The base rent is subordinate to all debt service 
on the facility, the base management fee and all 
ordinary operating expenses. Unpaid base rent is 
cumulative without interest. Since the City's 
payments have subordinate priorities to the cash flow 
stream, no payments have been received and the 
accumulated unpaid base rent at September 30, 2003 
is $819,423.  
 
8.  Component Unit (CFA) Lease Receivables: 

a. Long-term Skybox Lease - During 1990, the City 
entered into a 25-year lease with Florida Citrus 
Sports Events, Inc. (FCSE) for 28 of the 30 skyboxes 
at the Citrus Bowl. FCSE leased the boxes from the 
City for a period of 25 years and will pay rent to 
amortize the City's internal loan, which provided for 
the City's construction costs, plus interest. The lease 
payments were calculated on a fixed-rate basis at 
11%. The City financed the construction of this 
leased asset on a variable rate basis and expects to 
receive a reasonable incremental profit for bearing 
the fixed to variable rate risk through the rental rate 
structure. The lease is accounted for as a capital lease 
in the Civic Facilities Authority, a component unit.  

 

The lease agreement provides for FCSE to be 
responsible for the lease payments and the operating 
costs of the leased facility. The agreement also 
allows, under certain circumstances, for the first 
mortgage holder to step into the shoes of FCSE in 
their relationship to the City. 

b. Building Lease - On August 12, 1991, the City 
entered into a 25-year lease agreement with Florida 
Citrus Sports Events (FCSE) for a portion of the 
33,000 sq. ft. office building and conference center 
located on the southern part of the Citrus Bowl site. 
FCSE pays rent on 8,637 sq. ft. of office space and 
fees related to expenses for the conference facility. 
The base rent was $8 per sq. ft. for the first 5 years, 
which increased by the cumulative increase in CPI 
for the sixth year, not to exceed 10%. In years 6-10, 
the CPI adjustment cannot exceed 2% in any year, 
with years 11-16 and 17-25 similarly capped at 3% 
and 4%, respectively. The lease is accounted for as 
an operating lease in the Civic Facilities Authority, a 
component unit. 

 

The availability of this conference center and office 
building has positively impacted the Citrus Bowl's 
position as a sports venue. 

B.  LIABILITIES 
1.  Pension Plan: 

Traditionally, the City has maintained three separate 
single employer defined benefit pension plans for 
firefighters, police officers and substantially all other 
full-time City employees (including Component Unit 
employees), which are maintained as Pension Trust 
Funds. Although the assets of the plans are often 
commingled for investment purposes, each plan's 
assets may be used only for the benefit of the 
members and beneficiaries of that plan in accordance 
with the terms of each plan document. 

 

As of October 1, 1998, the City created a new 
Defined Contribution (DC) Plan for all general 
employees hired on or after that date. At the same 
time, the existing Defined Benefit (DB) plan was 
closed to new participants. In addition, each 
employee in the  DB plan could elect to stay in the 
DB plan or move the present value of his or her 
future benefits to the DC plan any time prior to 
October 1, 2001. To avoid potential inequities, 
employees with ten years of service as of October 1, 
1998 have until the end of their City career to make 
this choice.  

 

The Florida Constitution requires local governments 
to make the actuarially determined contribution to 
their DB plans. The Florida Division of Retirement 
reviews and approves each local government's 
actuarial report prior to it being appropriate for use 
for funding purposes. Additionally, the State collects 
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two locally authorized insurance premium surcharges 
(one for the Police Pension Plan on casualty 
insurance policies and one for the Firefighter Pension 
Plan on certain real and personal property insurance 
policies within the corporate limits) which can only 
be distributed after the State has ascertained that the 
local government has met their actuarial funding 
requirement for the then most recently completed 
fiscal year. 

 

Although the City produces a comprehensive annual 
financial report for each of its three pension plans, in 
the interest of full disclosure, the City has elected to 
include all of the required disclosures in both the 
pension funds’ comprehensive annual financial 
reports and the City's comprehensive annual financial 
report. All of the pensions’ comprehensive annual 
financial reports can be obtained from the City of 
Orlando’s Chief Financial Officer. Investments are 
reported at fair value and are managed by third party 
money managers. The City's independent custodian 
and the individual money managers price each 
instrument (using various third party pricing sources) 
and reconcile material differences. Investments that 
do not have an established market are reported at 
estimated fair value. Performance reporting, manager 
fees and the City's asset valuation are based on the 
custodian's determination of value.  

 

The City hired a third-party administrator (who offers 
over 30 investment options including five model 
portfolios) to assist individual employees in the 
management of their individual DC accounts. 
Additionally, for the period 1998-2001 the City 
elected to hire a separate consultant to educate 
employees on their election (to stay in the DB or 
move to the DC), whose only objective was to assist 
the individual employees in making an informed 
choice. 

 

The following schedule is derived from the 
respective actuarial reports and City information for 
the three DB pension plans as of October 1, 2003; 
and with regard to DB contributions for fiscal year 
2002-2003, based on the October 1, 2002 actuarial 
report. A separate column is provided for the DC 
plan (although an actuarial analysis is not required) 
to assist in the user analysis. 
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The City has traditionally contributed the annual 
required contribution (ARC) and thus has never had, 
or had needed, to report a net pension obligation 
(NPO). 
 
Three-Year Trend Information for the City’s Defined 
Benefit Pension Plans: 
 

 Annual Pension  
 

Fiscal Year  
Ending 

 
Cost 

(in  millions) 

 
 

Contributed 

Net  
Pension 

Obligation 
9/30/01 $ 9.70 100% $0 
9/30/02 10.46 100% $0 
9/30/03 15.25 100% $0 

 
The Pension Boards for the defined benefit plans, 
based on recommendations from the actuary and 
staff, utilize a four-year forward market smoothing 
approach to asset valuation for actuarial calculation 
purposes. Under this approach, one-quarter of the 
difference between (a) assumed and actual 
investment income for  the General  Employees'  and  
Firefighter Plans and (b) the realized and unrealized 
gains (losses) for the Police Plan are recognized in 
the year of occurrence and the remaining three-
quarters is recognized over the next three fiscal years. 

 
The three DB pension plans participate in a pooled 
investment portfolio, which provides for dollar-
weighted equivalent participation in both the 
investment return and associated costs. The following 
schedules reflect the actuarial versus fair value of 
each of the three pension programs and the types of 
investments held by each manager style: 
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Distribution by Fund
As of September 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

General Fire-
Employees’ Fighter Police Total

Asset Valuation:
Actuarial Value 158,371$       188,560$       (1) 248,848$       (1) 595,779$       
Fair Value of Investments and Cash Equivalents 150,188 178,144 (1) 254,810 (1) 583,142 
Fair Value of Investments and Cash Equivalents (under) Actuarial Value (8,183)$           (10,416)$         5,962 $            (12,637)$         

 
(1) The Actuarial Value and Fair Value of Investments and Cash Equivalents as represented here do not include the State's Excess Contributions

which are Reserved for Extra Benefits.  In thousands, those amounts are $1,644 for Firefighters and $1,171 for Police.
 

 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES', FIREFIGHTER AND POLICE  PENSION FUNDS
Distribution by Asset Type
As of September 30, 2003

(in thousands)

General
Employees' (1) Firefighters Police Total

Style
Fixed Income

Short Term 2,277 $             747 $                893 $                3,917 $             
Core 40,451 47,653 67,948 156,052 
Mortgages 11,254 13,310 18,681 43,245 

Equity-Index Funds
S&P 500 - 6,685 10,031 16,716 
Large Capital 15,040 - - 15,040 
Large Capital Value - 3,184 4,114 7,298 
Medium Capital Growth - 13,818 20,077 33,895 

Equity - Active:
International 17,494 14,998 22,713 55,205 
Large Capital Value 14,722 12,201 18,133 45,056 
Large Capital Growth 15,002 14,398 21,160 50,560 
Medium Capital Value 11,459 14,964 21,769 48,192 
Medium Capital Growth - - - - 
Small Capital Growth 11,403 19,946 29,074 60,423 

Real Estate 10,265 16,657 19,198 46,120 
Accrued Income 498 622 884 2,004 
Total Defined Benefit Plans 149,865 179,183 254,675 583,723 

Equity in Cash Management Pool 323 605 1,306 2,234 
Total 150,188 $         179,788 $         255,981 $         585,957 

401a Defined Contribution (DC) (1)(2) 81,221 
     (General Employees not under DB)

Total Pension Plans 667,178 $         

(1) The General Employees' DB and DC Plans include Component Units' employees.
(2) The third-party administrator offers over 30 investment choices which each participant may personally utilize to build an individual portfolio.

Defined Benefit Plans (DB)
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2.  Other Employee Benefits: 

a. Deferred Compensation - The City offers its 
employees (including the component unit employees) 
a deferred compensation plan created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, 
available to all City employees, permits them to defer 
a portion of their salary until future years. The 
deferred compensation is not available to employees 
until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseen 
non-reimbursed emergency. 

 

It is the opinion of the City's legal counsel that the 
City has no liability for losses under the plan but 
does have the duty of due care that would be required 
of an ordinary prudent investor in overall program 
oversight.  

 

Since the City has no control over these assets, other 
than periodically testing the market to retain or 
replace the 457 third-party administrator, these assets 
are not reflected in the City’s statements. The 
following schedule reflects basic information 
regarding the 457 program. 

 

 Fiscal Year  
2002-2003   2001-2002 

Eligible employees 2,958 3,130 
Participants 1,389 1,476 
Plan Assets (in millions) $71.9 $59.2 
Annual Employee 
    Contribution (in millions) $  5.6     $  5.3   
 
b.  Vacation and Sick Leave - The City has a 
personal leave program for permanent non-
bargaining employees, the police union, and contract 
employees. Under this program, in lieu of sick leave 
accrual (which was discontinued January 1, 1996) 
each employee's annual vacation/personal leave 
accrual increased by 56 (63 for the sworn police 
officers) hours, while all accumulated sick leave 
balances were frozen. The sick leave balance can be 
accessed starting on the fourth consecutive workday 
(or a fifth aggregate day for same illness) for 
specified health-related absences. Upon retirement, 
employees with 20 years of service will be paid one-
third of the sick leave balance, while employees with 
25 years will be paid one-half, neither of which can 
exceed 700 hours. All accumulated personal leave 
will be payable at either termination or retirement. 

 

Employees in the firefighter and Laborers' 
International Union of North America (L.I.U.) 
bargaining units are covered under negotiated 
contracts, which provide for both vacation and sick 
leave accruals. All vacation hours are available upon 
termination or retirement, but sick leave balances are 
available only upon retirement at rates dependent 
upon length of service and workday (shift or regular). 

 

The City estimates sick, vacation and personal leave 
liability by (a) having one of the City's pension 
actuaries estimate the future obligation, (b) 
discounting the obligation using the same actuarial 
method employed for pension purposes and (c) 
including the City's obligation to pay associated 
employer payroll taxes. In estimating which 
employees will eventually be eligible to be paid for a 
portion of their sick leave and the related liability, the 
actuary uses the turnover and salary increase 
assumptions employed for pension purposes. (See 
schedule on page 101) 

 

Those funds presented under the full economic 
resources basis of accounting (the Proprietary and 
government-wide statements) show a current portion 
(amount expected to be expended in the subsequent 
year) and non-current portion of the compensated 
absences liability. Consistent with GAAP guidelines 
in the Governmental Funds statements none of the 
liability is expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources; therefore, a current 
liability is not presented and is accounted for 
separately. 

 

c. Long-Term Disability - The Firefighter and 
Police Pension plans incorporate disability benefits 
into the pension plans and related actuarial costs. The 
General Employee Disability Income Plan is a 
separate Benefit Trust. Annually employees may 
elect to purchase coverage with benefits ranging from 
40% to 66 2/3% of monthly compensation. Benefits 
will be reduced by the amount of any disability 
income benefit, which may be paid in whole or in 
part by contributions of the City, such as disability 
benefits from Social Security or workers 
compensation. Employees receiving disability 
benefits will be granted pensionable credited service 
at ½ of the normal rate for those periods covered by 
long-term disability payments. 

 

d.  Post Retirement Benefits - Retirees under all of 
the City's Pension Plans continue their life insurance 
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(at a reduced level of $2,500) and continue to receive 
retiree health insurance benefits at various 
percentages of the City's cost. If an employee is able 
to retire (based on pension plan criteria), the City will 
participate in the retiree’s health care cost based on 
the following schedule: 
 
 Years of          % City 

 Service   Participation 
     10       50% 
     15       75% 
    20     100% 

 
The City is statutorily required to permit participation 
in the health insurance program by retirees on a 
pooled non-differentiated basis. The City, by policy, 
has elected to provide some retiree’s total or partial 
cost reduction. 
 
This is a significant liability, where applicable, and 
GASB has established a project, which should lead to 
a new standard. Once GASB addresses this issue and 
provides guidance on reporting estimated liabilities, 
the City will revisit its funding strategy. GASB plans 
to issue the final statement in the second quarter of 
2004. 

 
Currently, the City is financing the post employment 
retirement benefits (both life insurance and health 
care) on a pay-as-you-go basis and expenditures for 
these insurance premiums are recorded in the General 
Fund. The following schedule reflects the costs of the 
City's health care program and comparable 
information for the previous two years: 

 
 For  the Fiscal Year Ended 9/30 

 2003  2002  2001 
Participants 
  Active 
  Retired 
Total Employer Costs: 
(In thousands) 
  Active 
  Retired 
Costs as a % of Active  
  Payroll: 
  Active 
  Retired 

 
2,915 
1,195 

 
 

$17,765 
  3,408   

 
 

11.14% 
2,14% 

  
2,993 
1,145 

 
 

$13,161 
    3,019 

 
 

8.65% 
1.99% 

  
2,867 

  1,173 
 
 

$9,183 
  2,214 

 
 

6.69% 
1.61% 

Total 13.28%  10.64%   8.30% 
 
3.  Major Capital or Construction Programs: 

a. Wastewater System - The City operates 
three major Wastewater treatment facilities, which 
provide the following million gallons per day 
(MGD) treatment capacity: 

   MGD City 
  Capacity Share 
 

Conserv I   7.5 7.5 
Conserv II    25.0 21.2 
Iron Bridge   40.0 20.7 
Total   72.5 49.4  
 
Portions of the construction costs of the Conserv II 
and the Iron Bridge plants were provided by other 
local governmental units on a pro rata basis of 
allocated capacity. Although the City retains control, 
the units are obligated to pay on an ongoing basis for 
its share of the actual flows treated. The following 
schedule reflects each governmental unit's capacity 
and related percentage of cost obligation: 

 
 Conserv II  Iron Bridge 
 % of 

Plant 
MGD 

Capacity 
 % of 

Plant 
MGD 

Capacity 
Cities of: 
Orlando 
Casselberry 
Maitland 
WinterPark 
Counties 
   of: 
Orange 
Seminole 

 
    84.8 
          - 
          - 
      4.0 
 
 
    11.2 
          -  

 
21.2 

- 
- 

1.0 
 
 

2.8 
     - 

  
  51.66 
    8.49 
    2.75 
  14.90 
 
 
      .94 
  21.26 

 
20.662 
  3.395 
  1.100 
  5.962 

 
 

    .375 
  8.506 

   100.0%     25.0  100.00% 40.000 
 

Additionally, in 1983, the City and Orange County 
entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, 
which provided for the division of responsibilities in 
the design, construction, and operation of a joint 
project called Conserv II. Each entity was to expand 
its westerly plant to 25 MGD and pay for one-half of 
the "joint facilities" which consisted of  transmission 
pumping stations, approximately 20 miles of 
pipeline, a distribution center, the citrus distribution 
network, and the Rapid Infiltration Basins system 
(RIBs). After completion of construction and 
certification to EPA, ownership vested in both 
Orange County and the City. The joint use system is 
operated by an independent contractor who bills the 
parties proportionately based on actual flows 
transmitted. While the distribution system has been 
operational since January 1987, the City and County 
continue to share in the cost to expand the citrus 
spraying acreage and RIBs necessary to support 
growth in the respective service areas. 

 
System Contingencies/Concerns 

Conserv II (which serves the western service area) is 
designed to utilize agricultural and landscape 
irrigation and Rapid Infiltration Basins system (RIBs) 
for land application effluent reuse. The joint 
City/County initiative presently has 8,716 acres 
committed to reclaimed water delivery contracts and 
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2,900 acres of RIBs. Loss of existing spray contract 
acreage is no longer a great concern as reclaimed 
water has been identified as a valuable water 
resource in this area. As agricultered land is 
developed, reclaimed water will continue to be used 
for irrigation by the subsequent property owners. 
This will diversify the customer base for Conserv II 
and improve system reliability. 
  

Although the system currently has substantial excess 
capacity, the Conserv I service area (southeast 
Orlando) will require expanded treatment and 
disposal capacity in the near future. While the 
treatment plant was designed to be easily expanded, 
the challenge for Conserv I is the identification of 
alternative effluent utilization options. Currently, 
Conserv I utilizes both landscape irrigation reuse and 
RIBs to accommodate the plant effluent flow. Unlike 
the Conserv II area, which has well-drained, sandy 
soils, the area adjacent to Conserv I is characterized 
by low-lying land and wetlands. This severely limits 
both the RIB and irrigation capacity at Conserv I 
during wet-weather periods. The land on which 
Conserv I RIBs is located is subject to recapture by 
GOAA for aviation related purposes.  

 
The City has completed an analysis of five alternative 
solutions to the Conserv I expanded effluent 
utilization challenge. Based on technical feasibility, 
ease of implementation and both capital and 
operational efficiencies, the staff recommended that 
the Conserv I facility should be effectively 
decommissioned (targeted for mid-2006) and present 
and future flows should be rerouted to the City’s Iron 
Bridge facility.  

 
Having made significant commitment to develop a 
residential reuse system in the developing Southeast 
area, where significant new residential development 
is anticipated over the next decade, the City a) 
designed a system which redirected the wastewater to 
a to-be-expanded Iron Bridge plant, and b) designed 
a reuse pipe line system, from the Iron Bridge plant 
to the previously built reuse system in the Southeast 
area. Several reuse opportunities along the pipeline 
route were also considered in the pipeline design. 

 
With the decision to decommission the Conserv I 
plant, the City will also need to determine how the 
Conserv I plant facilities might be redeveloped as 
part of the Southeast area reuse system and which 
portion would need to be either written off or have 
accelerated depreciation applied to coincide with the 
scheduled decommissioning.  

 
Building treatment plants, which outperform 
established effluent quality standards, is not the 
City’s problem. Meeting zero discharge decrees and 
waste load limits on local tributaries has been the 
challenge. The citrus irrigation (Conserv II) and 
artificial wetlands (a 1,200 acre cell oriented facility 
related to the Iron Bridge plant) facilities have both 
received national and international recognition for 
engineering achievement. The City's staff, with their 
consultants, will continue to select the most cost 
efficient alternatives to ensure the ongoing 
availability of capacity to meet the demands of 
growth.  

 
During 2001-2002 the City changed its development 
code to require residential reuse systems in areas 
where reuse will be available. This change, along 
with the completion of the reuse system to serve the 
southeast, will add an expanded reuse option to 
complement alternative effluent disposal alternatives. 

 
Ongoing Construction Programs 

The System's ongoing construction program 
involves: 

(a) Continued expansion to the Conserv II 
Distribution Network's agricultural and 
landscape irrigation acreage and RIBs, 
which is shared equally by the City and 
County. 

(b) As indicated previously, the City has 
initiated final design work on the 
decommissioning of Conserv I and the 
redirection of flow to the Iron Bridge 
facility as a solution to the Conserv I service 
area capacity challenge. The City has 
secured the services of several engineering 
companies to assist in the implementation of 
the program. Construction of the related 
projects is anticipated to begin in mid-2004 
with completion in early 2006. This 
schedule will allow the City to both meet the 
demands for increased capacity and vacate 
the RIB property in advance of GOAA’s 
reclamation efforts.  

(c) Improving the integrity of existing facilities 
and expanding the capacity of the System's 
collector network.  

(d) In connection with the City’s annexation 
program, the wastewater system is routinely 
installing new collector systems in newly 
annexed areas previously served by 
individual septic tanks. 
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(e) Extending the reclaimed water system 
related to the southeast and Conserv II 
service areas to serve additional residential 
and commercial areas. 

 
Currently, the City anticipates meeting all or most of 
the System's capital needs over the next five years 
with minimum, if any, additional long-term 
borrowing required. The City anticipates up to 
$35,000,000 in variable rate borrowing to facilitate 
short-term cash flow requirements, for a period not to 
exceed 7 years, related to this capital agenda. 

 
b.  Parking System - The City's Parking System 
operates on-street, off-street and garage spaces as 
well as providing parking management services to 
the City Centroplex and Florida Citrus Bowl 
operations. 

 

Parking System 

  Non- 
 System System City 
 Spaces Spaces Spaces Total 
On-Street 986 - - 986 
Off-Street 1,240 - - 1,240 
Garage 3,615 1,871 1,116 6,602 
 5,841 1,871 1,116 8,828 
 
The System spaces and the net parking fine revenue 
provide coverage for the System's debt. Parking 
rates/fees vary by type (on-street, off-street and 
garage) and by location. 

 

Understanding the potential efficiencies of working 
collectively with other governmental units and with 
the private sector, the City has established the 
concept of “non-system” spaces. Prior to the 
construction of any new facility, the City will solicit 
interested individuals (among these are other 
governmental entities, churches, and/or private 
businesses) who may wish to become long-term 
licensees in the to-be-constructed City facility. The 
licensee has the obligation to provide for their 
portion of the capital cost and on a recurring basis be 
responsible for an allocable share of operating and 
maintenance costs. In exchange for these payments, 
they receive a licensure right to a number of spaces 
within the facility over a 50-year or life of the garage 
term. 

 

The City and the County entered into a new 
agreement which will allow the construction of a 

750-car expansion of the Courthouse garage on 
jointly owned land (designated for further garage 
expansion). The County has agreed to purchase 150 
licensure spaces, with the Parking System owning 
and operating the remaining 600. The Parking 
System borrowed $6,000,000 from the City’s 
Banking Fund to substantially finance its capital 
shares, and opened the expanded facility in August 
2003.. 

 

Continuing to maximize the development potential 
within the downtown area, the City, working with the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA), constructed 
two transit-oriented garages (in the “City spaces”). 
These garages are located within the City’s 
Centroplex area and provide evening and weekend 
support to the 17,000-seat arena, the 2,500-seat 
performing arts center, and the 75,000 square foot 
meeting/exhibit hall facility. Additionally, the City 
spaces are connected by the Lymmo system (a 
dedicated lane, natural gas powered bus oriented 
downtown people mover system that supports the 
southern half of the City’s downtown area). The 
Lymmo system allows 5,486 structured spaces within 
the southern half of the downtown area to be 
connected to the Centroplex facility and the 1,116 
City spaces to be connected to over 5,000,000 square 
feet of office space (within a 2-3 minute walk of the 
various Lymmo stations). The net revenues from the 
operations of the city space facilities of $450,922 
pursuant to the FTA agreement must be used to offset 
transit oriented (in this instance the downtown 
Lymmo system) costs. The residual support of the 
no-fare box Lymmo system is provided by a junior 
lien commitment of the Parking System, the 
Centroplex and CRA Downtown District. During 
2002-2003, related operating subsidy to the Lymmo 
system was $796,974 from CRA Downtown District 
and $50,000 from Centroplex. 

 
c.  Parks/Open Space Initiative 

During 1998/1999, the Mayor introduced and the 
City Council unanimously approved a $30,000,000 
Parks/Open Space Initiative. As a rapidly growing 
City, there is a need to assure adequate open space, 
softball, youth baseball, and soccer fields to meet our 
projected 2015 population.   

 
The revised $35,500,000 agenda (for the years 1999 
through 2004)  focuses on (a) four major cornerstone 
parks (b) enhancement to existing parks; (c) 
development of pocket (smaller) parks, and (d) new 
park land acquisition and development. Hopefully, 
the City can leverage this commitment through 
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cooperative efforts with other governments and 
grants to further expand the initiative. 

 
This program has spent 82% of the original 
$35,500,000 agenda, leaving a remaining unspent 
amount of approximately $6,233,000 as of 
September 30, 2003. Through FY 2003, the 
Parks/Open Space Initiative has (a) completed the 
construction of 18 parks and 2 major cornerstone 
parks, and (b) begun construction on several of the 
remaining parks projects. It is anticipated that the 
entire Parks Initiative of 28 parks and 4 major 
cornerstone parks shall be completed during  FY 
2004.  

 
4.  Other Commitments and Contingencies: 

The City has entered into several agreements, which 
may result in future financial obligations. 

 
a.  Development Related Financing 

Over the last several years, the City issued or 
committed to issue three significant future 
development-related financings. For the first two of 
these transactions, the City had previously committed 
to building Interstate 4 (I-4) interchanges using Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF). To assure the property 
owner was adequately motivated to pursue 
development, the City required the additional 
commitment of the developer to pay special 
assessments for all or a portion of the related debt 
service. If and when development reaches certain 
projected development benchmarks, the developer’s 
obligation to pay special assessments will be released 
or the bonds will be refunded. 

 
Conroy Road/I-4 Interchange 

In 1991, the City entered into an agreement with the 
developer related to a 406-acre annexation to create 
another TIF district to address the transportation 
blight issue associated with that property. A TIF 
district captures the incremental property tax revenue 
(from the City and the County), which is used for 
either capital, or debt service payments related to 
capital expenditures in the district. Previously, the 
City, the County, the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization and the Florida Department of 
Transportation (DOT) have each included an 
Interstate 4 interchange at that location in their 
respective transportation network plans.  

 

The City, CRA and the developer structured a 
financing plan which involves (a) the creation of a 

Special Assessment district related to the developer's 
property, (b) the sale of Special Assessment bonds to 
finance the project, (c) a separate cooperation 
agreement which provides for the City/CRA to 
advance/contribute available TIF revenues and 
transportation impact fees, (d) the opportunity for the 
developer to prepay the transportation impact fee and 
sell the related credits to a land purchaser/vertical 
developer, and (e) a deferral of the $2,317,350 
required payment to the State for main-line 
improvement until excess TIF revenues can be made 
available. 

 

The series A & B bonds ($28,010,000 and 
$4,830,000 respectively) were sold on December 9, 
1998. The series B bonds, which provide capitalized 
interest on both the A and B bonds for three years, 
are expected to be paid off by paid or pre-paid 
transportation impact fee payments received 
coincident with actual sales of land to second tier (or 
vertical) builder. As of November 1, 2003, the Series 
B bonds were paid off.  

 
The interchange (opened in March 2001) has lead to: 
a) the opening of a 1,300,000 sq. ft. two-story urban 
styled high-end mall; b) annexation of adjacent 
parcel (not in the TIF district) which have provided 
new development in the form of large box retail and 
multi-family rental; and c) limited office and 
additional retail development within the district. 
While a significant portion of the development rights 
(office, retail, hotel, etc.) are yet to be realized, the 
partial value recognition of the high-end mall, two 
office towers, and land value appreciation have 
provided estimated TIF revenue ($2,403,442) for 
2003-2004 (based on development as of January 1, 
2003) which will provide 105% coverage of average 
debt services. Since 2003-2004 is the last of the 
designed, interest-only period, the City/CRA 
anticipate making the initial $792,752 deposit into 
the deferred payment obligation to the State. 
Additional development completed and/or started in 
2003 further indicates that actual use of special 
assessment revenue to pay debt service appears to be 
reasonably remote. 
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Republic Drive/I-4 Interchange 

The City worked with Universal Studios on a 
transportation blight related tax-increment financing 
project, which constructed the $43,100,000 Republic 
Drive Interchange and enhanced the Kirkman Road 
Interchange to I-4. Construction was completed in 
FY 2000.  Republic Drive has been subsequently 
renamed Universal Boulevard. 

 

With the refinancing (replacing Special Assessment 
bonds with Tax Increment bonds) in 2002 this 
transaction met its long-term performance objective 
in five years at least two years ahead of original 
forecast. The excess tax increment revenue (over 
debt service) returned to the City and the County for 
2002/2003 was $2,435,084 and $2,209,364, 
respectively. 

 

U.S. Navy Base Reuse 

With the September 1993 announcement by the 
United States Navy of the intention to close the 
Orlando Naval Training Center (which represents 
four properties and 2,075 acres within the City 
limits), the Mayor developed and co-chairs a Base 
Reuse Commission to develop a plan for the 
redeployment of this property to replace the 
economic impact of the base closure and integrate 
these properties into the fabric of the community. 
The proposed use for the property includes office, 
retail, single-family and multi-family housing, 
recreational centers and public space.  

 

Main Base 

While the main base (1,098 acres) has substantial 
potential for redevelopment, it equally involves 
significant redevelopment costs related to demolition, 
asbestos removal and utility alignment and 
replacement. Since the City and the Navy wished to 
see the property developed by the private sector, the 
City was interested in controlling the developer 
selection process. The City and Navy entered into an 
agreement which provides for the City to pay the 
Navy $1.2 million at the time of conveyance, to 
control the selection of the redeveloper and to share 
in the sales proceeds with the Navy. From the first 
$10 million of sale proceeds, the Navy would receive 
75% and from any moneys in excess of $10 million, 
the Navy would receive 60%. 

 

During the period 1998-2001 the City was involved 
in a rather complicated initiative to a) select a 

redevelopment group, b) initiate and complete the 
transfer from the Navy to the City and then to 
Developer  and c) facilitate the demolition phase of 
the redevelopment project for the main base. On 
October 24, 2001, with the repayment of an interim 
demolition cost participation loan of $12,800,000, 
the City’s financial commitment designed to 
accelerate the redevelopment process were concluded 
effectively with no cost to the City. 

 

Annex 

With regard to the annex properties, before the large 
picture agreement (where the City elected to control 
the redevelopment), the Navy transferred 660 single 
family units to the City for $1,800,000 which have 
been sold (for $3,000,000), redeveloped and sold to 
individual homeowners. A second segment 
(approximately 68 acres) has been transferred 
through the Department of the Interior (for park land 
use). A third segment (approximately 50 acres) has 
been transferred to GOAA for airport related use and 
the residual (approximately 240 acres) was 
transferred to the City in November 2000 to be 
remarketed by the City pursuant to the profit sharing 
economic redevelopment agreement. 

 

The park land is one of the City’s four major parks 
under the City Parks Initiative (see Notes on page 64) 
and opened on November 16, 2002. With regard to 
the Redevelopment property, a) the City has 
completed a redevelopment planning effort, b) the 
Navy has made significant progress in cleaning up 
the remaining six outparcels (still to be transferred), 
c) the Navy has requested the City accelerate the 
remaining transfer of outparcels used as Finding of 
Suitability for Early Transfer (FOSET) rather than 
the more traditional Finding of Suitability to Transfer 
(FOST) and d) the City has requested a modification 
to the transfer agreement which would allow the City 
to advance funds to demolish certain structures (the 
multi-family housing complex) in advance of 
marketing and first use the marketing proceeds to 
recapture the City’s advance before the formula 
distribution between the City and the Navy would be 
applied to the remainder. 
 
As of September 30, 2003, the Navy Base Reuse 
project has a) more than recovered the $1.2 milion 
offered to the Navy to control the process; b) provide 
land for two of the four cornerstone parks (located in 
the four quadrants of the City), and c) seen 
redevelopment of the Main Base, a New Urbanism-
styled, mixed-use project called Baldwin Park, 
become one of the City’s busiest new construction 
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permit generators. The City hopes to initiate 
redevelopment of the primary Annex property (to 
start the Request for Proposal process) during 2003-
2004. 
 
b. City Annexation/Development major related 
Commitment 

North Lake Nona Elementary School/YMCA – in 
FY 1999 the City, working with the Developer, the 
Orange County School Board, and the YMCA, 
opened a joint elementary school/YMCA (designed 
to encourage single family development in the 425-
acre, 2,000 unit North Lake segment of the 6,917-
acre Lake Nona development). The City’s basic 
commitment is for a future payment equivalent to 
25% of the incremental City property tax toward a 
$1,400,000 participation in the cost of the YMCA. If 
development occurs more rapidly than forecasted, an 
additional payment related to the excess (over 
forecast) will accelerate the City retiring this 
obligation. By motivating the YMCA, the City 
avoided full capital cost of a community center that 
the YMCA temporarily replaced as well as the 
related annual operating costs. As of September 30, 
2003 the City has made $545,342 in payments related 
thereto. 

 

New Lake Nona Interchange Participation 
Agreement – pursuant to an earlier land transfer 
agreement with the Greeneway builder (the Orlando 
Orange County Expressway Authority), the 
Developer is responsible to build an additional 
interchange (principally related to anticipated 
development on site), which will enhance 
transportation in the region. The Developer 
approached the City about a similar (North Lake 
Nona School/YMCA) arrangement for partial 
participation in the related costs. 

 

The City and the Developer entered into an 
agreement that has (a) initial development 
prerequisites and (b) certain additional road network 
future construction performance requirements on the 
Developer. If the Developer meets these 
requirements, then the City will participate in the 
estimated $15,000,000 interchange project. The 
parties developed two performance benchmarks 
(Reasonable and Aggressive) measured in 
incremental tax base (appraised value) targets. The 
City will contribute 25% of its incremental tax 
revenues, as received annually, toward a $5,000,000 
(or 1/3) participation in the project. If the Developer 
can exceed the Aggressive Benchmark, then the 25% 
participation will be measured to the Reasonable 

Benchmark and the Developer will receive 50% (of 
the incremental tax revenue) above the Reasonable 
Benchmark toward an additional $2,500,000 
participation in the project. Any obligation to make 
payments toward the additional $2,500,000 
participation is contingent upon exceeding the 
Aggressive Benchmark. 

 
As of September 30, 2003, one of the principal 
Conditions Precedent to this commitment has not 
been met by the Developer. Any City participation in 
this interchange project will require a renegotiation 
and a subsequent City Council approval thereof. 
 
c. CRA Downtown District Development 
Incentives 

Market-rate housing - in an attempt to revitalize 
downtown and encourage market-rate, multi-family 
housing, the CRA developed a program of incentives 
designed to address the additional burdens 
(structured parking, impact fee and, if applicable, a 
density bonus) associated with offering this upscale 
product in the Downtown district. In each instance, 
the projected payback (in incremental tax increment 
revenues) will equal or exceed the incentive in 10 
years or less. Preliminary agreement with four 
national builders (for five projects and 1,387 units) 
for $13,226,780 will represent the total of such 
available incentives. 

 

As of September 30, 2003 all five projects have been 
completed and $11,047,919 in related permit and 
impact fee incentives have been paid by the CRA to 
the City. The CRA is authorized to borrow on a 
junior lien basis (from the City Internal Loan Fund) 
up to $13,000,000 related thereto and as of year-end 
has actually drawn $11,045,000. 

 

Downtown Hotel Incentives – while Orlando MSA 
has experienced significant hotel development, 
principally in the tourist district, the CRA developed 
a hotel incentive package for the Downtown district 
designed to enhance the vitality of the district. 
Pursuant to its policy, the CRA agreed to incentives 
of up to $2,000,000 and up to $606,000 for two 
projects. The first, using 60% of the incremental 
revenue, is intended to partially offset the 
developer/property owner debt service payment on a 
$3,000,000 special assessment obligation related to 
the 170 space parking garage. The second, using 60% 
of the increment revenue, is to partially offset the 
special assessment obligation associated with certain 
streetscape, informational kiosk and public amenities. 
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The special assessment amortization is over 15 years 
after an initial five–year, interest-only period.  

 

Parramore Area Housing/Office Complex - On 
July 23, 2001 the CRA approved a $12.5 million 
incentive package to assist in development of a $63 
million joint 266-unit multi-family rental/195,000 sq. 
ft. office complex on the corner of West Church 
Street and Division Avenue. This four-acre site will 
also include a 1,000-space parking garage designed 
to serve the housing and office element . Bank of 
America, through its Community Development 
Corporation, is the multi-family housing developer, 
and one of Orlando’s homegrown publicly traded 
corporations, Hughes Supply, Inc., will use the 
majority of the office building as its principal 
corporate office. 

 

In addition to the CRA incentive, the City has 
targeted $2.0 million in various pass-through grants 
for housing and street level retail in the housing 
portion of the project. The project also received $12 
million in multi-family housing bonds provided by 
the Orange County Housing Finance Authority.  

 
As of September 30, 2003, the CRA has paid 
$11,990,000 toward its incentive commitment and as 
of October 2, 2003 the project held its grand opening. 
The CRA’s Downtown District has financed its 
project incentive through a junior lien loan from the 
City’s Internal Loan Fund. 
 
Florida A&M Law School Site Selection - Orlando 
was selected as the site of a new Florida A&M Law 
School. The City offered a 3.77-acre site (presently a 
Parking System 307-space surface lot) adjacent to I-
4, the State office building and the Federal 
courthouse in the Parramore district. The City would 
offer the site (estimated value of $6.5 million) at no 
cost to the project, and provide $1,000,000 in 
assistance to offset permitting and impact fees. The 
County offered 21,700 sq. ft. in a downtown office 
building (at no cost) as an interim site until the new 
Law School could be constructed.  

 

These two initiatives, in addition to the scheduled 
opening of a new 263,000 sq. ft. Federal Courthouse, 
adjacent to the current courthouse in the year 2005, 
will hopefully stimulate a major private sector 
redevelopment effort in Parramore.   

 

The market rate housing and the Parramore Area 
Housing/Office Complex incentives are financed 
with Internal Loan Fund loans and represent non-
asset bonds in that the borrowing is used for 
development incentives. This CRA debt when 
reflected in the City-wide government activities will 
reduce the Unrestricted Net Asset balance (see Notes 
on page 84) and not be part of the Invested in Capital 
Assets, net of related debt calculation. 

 

City line of credit – By separate arrangement 
between the City and the CRA, the City has extended 
a line of credit to the Agency in an amount not to 
exceed $2,300,000 to be used exclusively to make up 
any shortfalls in current year operation not available 
within the CRA’s Downtown District operating 
funds. As of September 30, 2003, there was no 
outstanding balance on the line of credit. 

 
5.  Risk Management: 

The Risk Management Program (the "Program") 
provides limited secondary market reinsurance to 
protect the City from any single loss by specific 
excess coverage. The Program covers workers’ 
compensation, property, general and automobile 
liability. The following schedule indicates the types 
of reinsurance acquired, the deductible (or retention 
level) maintained by the Program and, where 
appropriate, the limit of the reinsurance coverage 
acquired: 

 
Retention 

Level 
(Deductible) 

  
 

Coverage 

  
Limits of 
Coverage 

$350,000 
500,000 

 
500,000 

50,000 
50,000 

 
 

General & Automobile 
Property & Contents 
Workers’  
    Compensation 
Faithful Performance 
Fraud & Theft 

 $5,000,000 
200,000,000 

 
Unlimited 

(1) 
(2) 

 
(1)  $1,000,000 limit for public employee dishonesty coverage; 
         $5,000,000 for key employees. 
(2)  Forgery $500,000; theft and disappearance $5,000,000; 
         computer fraud $2,000,000. 
 

The City's internal Risk Management operation 
performs all claims management and loss prevention 
activities, which alleviates the need for a third party 
administrator.  

 

Annually, as of September 30, the Program has a 
third party actuary review the claim history for all 
claim years for which open claims are outstanding. 
The actuary projects the ultimate claim payment 
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obligation (including the incurred but not reported 
claims) for each year's claim experience and projects 
the new year's probable loss fund cost. These 
projections are provided as a range of estimates (low, 
middle and high) and a discounted alternative for 
each of the three estimates. The City elected to 
establish the liability at the middle undiscounted 
range. The following table reflects the discounted 
and undiscounted estimates:  

 
Estimated Risk Management Liability (1) 

(in thousands) 
 

  Discounted(2)  Undiscounted 
Low 
Middle 
High 

 $24,958 
  29,179 
  33,956 

  $29,049 
 34,218 
 39,802 

 
 
(1)  Actuarial projection excludes property liability.  The  
       reserve for property at September 30, 2003 for all claim 
       years is $253,035.  
(2)  5% interest rate assumption. 
 
The probable loss fund estimate is used to budget the 
Risk Management Fund's billing as an Internal 
Service Fund to the various funds and component 
units of the City. Historically, if an adjustment is 
necessary to increase the reported fund liability to 
reflect the actuary's estimated ultimate claim 
payment, then the Risk Management Fund will either 
draw upon its accumulated net assets or initiate a 
year end billing to the City's participant funds. The 
City's practice of cash funding the projected ultimate 
claims payment experience as of the end of each 
fiscal year, even though some payments may not be 
made for 8 to 12 years thereafter, is intended to 
temporarily accumulate net assets (through interest 
earnings) which can be used to meet changes in 
estimates over time. Settlements have not exceeded 
coverages for each of the past three fiscal years. 
 

The City maintains individual claim year experience 
(revenues, expenses, accumulated earnings on the 
excess) to allow, once a claims year is closed out, an 
elective decision with regard to any excess available 
to either (a) retain the excess in the Risk 
Management Fund or (b) declare a dividend and 
redistribute the excess to the participants under the 
original shared billing formula. As of September 30, 
2003, the City has available net assets in the Risk 
Management fund of $6,996,127. In the 
Supplemental Section of the City's Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report is a trend information 
schedule, which reflects the claims paid and liability 
projection development for each of the most recent 
ten years as of September 30, 2003.  

 

The following schedule presents the changes in 
aggregate claims liabilities for the past two years for 
the Fund's property and casualty and workers' 
compensation benefits. 
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Risk Management Fund
Changes in Aggregate Claims Liabilities

For theYears Ending September 30,
(in thousands)

Property and Casualty Worker's Compensation Totals

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment

expenses at beginning of fiscal year 11,846 $     11,639 $     20,761 $     17,784 $     32,607 $      29,423 $     
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:

Provisions for insured events of the current
fiscal year 4,149         4,432         5,926         5,902         10,075         10,334        

Increases (decreases) in provision for
insured events of prior fiscal years (2,097)      3,386         (546)         631            (2,643)        4,017          

Total insurred claims and claim adjustment
expenses 2,052 7,818 5,380 6,533 7,432 14,351 

Payments:
Claims and claim adjustment expenses

attributable to insured events of current
fiscal year (645)         (637)         (565)         (722)         (1,210)        (1,359)       

Claims and claim adjustment expenses
attributable to insured events of prior
fiscal year (1,801)      (6,974)      (2,557)      (2,834)      (4,358)        (9,808)       

Total payments (2,446)     (7,611)     (3,122)     (3,556)     (5,568)       (11,167)    
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment

expenses at end of fiscal year 11,452 $     11,846 $     23,019 $     20,761 $     34,471 $      32,607 $     

 
 

6.  Lease Obligations: 

Operating - On April 2, 1973, the City entered into a 
long-term lease agreement with the Orange County 
Civic Facilities Authority (CFA) for the Tinker Field 
and the Florida Citrus Bowl facilities. The lease is for 
an initial term of 30 years and is accounted for as an 
operating lease. The lease also includes a 20-year 
renewal option. (See Notes on page 88) 

 

On September 27, 1976, the City entered into a 
turnover agreement with the GOAA, which 
authorized the GOAA to operate the Herndon Airport 
and Orlando International Airport for a term of 50 
years commencing October 1, 1976. 

 

Amendment 1 of that agreement allowed the City to 
acquire a portion of the land for $586,500 and the 
right to use the land for the site of the Conserv I 
plant. Amendment 2 of the agreement provided for a 
land lease on which the plant's effluent disposal 
system was constructed. After a five-year period of 
fixed payments between 1986 and 1991, annual 
payments increase 25% on each fifth anniversary of 
the May 1, 1986 date. The term of the original 
agreement does not change and expires on October 1, 
2026. 

The following schedule reflects the operating lease 
obligations for the next five years and for each five-
year period thereafter: 

 

Year Ending 
September 30 

 Lease 
Payments 

   
2004  $360,768 
2005  360,768 
2006  398,348 
2007  450,960 
2008  450,960 

   
2009-2013  2,527,255 
2014-2018  3,159,076 
2019-2023  3,948,831 
2024-2026  2,367,086 

 

The lease also allows the GOAA, for certain 
aviation-related reasons, to require the City to 
relocate all or a portion of its Rapid Infiltration 
Basins (RIBs) and, for non-aviation relocation, for 
the City and the GOAA to share in the associated 
costs. (See Notes on page 62) 

 

Total rent expense incurred by the City for the year 
ended September 30, 2003 was $2,056,094. 
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Capital – On June 27, 2002 the City entered into a 
capital lease agreement with IBM Credit Corporation 
Property being acquired under this agreement 
consists of computer equipment with a remaining 
asset value of $971,348. Future minimum payments 
under the agreement and the present value of the 
minimum payments as of September 30 are as 
follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending   Amount 
2004 Lease Payments  $369,745 
2005 Lease Payments   338,932 
Total Minimum Lease 
    Payments 

  
 708,677 

Less Amount Representing 
    Interest 

  
    19,211 

Present Value of Minimum 
    Lease Payments 

  
$689,466 

 
The implied interest rate was 2.76 percent. 
 
7.  Long-Term Obligations: 

Revenue bonds and other long-term liabilities 
directly related to and intended to be paid from 
Proprietary Funds (of the Primary  Government or  

the Component Units) are included in the accounts of 
such funds. All other long-term indebtedness of the 
Primary Government or the Governmental 
Component Unit are accounted for in the 
governmental column of the government-wide 
statement of net assets. 
 
Variable Rate Debt 

The City has two major programs (Covenant and 
Wastewater), which are partially variables. The 
Covenant Program further has two separate variable 
rate segments (loans from the SSGFC and the 
Programs Commercial Paper). 

 
Historically, the City has estimated future interest 
cost using a 110% or 115% multiplier of the higher 
of the average a) for the last year, and either (b) the 
last quarter, or (c) the last month. 
 
GAAP requires that for variable rate programs, future 
forecasts be based on the actual end of the year rate. 
In a remarkable low interest rate market circumstance 
(as in 2002/2003), this new GAAP standard will 
significantly reduce the forecasted interest cost. The 
following schedule illustrates these differences: 
 

 
     

Actual Averages 
 Year 

End 
  

Program  Multiplier  Latest Year  Month  Actual  Result (1) 
Covenant:           
 SSGFC  110 %  1.149%  .949%  .949%  1.264%  
  Commercial 
         Paper 

  
110 % 

  
1.179% 

  
1.011% 

  
1.011% 

  
1.297%  

Wastewater  110 %  1.989% (2) 2.422%  2.422%  2.664% 
 

(1) Developed by multiplying the highest of the options by the specific multiplier. 
(2) Reflect the CPI rate (index) to which the City adds from 117 to 125 basis points in determining an 

applicable coupon rate. 
 

 
Given that the 10-year average BMA index 
rates(used as a measure for variable rate cost) ending 
each September 30 for 2001, 2002 and 2003 are 
3.30%, 3.12%, and 2.99%, respectively, the City 
continues to use 3.75% as an estimate measure for 
budget development purposes. 
 











ORLANDO, FLORIDA 
 

  -76-

f. Disclosure of Legal Debt Margin - The City has 
no legal debt margin requirements set forth by either 
State Statute or City Ordinance.   
 
g. Synopsis of Revenue Bond Covenants, Revenue 
Bonds Debt Service and Transfer Requirements -
Provisions of revenue bonds require either (1) 
monthly sinking fund contributions for current debt 
service of one-twelfth and one-sixth of the next 
maturing principal and interest payment, respectively, 
or (2) an annual bucket approach where all receipts 
are deposited into a sinking fund until the funds 
therein are sufficient to meet the maturing principal 
and interest payments. In addition, certain reserves 
for future debt service requirements (generally the 
largest principal and interest payment due in any 
succeeding year) must be maintained. 
 
In addition to a debt service reserve account within 
the Wastewater System, a stabilization sub-account 
within the impact fee account is maintained equal to 
the Expansion portion of the subsequent years' debt 
service requirement. Renewal and replacement 
reserves are also required for certain revenue bond 
issues. Additionally, the fixed rate bond issues 
provide for early redemption protection periods 
(typically 10 years) and decreasing prepayment 
premiums thereafter. 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: 
Proprietary Funds: 
Wastewater System Revenue Bonds: 

The Senior Bonds provided for an independent 
determination of the Expansion and Improvement 
portion of the construction which was financed from 
impact fees (including the debt service component of 
the new customer capacity charges and present 
customer capacity charges, respectively). The 
revenue stream order of pledge and backup support is 
(1) system revenues backup the impact fees (related 
to the expansion portion of any series of bonds) and 
(2) the utilities services tax revenues backup the 
system revenues. The flow of funds provide for a 
repayment of any backup draws required if and when 
the related revenues become available. 

The following four rate covenant commitments are 
required with regard to the senior bonds: 
 

(a)  The sum of the Gross Revenues and the 
Utilities Services Tax to be received in such 
Bond Year shall be at least equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the Cost of Operation and 
Maintenance for such Bond Year plus the 
Maximum Bond Debt Service Requirement; 
 
(b) The sum of the Gross Revenues and 
Available Impact Fees to be received in such 
Bond Year shall be at least equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the Cost of Operation and 
Maintenance in such Bond Year plus the 
Maximum Bond Debt Service Requirement; 
 
(c) The sum of the Gross Revenues, the 
Available Impact Fees and the Utilities Services 
Tax to be received in such Bond Year shall be at 
least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Cost of Operation and Maintenance for such 
Bond Year plus one hundred twenty-five percent 
(125%) of the Maximum Bond Debt Service 
Requirement; and 
 
(d) The sum of the Gross Revenues, the 
Available Impact Fees and the Utilities Services 
Tax to be received in such Bond Year shall be at 
least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Cost of Operations and Maintenance for such 
Bond Year plus the Maximum Bond Debt 
Service Requirement, plus the amounts required 
to be deposited in such Bond Year into the 
Reserve Account and the Renewal and 
Replacement Account, all in accordance with 
the Senior Bond Ordinance. 

 
The parity test requires an historic year of meeting 
the rate covenant after giving consideration to the 
debt service on the bonds to be issued and approved 
rate increases. 
 
Because variable rates may fluctuate every day, 
seven days or six months (depending on the modes 
used), the interest rate calculation included in the rate 
covenant and parity covenant tests has been adjusted 
to assume that the interest rate on the variable rate 
bonds will be 110% of the higher of the average 
interest rate for the preceding 12 months or the 
interest rate on the measurement date.  
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Parking Revenue Bonds: 

Parking System Revenue Bonds (Series 1994) 

The City operates 8,828 parking spaces as either 
system spaces, non-system spaces or City spaces. The 
non-system spaces are when a third party (a business, 
another government, a church, etc.) has provided for 
the initial capital related to their spaces and pays a 
proportionate share of the annual operating cost. The 
City spaces were partially funded with federal grants 
and any profit derived from their operation must be 
used for downtown transportation purposes. The 
Parking System also has a junior lien obligation to 
provide partial subsidy for the Lymmo project (See 
Notes on page 64). 

 
The City pledges the net parking system revenue 
(after eliminating the non-system space and City 
space activity) and the net parking fine revenue to the 
parking system bonds. Additionally, the City has a 
limited, secondary commitment of $1,500,000 from 
occupational license revenue.  
 
Internal Loan Fund: 

The City’s obligation is a covenant to budget and 
appropriate from non-ad valorem revenues (from the 
General and/or Utilities Services Tax Fund) to pay 
the debt service. The covenant program does not have 
either a rate covenant or an additional bonds test, but 
does include a dilution test which can not be 
exceeded. Neither the variable note or median term 
notes require debt amortization during the first two-
thirds of the nominal life. The City is required to 
demonstrate, in its annual secondary market annual 
disclosure  supplement how its internal loans and 
external debt amortization match up to avoid any 
future balloon maturity issues. 

 
Capital Improvement Special Revenue Bonds  
(Fixed Rate) 

The City’s Capital Improvement Bonds are the fixed 
rate portion of the program. The Covenant Debt 
Program is designed to include long-term fixed, 
rolling medium-term. and variable rate debt to 
produce a lower blended cost of money and other 
advantages to the City. 

 
Medium-Term Notes (Series 1998B and 2002) 

The 2002 rolling medium-term notes were designed 
to target the 1-15 year segment of the yield curve 
which is traditionally under-utilized in the tax exempt 
market place. The anticipated amortization (level 

primarial over the last ten years of a nominal 30-year 
term) in conjunction with a rolling, medium-term 
yield curve structure add elasticity and interest rate 
saving to the internal loan program. Additionally, 
matching 10, 15 or 20-year amortizing loans with 
non-amortizing bonds provide for significant 
relending opportunities. 

 
Variable Rate Notes/Loans 

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission 
(the Commission) Loan (Series 1986) (Variable Rate) 

 
The loan agreements (totaling $43,971,338) provide 
for amortizations of ten years (starting in 2007) for 
the $37,971,338 loans and four years (starting in 
2012) for the $6,000,000 loan.  . 
 
Commercial Paper Program 

This additional variable rate element was initiated 
January 18, 1994 with an $18,100,000 offering. The 
Program is supported by a line of credit (available, 
upon request, up to $50,000,000) and was sold under 
an initial City Council authorization of up to 
$20,000,000.  

 
Although the commercial paper has a balloon 30 year 
principal payment, the covenant program (like the 
median term notes) requires minimal level 
amortization over the last one third of the nominal 
(30 year) maturity. 
 
The current rating of the Internal Loan Fund’s 
Covenant Program (including the Sunshine loan and 
the Covenant Commercial Paper programs) is 
Aa3/AA-/AA long-term and VMIG1/A1+/F1+ short-
term from Moody’s, S&P, and Fitch, respectively. 

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT BONDS::  
Downtown CRA District 

CRA Revenue Bonds 

The property tax increment received by the CRA on 
property within the downtown Community 
Redevelopment area is pledged to secure the 
outstanding bonds of these issues. The operating cost 
of the CRA and other capital projects may be 
financed out of the excess, after the debt service is 
provided. Additional bonds may be issued only after 
a parity test of 125% has been met, given 
retrospective consideration to the assessed value and 
related millage rates (and thus the revised increment) 
for the new year. Additionally, the CRA has incurred 
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three subordinate lien level obligations and any 
additional debt incurred would have to be addressed 
in addition to these obligations. 

 
Republic Drive CRA District 

Republic Drive Tax Increment Financing Revenue 
Bonds  (Series 2002) 

The $45,620,000 Republic Drive (Universal Studios 
Boulevard) Tax Increment Revenue Bonds financed 
an I-4 interchange. During 2001/2002 the CRA 
refinanced the Republic Drive Special Assessment 
Bonds (see Notes on page 66) as contemplated in the 
Cooperative Agreement with the Developer. The 
fixed rate bonds mature in 2025 and no additional 
bonds are contemplated. 
 
Conroy Road CRA District 

Conroy Road Special Assessment Bonds (Series 
1998) 

The $28,010,000 and $4,830,000 series A & B 
Conroy Road Special Assessment Bonds were issued 
December 9, 1998. The Series B bonds provide three 
years of capitalized interest and are expected 
(assuming the developer’s forecasted development 
time line) to be repaid from either paid/or pre-paid 
transportation impact fees. If and/or when the tax 
increment revenue available within the district meets 
historic coverage levels of 160% for three years the 
City may elect to either release the special 
assessment obligation portion of the pledge or refund 
the bonds. In either circumstance, the special 
assessment lien on the property would be released. 
 
While the Developer has an inherent risk of having to 
pay debt service (by special assessment) on both the 
Series A and B bonds (after the 3 year capitalized 
interest period), the amount, and term of that risk are 
inversely related to the desire to encourage and 
accelerate development on the site. The Series B 
bonds were paid out on November 1, 2003. 
 
COMPONENT UNIT: 
Civic Facilities Authority (CFA): 
CFA Revenue Bonds (Series 1973) 
 
This issue, dated April 1, 1973, totaled $4,200,000 
and was used to finance the expansion and renovation 
of the Tangerine Bowl (now called the Florida Citrus 
Bowl). The gross revenues resulting from the 
operation of the CFA’s facilities are pledged to 
secure these outstanding bonds. The County has 
agreed to fund a portion ($200,000 annually) of the 
CFA’s debt service requirements. In addition, the 

City has agreed to fund the difference between the 
CFA’s revenues and total debt service and operating 
requirements. While these bonds are outstanding, the 
CFA must maintain rates, fees and rentals so as to 
provide sufficient revenues (along with the pledged 
revenues from the City and the County) to fund all 
costs of operations, 115% of each year’s debt service 
requirement and 100% of all reserve or other 
payments provided for in the bond resolution. In 
addition, the CFA cannot grant any franchise or 
permit any entity to establish similar services within 
the County. 
 
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Bonds (Series 
1976) 

The CFA is liable to the City for all amounts paid for 
principal and interest as required by this issue as a 
result of the operation and management agreement. 
(See Notes on page 88) The guaranteed entitlement 
portion of State Revenue Sharing Funds and other 
legally available non-ad valorem tax funds of the 
City are pledged to secure these outstanding bonds. 

 
g.  Internal Loan Fund Loans – During 1986-1987, 
the City created the Internal Loan Fund to provide 
interim or longer-term financing to other funds. The 
financing for the Fund’s loan activities was provided 
through non-revenue specific and non-project 
specific loans from the Sunshine State Governmental 
Financing Commission (See Notes on page 91), the 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, medium-term 
notes, and the Covenant Commercial Paper Program. 
(See Notes on page 77)  
 
The following schedule reflects the Internal Loan 
Fund’s banking activities as well as the status of 
individual loans (summary by fund) as of September 
30, 2003: 
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Most of the amortizing loans is structured assuming a 
seven percent level debt service principal repayment. 
The effective interest rate paid by participating funds 
was 3.42% for 2002-2003. The preceding schedule 
reflects the original term (e.g.; 10, 15 or 20 year) as 
well as final maturity of each loan. While the 
following discussion will address the original loan 
amount, the schedule reflects the changes in 
outstanding balances during the year. The following 
descriptions summarize the major individual loans (in 
excess of $3,000,000 outstanding) and briefly 
explains the projects constructed: 
 
Arena Loans 

The original $25,200,000 loan represents the City 
contribution to the $100,000,000 project and  will be 
repaid from operations and annual contributions, if 
required, from the General Fund. 

 
City Hall Loans 

The $36,000,000 City Hall officially opened in April, 
1992.  

 
City Hall Garage Loans 

The $9,576,692 loan provides for the City’s share of 
the construction of the 1,700 space joint City/CNL 
garage (the City owns 40% or 680 spaces).  

 
CRA Market-Rate Housing 

Of the anticipated $13,000,000 Downtown market-
rate housing incentives (See Notes on page 67), 
$11,045,000 has been loaned to date. 

 
CRA Parramore Housing/Office Complex 

Of the anticipated $12,500,000 Parramore area 
housing/office complex incentives (see Notes on 
page 68), $11,990,000 has been loaned to date. 

 
Hotel incentive related Special Assessment Loans 

The Special Assessment debt service will be partially 
offset by the CRA Downtown district use of a share 
of related incremental revenue. (see Notes on Page 
67). 

John Young Parkway  

Of the original $10,027,400 loan, $6,050,000 has 
been repaid by the State pursuant to an interlocal 
agreement, and the remaining $3,977,400 will be 
amortized using gas tax revenues. 

Lee Vista Road Extension 

The $5,500,000 loan was used to finance the City’s 
participation in a road project. 

 
Narcoossee Road 

The $20,222,361 4.5-mile, 4-lane urban section was 
part of the Southeast Area annexation agreement 
(10,204 acres). The repayment plan uses related 
transportation impact fees (derived from the annexed 
property), if available, and gas tax as a backup 
pledge.  

 
Parking System Loan 

The loans provide for the Parking System’s share in 
the original and expanded Courthouse ($4,536,500 
and $6,000,000) and County Administration 
($5,400,000) garages, respectively.  

 
Parks/Open Space Initiative Loan 

In 2002 the City issued $33,690,000 covenant bond 
to finance the $35,500,000 1999 parks initiative 
(which also reimbursed $9,100,000 in interim 
internal banking fund loans. 

 
h.  Variable Rate Debt 

The following schedule reflects the City’s variable 
rate debt programs as of September 30, 2003: 

 
Variable Rate Debt Program 

    Outstanding  Number of  Present
Program   Series  Amount  Modes Mode 
Wastewater  1997A $37,800  6  CPI* 
Internal 
Loan: 

       

  SSGFC  1986 $43,971  8  Weekly
Commercial  
     Paper 

 
1994

  
$18,100 

  
N/A 

  
CP 

**TThhee  CCPPII  bboonnddss  ddoo  nnoott  hhaavvee  aa  ppuutt  ffeeaattuurree  aanndd  tthhuuss  ddoo  nnoott
rreeqquuiirree  eeiitthheerr  aa  lleetttteerr  oorr  lliinnee  ooff  ccrreeddiitt..  
 
i.  Variable Rate Debt (Reimbursement and  
Remarketing Agreements) – The City’s Internal 
Loan Fund financing program utilizes multi-modal 
variable rate debt; thus, requiring both  
reimbursement (letter or line of credit) and 
remarketing agreements. The following schedule 
reflects the principal elements of each program: 
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j. Derivative Disclosure – Interest Rate Swap 

Objective of the interest rate swap. The City 
entered into a variable rate to variable rate swap 
agreement for its Waste Water System Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A (Muni CPIs), dated 
March 27, 1997, for the purpose of realizing certain 
cost savings associated with the refunding of the 
Waste Water System Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1990A.  As an inducement to enter into the 
swap agreement, the City received a payment of 
$461,645 from Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine 
Derivate Products, L.P. (“GSMMDP”), the 
counterparty.  The swap is for the notional amount of 
$39,430,000, and terminates on the date of the 
mandatory tender (October 1, 2007).  The intention 
of the swap was to change the City’s inflation linked 
variable interest rate on the bonds to a more market 
driven variable rate index. 

 
Terms. The bonds are subject to a mandatory tender 
on October 1, 2007, which matches the maturity of 
the related swap agreement (October 1, 2007).   The 
swap’s notional amount of $39,430,000 is equal to 
the principal amount of the bonds issued, and has 
declined beginning in Fiscal 2003 and will continue 
to decline as the principal amount of the associated 
debt declines.  The swap was entered into at the same 
time that the bonds were issued (March 1997). The 
bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to 
the mandatory tender date. Under the swap, the City 
pays the counterparty a variable payment of the Bond 
Market Association Municipal Swap Index minus 
nine (9) basis points and receives a variable payment 
based upon the semi-annual change in the Consumer 
Price Index plus a fixed spread.  
 
Fair value. Due to the difference between the two 
variable rate indices, the swap had a positive fair 
value of $1,979,491 as of September 30, 2003.  The 
fair value was estimated using a proprietary valuation 
model developed by the counterparty. This method 
calculates future cash flows by projecting forward 
rates, and then discounting those cash flows at their 
present value. All rates used in the valuation are mid-
market levels (mid-way between bid and ask), or are 
model-based mid-market levels when actual levels 
are not available. 
 
Credit risk. As of September 30, 2003, the City was 
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swap’s fair 
value. The swap counterparty has guaranteed all 
payments and is rated Aaa/AA+ by Moody’s Investor 
Services and Standard & Poor’s, respectively. To 
mitigate potential credit risk, the counterparty has 

entered into a Credit Support Agreement with The 
Goldman Sachs Group and Mitsui Marine Fire 
Insurance Co., Ltd as a credit enhancement.   
 
Basis risk. As of September 30, 2003, the swap does 
expose the City to basis risk.  The City pays the 
counterparty a variable payment of the Bond Market 
Association (BMA) Municipal Swap Index minus 
nine (9) basis points and receives a variable payment 
based upon the semi-annual change in the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) plus a fixed spread.  The City will 
pay or receive the difference between (i) the BMA 
Index minus nine (9) basis points and (ii) the semi-
annual change in the CPI, plus the stated spread.  If 
the rates on the BMA Index minus nine (9) basis 
points are higher than the semi-annual change in the 
CPI, the City will be liable for the difference.   
 
Termination risk. The swap may be terminated by 
the City or the counterparty if the other party fails to 
perform under the terms of the swap agreement.  If 
the swap is terminated, the City would prospectively 
pay the variable-rate on the Muni CPI bonds rather 
than the BMA minus nine (9) basis points variable 
rate as provided for under the swap agreement.  The 
termination of the swap agreement could increase the 
City’s total debt service if at the time of termination 
the swap has a negative fair value by the amount of 
such negative fair value.  As noted above, the City 
has a positive fair value in the swap agreement as of 
September 30, 2003 and would receive a payment 
from the counterparty if the swap were terminated 
prematurely. 
 
Rollover risk.  The swap agreement termination date 
and the mandatory tender date is October 1, 2007.  
However, the City will need to refinance at least a 
portion of the bonds that will be tendered on that 
date.  Due to the relative dearth of municipal bonds 
that are issued that are tied to the CPI, the City may 
not be able to replicate the current bond program and 
associated swap agreement on the termination date.  
Prior to the mandatory tender date, the City will 
determine the succeeding interest rate mode (six 
modes, ranging from 7-day commercial paper up to 
and including fixed to maturity) for the bonds 
maturing in 2008 through 2015 (see schedule on page 
169). 
 
Market-access risk.  The swap agreement 
termination date and the mandatory tender date is 
October 1, 2007.  However, since the bonds will not 
be retired on that date, the City will need to refinance 
the remaining outstanding debt at that time.  The 
City’s debt service to retire these bonds after October 
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1, 2007 may be more costly than the debt service 
under the terms of the swap agreement. 
 
 Swap payments and associated debt. Using rates 
as of September 30, 2003, debt service requirements 

of the variable-rate bonds and the swap payments, 
assuming current interest rates remain the same for 
their term, were as follows. As rates vary, the 
variable-rate interest payments and swap payments 
will vary. 

 
 
Year Ending  Variable-Rate Bonds          Interest Rate Net Debt  
September 30 Principal Interest   Total    Swap, Net    Service 
 

  2004 $  1,760,000 $  1,352,595 $  3,112,595   $   (987,087)     $   2,125,508 
  2005     1,900,000     1,286,672     3,186,672     (939,281)   2,247,391 
  2006   2,050,000     1,215,130     3,265,130    (887,291)   2,377,839 
  2007  2,215,000     1,137,456     3,352,456    (830,729)   2,521,727 

 2008*    2,390,000      548,505     2,938,505  (400,624)   2,537,881 
 
 Total $10,315,000 $5,540,358 $15,855,358 $(4,045,012)  $11,810,346 
 

 *Mandatory tender on October 1, 2007 for term bonds dated October 1, 2015. 
 

k. Refunded Bonds –  

The City has a number of bond issues which have 
been refunded. Refunding provides for an irrevocable 
deposit with an escrow agent (a third party banking 
institution) of sufficient funds to pay the principal 
and interest, when due, on the refunded bonds to the 
earliest call date. On the earliest call date, all bonds 
outstanding are redeemed, and interest subsequent to 
the refunding date will cease. Bonds are typically 
refunded for either economic gain to the 
governmental unit or to eliminate restrictive and 
antiquated covenants. 

 
The following schedule reflects the refunded bonds 
as of September 30, 2003: 
 

     Final  (in thousands) 
     Payment/  Outstanding Outstanding
   Date  Call  as of as of 

Type Series  Refunded  Date  Refunding 9/30/03 
Wastewater      
     System 1978 5/84   4/1/2007      $21,880 $8,220

 
C.  INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
The following schedule as of September 30, 2003 
represents interfund receivables and payables: 

 

 Interfund  Interfund 
 Receivables  Payables 
Primary Government:    
By Major Fund:    
   General $1,541,438 $                -
Other Governmental:  
   Housing and Urban 
       Development Grant - 736,438
   CFA Revenue - 800,000
   Performing Arts &  
       Education Center  
       Construction - 5,000
Total Primary Government $1.541.438 $1,541,438 
 
Federal grants (i.e., HUD grants) are normally 
reimbursement oriented; therefore, the payable 
represents the unreimbursed expenditure at year-end. 
All other interfund transactions represent cash 
transfers for operating purposes. 

D.  NET ASSETS:  
The government-wide and business-type Fund 
Financial Statements utilize a net asset presentation. 
Net assets are categorized as investment in capital 
assets (net of related debt), restricted, and 
unrestricted. 
 
Invested in Capital Assets (net of related debt) – is 
intended to reflect the portion of net assets which are 
associated with non-liquid, capital assets less 
outstanding capital asset related debt. The net related 
debt is the debt less the outstanding liquid assets and 
any associated unamortized cost. 
 



ORLANDO, FLORIDA 
 

 -84-

The schedule on page 85 demonstrates how the 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt is 
calculated. 
 
Restricted Assets – are liquid assets (generated from 
revenues and not bond proceeds) which have third-
party (statutory, bond covenant or granting agency) 
limitations on their use.  The City would typically use 
restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities 
arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the 
use thereof to a future project or replacement 
equipment acquisition.  
 
Unrestricted Net Assets – typically represent 
unrestricted liquid assets. While City management 
may have categorized and segmented portions for 
various purposes, the City Council has the 
unrestricted authority to revisit or alter these 
managerial decisions.  
 
While the Unrestricted Net Assets balance is a  single 
number in accordance with GASB Statement #34, the 
impact of non-asset debt  will appear to reduce the 
year-end discretionary balance available to the 
government. However, in the City’s case, given that 
these non-asset bonds/loans reported in the 
Governmental Activities column have a dedicated 
revenue source (to amortize the debt over time) the 
year-end available portion of the Net Assets to the 
city are greater than is apparent. The following 
schedule illustrates these differences: 
 
Governmental Unrestricted Net Assets   
  (per statement-page 13)      $  32,504,702 
Impact of (Revenue Based) Non-Asset Debt: 
   Republic Drive CRA District 41,924,258 
   Conroy Road CRA District 25,364,860 
   Downtown CRA District: 
        Market rate housing incentive 10,995,257 
        Parramore Housing/Office incentive     11,990,000 
Governmental Unrestricted Net Assets 
  (Exclusive of non-asset debt) $122,779,077 
 
Since future CRA tax increment revenues are 
reasonably expected to provide for the non-asset 
bond debt service requirement, the Governmental 
Unrestricted Net Assets (exclusive of non-asset debt) 
more truly reflects the available (although partially 
tentatively targets) portion of net assets. 
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NOTE V. COMPONENT UNITS 

A. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT BOARD (DDB) 
By referendum, the DDB was formed on December 
19, 1972 and provided with a millage cap of 1 mill on 
all non-homestead property within its downtown 
district. With the creation of the CRA and its initial 
downtown district in 1982, the growth in property 
value and related incremental revenue (at the 1 mill 
cap) is annually transferable from the DDB to the 
CRA. Given the complementary nature of the two 
organizations, they have, from the CRA inception, 
shared staff and the CRA reimburses the DDB for an 
allocable portion of DDB personnel.   
 
The DDB does not and is not anticipated to ever have 
any outstanding bonded debt. 

B.  CIVIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY (CFA) 
1.  Stadium Lease and Loans: 

The leasehold costs assumed by the CFA under this 
agreement were the initial inducement to enter into 
the lease and represent the balance which was owed 
by the City on the 1965 Stadium Improvement Bonds 
plus interest at the inception of the lease. In addition, 
the City advanced the CFA $120,000 at the inception 
of the lease for the replacement of lighting at Tinker 
Field and other expansion projects concerning the 
Florida Citrus Bowl at Orlando (previously called the 
Tangerine Bowl). 

 
On December 23, 1975, the City, under a tri-party 
agreement between the CFA, the City and the 
County, agreed to advance the CFA $275,000 which 
represented additional funds needed to complete the 
expansion of the Florida Citrus Bowl. The County 
also advanced $303,000 for the same purpose. 
Interest received on the stadium lease and loan is 
transferred to the General Fund as received. The 
General Fund and the Civic Facilities Authority Fund 
do not accrue interest on the other advances as 
definite repayment dates have not been established. 
 
2.  Operation and Management Agreement: 

On June 1, 1976, the tri-party agreement dated 
December 23, 1975, was further amended. The funds 
previously advanced the CFA by both the City and 
County were not adequate to complete the expansion 
of the Tangerine Bowl. The City, by this agreement, 
assumed responsibility for completing the expansion 
project and assumed the rights and responsibilities to 
operate and manage the CFA facilities. All costs 

incurred by the City to complete the expansion are 
loans to the CFA and cannot exceed $2,800,000 
without CFA approval. Amounts advanced to date for 
construction are $2,800,000. In addition, the City 
agreed to fund the difference between CFA revenues 
(including the County's annual portion of the debt 
requirements) and total revenue bond and operating 
requirements of the CFA. The City has advanced 
$3,862,225 for these payments. The City can 
unilaterally terminate this agreement within six 
months of the date on which any provision of this 
agreement (including the provision by which Orange 
County agreed to advance $200,000 annually to the 
CFA for debt requirements) is declared illegal by a 
court of proper jurisdiction. 

 
On October 1, 1976, the City issued $2,800,000 of 
guaranteed entitlement bonds, the proceeds of which 
were used to refinance the construction loans made 
for the benefit of the CFA under the operation and 
management agreement. Under the terms of that 
agreement, amounts expended by the City for 
expansion of the Citrus Bowl (including bonds used 
to finance such construction) will be repaid by the 
CFA. In addition, the City's annual debt service 
payments which are required by these bonds and 
made on behalf of the CFA shall be regarded as loans 
to the CFA. 
 
3.  Liquidation Preference of CFA Obligation: 

All payments required by the $4,200,000 Civic 
Facilities Authority revenue bonds dated April 1, 
1973 must be made in each fiscal year, after which, if 
funds are legally available, the order of preference 
will be as follows: 

 
a. Pay to the City all funds advanced to the CFA 
under the tri-party agreement and the operation and 
management agreements. 
 
b. Utilize any amount remaining to reduce the 
County's funding requirement ($200,000 annually) in 
the next fiscal year. 
 
c. Pay to the City any amount remaining, not to 
exceed the principal, interest and sinking fund 
requirements, which the City is obligated to pay 
during the next fiscal year on the 1976 guaranteed 
entitlement revenue bonds. 
 
d. Utilize any remaining funds to proportionally 
liquidate all other loans made by the City and County 
to the CFA. 
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4.  Obligations Outstanding: 

As of September 30, 2003 CFA obligations under the 
tri-party agreements are: 

 
     City  County 
Stadium Lease $     426,608 $              - 
1973 Loan 120,000 - 
1975 Tri-Party Agreement 300,833 278,000 
1973 Debt Service Advances                - 6,081,000 
1976 Operation & Management 
    Agreement 6,061,124                    - 
Guaranteed Entitlement Debt  
    Service Advances 8,364,778                     - 
Total Lease & Loan  
    Amounts Due $15,273,343 $6,359,000 
 
Because of the uncertainty of collection, the City 
does not reflect a receivable with regard to this 
obligation. The CFA's obligation in accordance with 
the tri-party agreements is reflected as a liability. The 
CFA's obligations to the City and County result in an 
unrestricted net asset deficit. Although a new revenue 
source which could reverse this growing deficit trend 
has not been identified, these obligations continue to 
be reflected in accordance with the 1976 tri-party 
agreement. 
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NOTE VI.  JOINT VENTURES 
A. CENTRAL FLORIDA FIRE ACADEMY (CFFA)  
The Central Florida Emergency Services Institute 
(CFESI) was created by an ordinance on June 6, 
1977, in an effort to coordinate the firefighter training 
activities of the City and Orange County. On June 12, 
2001, the Board of Trustees voted to change the 
name to the Central Florida Fire Academy (CFFA). 
The resulting agreement between the City and the 
County dated June 6, 1977 stated that the initial 
funding of the CFFA would be based upon a fifty 
percent (50%) contribution each from the City and 
the County. Future contribution percentages are 
subject to change, upon approval of the City and the 
County, as the nature and use of the CFFA facilities 
by the parties change. The Board of Trustees which 
oversees the operation of the CFFA has eleven 
members, serving without pay, appointed by the 
Mayor of the City and confirmed by the Orlando City 
Council. Of the eleven-member board, three 
members are appointed from recommended nominees 
submitted by the City, three members are appointed 
from recommended nominees submitted by the 
County, one member is appointed from 
recommended nominees submitted by the Orange 
County School Board and four members are 
appointed from other member fire agencies. 

 
 
 

1.  Financial Information: 

The CFFA is accounted for as a proprietary joint 
venture. A summary of financial information is as 
follows: 

 
As of September 30, 2003 

  
Total assets  $908,302 
Total liabilities (779,109) 
Net Assets  $129,193 

 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

  
Total operating revenue  $1,541,741 
Total operating expenses  (1,902,846) 
Interest income  1,149 
Interest expense (14,967) 
 Change in Net Assets $  (374,923) 

 
2.  Debt: 

The CFFA borrowed $418,621 in 2002 for the 
purchase of a fire pumper truck and trailer. The loan 
will mature in 2012 and the outstanding balance at 
year-end is $376,759. 

Capital Asset Activity
As of September 30, 2003

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Activities:
Land 1,132,426 $     - $                    - $                    1,132,426 $     
Buildings 5,253,079     -                    -                    5,253,079      
Improvements 54,819,384    -                    -                    54,819,384    
Equipment 1,427,067     5,679             (12,656)          1,420,090      
Capital Work in Progress -                    251,700         -                    251,700         
      Totals at historical
         cost 62,631,956    257,379         (12,656)          62,876,679    

Less accumulated 
      depreciation for:
Buildings (1,899,416)    (146,513)        -                    (2,045,929)     
Improvements (19,935,787)  (2,010,297)     -                    (21,946,084)   
Equipment (1,418,716)    (6,078)            12,656           (1,412,138)     
  Total accumulated 
      depreciation (23,253,919)  (2,162,888)     12,656           (25,404,151)   
Component unit activities
      capital assets, net 39,378,037 $   (1,905,509)$    -0- $                 37,472,528 $   

Component Units
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3.  Termination: 

If the joint venture were to be terminated, the 
available assets would be distributed pro rata based 
on contributions. 

 
4.  City Share of Net Assets:   

The City’s annual contribution is reflected as a Fire 
Department operating expense. Due to (a) a lack of a 
clear means of calculation, (b) the expectation that 
any residual equity would be transferred to a 
replacing entity and (c) the immateriality of the City's 
share value, no asset has been reflected. 

 
5.  Stand-Alone Financial Statements: 

The stand-alone financial statements for the CFFA 
can be obtained from the Institute or the City of 
Orlando Chief Financial Officer. 

B. SUNSHINE STATE GOVERNMENTAL 
FINANCING COMMISSION (THE COMMISSION) 
In November, 1985, the cities of Orlando and 
Tallahassee, through an interlocal agreement, created 
the Sunshine State Governmental Financing 
Commission (the Commission) which was developed 
as a pooled financing vehicle to allow for a limited 
number of high quality local governmental units 
(cities and counties) to join together in a variable rate 
financing program and thereby benefit from the 
inherent economies of scale. On July 16, 1986, the 
Commission issued $300,000,000 in eight mode 
variable rate long-term bonds supported by a letter of 
credit. The Commission provides loans to selected 
governmental units, acceptable to the banks, based on 
a covenant to budget and appropriate for the debt 
service from non-ad valorem revenues which is 
similar to a private sector "corporate promise to pay". 
The Commission's Bonds were sold as a multi-modal  

 
Variable Rate Bond Program. The modes available 
included daily, weekly, monthly, 90 day, 180 day, 
money market municipal (similar to commercial 
paper with maturities of between 1 and 270 days), 
adjustable, and fixed rate. For information regarding 
the reimbursement and remarketing agreements, see 
Note III on page     . 
 
Commission loans make available certain tax-exempt 
financing opportunities which have subsequently 
been lost due to the 1986 Tax Reform Act. The 
pooled loan program allows initial lending and 
possible subsequent re-lending from the pool with the 

terms and conditions of the tax law at the time of the 
initial transaction (July 1986). 
 
1.  Debt: 

The Commission has two programs (the 1986 and 
1994 Programs). While the 1986 bond program has 
relending, the 1994 program is a pure commercial 
paper program which is increased/decreased as loans 
are made/repaid. The 1994 program allows tax-
exempt, taxable, and tax-exempt AMT loans to be 
initiated.  

 
As of September 30, 2003, the following bonds/notes 
are outstanding: 
 
  1986  1994 

 
Loans 

 Loan 
Program 

 Loan 
Program 

Tax exempt  $249,290,560  $291,599,000 
Taxable  N/A  44,548,000 
Tax exempt (AMT)  N/A  159,315,000 
Relendable  14,939,440  N/A 
Reserve Account  30,000,000  - 
   Sub-Total   
Variable 

  
294,230,000 

  
495,462,000 

Fixed Rate Bond  -  19,520,000 
Total  $294,230,000  $514,982,000 

 
2.  Termination: 

Since most of the loans (including the City of 
Orlando's) are non-amortizing (as to principal), if the 
Commission's loan program were to be terminated 
prematurely, each loan participant would have to 
restructure their loan from proceeds outside the pool. 
There are a minimum number of actions required of 
the Commission and thus, the loan participants' 
primary  risk  (other than any default  action  on  
theirown part) would be the evergreen notice that the 
liquidity facility banks providing lines of credit 
would not renew. Each loan is subject to acceleration 
in the event of default (by the loan participant) but 
there are no cross defaults between participants. 

 

3.  Financial Statements: 

The financial statements can be obtained from the 
Commission. 

NOTE VII.  RELATED PARTIES 

A.  ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION (OUC) 
Annually, the OUC provides payments to the City 
from its revenues. These payments are divided into 
two elements (a franchise equivalent and a 
contribution portion). The franchise equivalent is 
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calculated as if the OUC were a private utility and is 
based upon 6% of the gross revenues within the 
corporate limits of the City. The contribution amount 
is based on a written agreement which provides 60% 
of last year's net income to the City. 
 
As of September 30, 2003, OUC has $1,389,311,000 
in total debt outstanding. 
 
The City considers the franchise equivalent to relate 
to the use of the right of way (similar to natural gas, 
local telephone system [land lines], etc.) and not an 
unique result of the City’s (its citizens’) ownership of 
the utility. The following schedule reflects the 
contributions in relationship to the total revenues of 
both OUC and the City's Governmental Funds which 
includes revenues of the General, Debt Service and 
Capital Projects Funds after elimination of transfers 
between these funds and excluding proceeds from 
bonds and loans: 
 

(In Thousands) 
   Governmental Funds 
Year 

Ended 
OUC 

Revenue 
 

Contributions 
 

Revenues 
% of 

Revenues 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

$473,854 
  501,131 
  536,932 
  497,540 
  559,713 
 

 $31,350 
 30,788 
 32,091 
 28,204 
 32,993 

$232,860 
 236,628 
 259,222 
 253,383 
 274,005 
 

13.46 
13.01 
12.38 
11.13 
12.04 

  

B. ORLANDO HOUSING AUTHORITY (OHA) 
Although the City appoints the Governing Board, it 
does not exercise the other prerequisites for inclusion 
and thus, we are providing limited information which 
may be useful. The OHA was established in 1938 and 
operates under various Federal-housing programs. 
The OHA service area is Orange County and 
currently controls 4,353 rental units of which 
approximately 3,523 are located in the City. The 
annual operating budget (for fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2003) was $30,120,658 of which 
$23,588,045 was provided by Federal program 
subsidies. The City has no obligation to, nor has it 
been requested to, nor has it electively provided any 
subsidy. 

C.  GREATER ORLANDO AVIATION AUTHORITY 
(GOAA) 
On September 27, 1976, the City entered into a 
turnover agreement with the GOAA which 
authorized the GOAA to use and operate Herndon 
Airport and Orlando International Airport for a term 
of 50 years commencing October 1, 1976. The 
GOAA agreed to remit to the City $2,000,000, in 

addition to other promises, as consideration for this 
agreement. The GOAA agreed to pay the City in 
annual installments of $250,000 including interest 
computed at 6% per annum. Annual installments 
(including interest) are not due the City as long as the 
Phase III airport revenue bonds are outstanding. The 
remaining balance owed the City and the related 
deferred revenue of $1,713,272 at September 30, 
2003 are not presented in these financial statements 
because of the provisions in the agreement which 
abate annual installments (including interest) while 
the Phase III airport revenue bonds are outstanding. 
The last principal payment date on the bonds 
presently outstanding is October 1, 2018. It appears 
probable that these or additional Phase III revenue 
bonds will be outstanding during the entire term of 
the turnover agreement. The deferred revenue will be 
recognized as income as future installments, if any, 
are received from the GOAA which will coincide 
with the availability of funds for appropriation by the 
City. 
 
The GOAA operates four terminals with 90 regular 
and regional shuttle gates, three parking garages, and 
a 450-room hotel. As of September 30, 2003, GOAA 
has  approximately  $1,370,001,000  in  total  debt 
outstanding for which  signatory airlines have a joint 
and several obligation. 

NOTE VIII. - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE 
OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

A.  LITIGATION 
During the ordinary course of its operation, the City 
is a party to various claims, legal actions and 
complaints. Most of these matters are covered by the 
City's Risk Management Program. (See Notes on 
page 68) Those which are not covered are handled by 
the City's Office of Legal Affairs and generally 
involve either construction contract claims/ 
counterclaims or land use/zoning (inverse 
condemnation) actions.  
 
In the opinion of the City's management and legal 
counsel, these matters are not anticipated to have a 
material financial impact on the City. 

B. FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS -COMPLIANCE 
AUDITS 
The City participates in a number of Federally 
assisted programs, principally of which are the 
Environmental Protection Agency, Federal Transit 
Administration, Department of Justice, and the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
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These programs are subject to audit under the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the 
Single Audit Amendments of 1996 for which a 
separate report is issued. 

 
The City anticipates no material adverse findings. 

NOTE IX. – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Wastewater System Refunding 
 
On November 4, 2003, the City sold $26,450,000 in 
Wastewater System Refunding Revenue Bonds. The 
purpose of the issue was to refund the City’s 
outstanding Wastewater System Refunding Revenue 
Bonds 1993 Series B in the principal amount of 
$25,955,000, maturing October 1, 2004 through 
October 1, 2011 and to pay the cost of issuance of the 
Series 2003 A Bonds.  
 
A bond refunding, designed to lower interest rates, 
will typically create an accounting loss (the face 
amount of the new bonds being higher than the old 
bonds), which is amortized over the life of the bonds. 
 The economic rationale to initiate a refunding is 
measured according to the following schedule: 

 
Bond Refundings 

Economic Reasoning 
 

  Wastewater 
Systems  

  Series 1993B 
Bond Size   
 Old Bonds (outstanding)  $25,955,000 
 New Bonds  $26,450,000 
Present Value Saving   
 Percentage   6.28% 
 Dollars    $1,630,584 
Average Annual Savings   $229,123 
Future Value Saving    $1,832,987 
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BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE 
 

The original budget includes the adjustments necessary to bring forward the carry forward appropriation (for unexpended 
projects and encumbrances) as authorized in the annual budget resolution.  

 

The City includes encumbrances to reflect actual revenues and expenditures on a basis consistent with the City's legally 
adopted budget. Revenue encumbrances are used in grant accounting to enable revenue and expenditure budgets to be 
established prior to revenue recognition criteria being realized. In addition, the City includes a portion of the prior years' fund 
balance represented by unappropriated liquid assets remaining in the fund as a budgeted revenue in the succeeding year. The 
results of operations on a GAAP basis do not recognize the fund balance allocation as revenue as it represents prior periods' 
excess of revenues over expenditures.  

 

1.  Budgetary Expenditures 

To appropriately compare the actual expenditures to budget, the encumbrances are added back to the actual expenditures to 
reflect budgetary expenditures. 

 

2. Governmental Funds – Budget to Actual Comparison 
 

The General and Major Special Revenue Funds’ budget comparisons are presented in the Other Required Supplementary 
Information section. The non-Major Fund budget comparisons are presented in the Combining section.  On the bottom of the 
comparison is a demonstration of the adjustment necessary to reconcile to the GAAP change in net assets.  
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GAS TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 7,400,466 $         11,333,785 $       13,178,350 $       1,844,565 $         
Other Licenses, Permits and Fees -                           15,000                  59,496                 44,496 
Income on Investments 750,477 750,477 595,189 (155,288)
Other - - 522 522 
Transfers from Other Funds 1,838,057 4,490,582 4,490,582 - 

Amounts available for appropriation 9,989,000 16,589,844 18,324,139 1,734,295 
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Other Expenditures 3,700,233 3,700,233 3,725,233 (25,000)
Capital Improvements 21,557,586 26,729,091 12,883,206 13,845,885 
Debt Service 3,080,698 3,080,698 2,662,954 417,744 
Transfers to Other Funds - 2,910,729 2,910,729 - 

Total 28,338,517 36,420,751 22,182,122 14,238,629 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations (18,349,517) (19,830,907) (3,857,983) 15,972,924 
Fund Balance Allocation 18,349,517 19,830,907 - (19,830,907)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    (3,857,983)$       (3,857,983)$       

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenses

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 18,324,139 $       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (4,490,582)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 13,833,557 $       

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 22,182,122 $       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received
is reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes,
but in the year the supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. (3,008,091)

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (2,910,729)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds. 16,263,302 $       
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Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental (Tax Increment Revenue) 17,481,221$       17,435,894$       17,394,899$        (40,995)$             
Other Licenses, Permits and Fees -                        -                        1,126,445           1,126,445          
Income on Investments 127,134             128,193             520,449              392,256             
Other  2,000                 2,165,281          2,404,574           239,293             
Bond and Loan Proceeds -                        5,845,242          6,765,000           919,758             
Transfers from Other Funds -                        56,192               56,192                -                        

Amounts Available for Appropriation 17,610,355        25,630,802        28,267,559         2,636,757          
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Community Redevelopment Agency 6,314,387          15,656,288        12,364,418         3,291,870          
Capital Improvements 3,593,982          1,463,565          173,283              1,290,282          
Debt Service: .

Principal Payments 2,370,989          3,150,989          4,108,476           (957,487)            
Interest and Other 6,554,033          6,371,214          5,798,945           572,269             

Transfers to Other Funds 796,974             843,324             843,324              -                        
Transfers to Component Units 399,500             539,900             539,900              -                        

Total 20,029,865        28,025,280        23,828,346         4,196,934          
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations (2,419,510) (2,394,478) 4,439,213 6,833,691 
Fund Balance Allocation 2,419,510          2,394,478          -                         (2,394,478)         
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                     -0-  $                     4,439,213 $           4,439,213 $          

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenue andExpenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetary comparison

schedule. 28,267,559 $         
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Bond and loan proceeds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financial

reporting purposes. (6,765,000)          
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financial

reporting purposes. (56,192)               
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund

balances - governmental funds. 21,446,367 $         

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary

comparison schedule. 23,828,346 $         
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received is reported in the year the

order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received for financial
reporting purposes. -                         

Transfers to other funds and component units are outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (1,383,224)          

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances-governmental funds. 22,445,122 $         
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
Required Supplemental Information - Pension Schedules

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS
(Dollar amounts in millions)

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) Percentage of
Valuation Value Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered

Date of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

General Employees' Pension Fund (1)
10/1/98 183.32 200.68$  (2) 17.36$ (3) 91.3 % 63.46$ 27.36 %
10/1/99 174.80 182.27 7.47 (4) 95.9 (4) 46.85 15.94 
10/1/00 169.89 167.34 (2.55) (4) 101.5 (4) 35.34 (7.22)
10/1/01 155.28 155.11 (0.17) (4) 100.1 (4) 25.78 (0.66)
10/1/02 157.44 162.68 5.24 96.8 26.07 20.10 
10/1/03 158.37 167.04 8.67 94.8 24.02 36.09 

(1) Since the Plan uses the Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method which does not separately amortize Unfunded Actuarial Liabilities, a schedule of
funding progress is not required.  All six year recommended trend information has been restated and calculated using the Entry Age Normal Cost
Method which calculates the funding progress by a ratio of the Actuarial Value of Assets to the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL).

(2) The plan conducted a five year review of actuarial assumptions and made a number of changes, primarily among which was a change in mortality
(from GA84 to the GA83 schedules) which had increased the unfunded actuarial accrued liability by $5.81 million.

(3) The significant increase in the October 1, 1998 unfunded actuarial accrued liability is a result of the adoption of the COLA.  The adoption of the 
COLA had an impact on the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $17.07 million.

(4) Due to the transfer (employee choice) from the Defined Benefit to the Defined Contribution plans starting October 1, 1998, a significant change in
unfunded actuarial accrued liability and the funded ratio has resulted for the 1999, 2000 and 2001 actuarial valuations.  The rate of these changes
should be materially reduced now that the 3-year (1998 - 2001) option period  (for employees with less than 10 years of service as of October 1,
1998) is over.

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) Percentage of
Valuation Value Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered

Date of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Firefighter Pension Fund (1)
10/1/98 138.67 $    137.15 $    (1.52)$   101.1 % 14.99 $   (10.14) %
10/1/99 156.32 145.12 (11.20) 107.7 16.35 (68.50)
10/1/00 176.91 158.89 (18.02) 111.3 17.61 (102.33)
10/1/01 184.43 167.28 (17.15) 110.2 18.33 (93.56)
10/1/02 186.36 182.67 (3.69) 102.0 21.20 (17.41)
10/1/03 188.56 194.88 6.32 96.8 23.66 26.71 

Police Pension Fund (1)
10/1/98 174.86 184.32 9.46 94.9 27.01 35.02 
10/1/99 198.15 204.85 6.70 (2) 96.7 28.03 23.90 
10/1/00 (3) 226.28 219.47 (6.81) 103.1 30.04 (22.67)
10/1/01 238.69 236.78 (1.91) 100.8 32.75 (5.83)
10/1/02 242.24 255.45 13.21 94.8 34.95 37.80 
10/1/03 248.85 284.54 35.69 87.5 37.15 96.07 

(1) All six year-recommended trend information has been calculated using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method.  Under the Entry Age Normal
actuarial cost method, the actuarial present value of future benefits for each member is allocated for the member's pensionable compensation on
a level basis between the entry age of the member and the estimated exit age.  The portion of the present value of future benefits not provided
for by the present value of future normal costs is called the actuarial accrued liability.

(2) The decrease in the October 1, 1999 UAAL for the Police Pension Plan is primarily the result of the favorable investment experience, offset
somewhat by a net loss on other experience.

(3) The results for October 1, 2000 have been revised since the previous report by the actuary.
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
Housing & Urban 
Development Grants Accounts for the receipts and disbursements of U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development Grants, Community Development Block Grants, Home 
Investment Partnership Program Grants, Housing Opportunities for Persons With 
Aids Grants, and Rental Rehabilitation Program Grants administered by the Office 
of Community Planning and Development. 

 

State Housing  
Partnership Fund Accounts for the receipts and disbursements of the State of Florida grant under the 

State Housing Partnership Fund. 
 

Forfeitures Act Accounts for receipts of money or property confiscated during illegal action.  
Disbursements can only be used for law enforcement activities. 

 
H.P. Leu Gardens  Accounts for revenue, expenditures and specific contributions made to the 

botanical gardens.  

 
Cemetery  Accounts for proceeds from a fund for maintenance of the City's Greenwood 

Cemetery.  
 
Police Camp  Accounts for assets contributed to the City for police recreational activities.  
 
Narcoossee Road 
Construction Accounts for the costs of improvements to Narcoossee Road (State Road 15). 
 

Performing Arts and Education 
Center Construction Accounts for the costs related to the public/private sector efforts to create a 

Performing Arts and Education Center. 
 

Parks Initiative Accounts for the costs related to the City’s capital improvement program for open 
spaces/parks initiative. 

 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
  
Fleet Management Accounts for the operation and intracity charges for all City owned vehicles.  

 

Risk Management Accounts for the City's risk management activity for worker's compensation, auto 
liability, property and contents loss, and general liability.  

Project/Construction 
Management Accounts for the management and inspection services provided to other funds' 

construction projects.  The Fund was closed in FY 2003. 
 

Facilities Management Accounts for the construction, remodeling, preventative maintenance, and general 
repairs to City facilities provided to other funds. The Fund was closed in FY 2003. 
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Internal Loan Accounts for loans and bonds recorded in the City's Banking Fund which are loaned 

to other funds and component units to provide financing for capital projects. The 
funding for this program comes from the Sunshine State Governmental Financing 
Commission Loans, the Capital Improvement Refunding Special Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1992, 1998A, 1998B, 2002 and the City's Capital Improvement Special 
Revenue Commercial Paper Program - February 1994. 

 

Labor Pool Accounts for the operation and intracity charges of a City labor pool of employees 
that will be used to supplement existing City staff when and where needed. 

  
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

 
Firefighter Pension Accounts for a defined benefit pension plan for City firefighters. 

 
Police Pension Accounts for a defined benefit pension plan for City police officers.  
 
General Employees' 
    Pension Accounts for a defined benefit pension plan for all City employees other than 
 Firefighters and police officers. 
 
Defined Contribution  
    Plan Fund Accounts for a defined contribution plan for all City employees other than 

firefighters and police officers. 
 

Employees' Disability  
    Income Accounts for the City's provision for disability income for General Employees. 
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                                  Capital Projects Funds
Performing Arts Total

Narcoossee and Education Non-Major
Police Road Center Parks Governmental
Camp Construction Construction Initiative Funds

81,466 $            7,830,831 $         1,098 $             9,462,652 $      23,712,176 $        

- - 9,621 53 61,627 
- - - - 1,451,439 
- - - - 34,167 

81,466 $            7,830,831 $         10,719 $           9,462,705 $      25,259,409 $        

- $                     - $                        587 $                1,933,895 $      2,357,197 $          
- - - - 71,799 
- - - - 18,070 
- - 5,000 - 741,438 
- - - - 2,288,645 
- - 5,587 1,933,895 5,477,149 

- - - - 34,167 
- - - 2,825,193 2,908,871 

81,466 - - - 4,299,642 
- 7,830,831 5,132 4,703,617 12,539,580 

81,466 7,830,831 5,132 7,528,810 19,782,260 
81,466 $            7,830,831 $         10,719 $           9,462,705 $      25,259,409 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Special Revenue Funds

Housing & Urban State Housing
Development Partnership  Forfeitures H.P. Leu

Grants Fund Act Gardens Cemetery
REVENUES

Intergovernmenta 8,415,385 $          1,899,282 $         327,494 $            47,161 $               - $                     
Other Licenses, Permits and Fees 118,403 - - 832,798 287,432 
Income on Investments 8,384 133,743 124,621 - 46,266 
Other 89,444 17 4,100 994 - 

Total Revenues 8,631,616 2,033,042 456,215 880,953 333,698 

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating

General Administration - - - - 493,948 
Housing 8,419,064 1,884,208 - - - 
Public Works - - - - - 
Families, Parks and Recreation - - - 2,365,205 - 
Police - - 588,548 - - 
Total Expenditures 8,419,064 1,884,208 588,548 2,365,205 493,948 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 212,552 148,834 (132,333) (1,484,252) (160,250)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES)
Transfers In - - - 1,311,000 - 
Transfers (Out) - - - - - 

Total Other Financing Sources
and (Uses) - - - 1,311,000 - 

Net Change in Fund Balances 212,552 148,834 (132,333) (173,252) (160,250)

Fund Balances - Beginning 402,666 - 2,901,819 126,258 1,009,727 

Fund Balances - Ending 615,218 $            148,834 $            2,769,486 $         (46,994)$              849,477 $         
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                   Capital Projects Funds
Performing Arts Total

Narcoossee and Education Non-Major
Police Road Center Parks Governmental
Camp Construction Construction Initiative Funds

- $                     - $                       - $                   1,622,155 $    12,311,477 $       
- - - - 1,238,633 

3,552 338,232 - 599,587 1,254,385 
- - 106,189 - 200,744 

3,552 338,232 106,189 2,221,742 15,005,239 

- - - - 493,948 
- - - - 10,303,272 
- 12,517 164,644 11,325,235 11,502,396 
- - - - 2,365,205 
- - - - 588,548 
- 12,517 164,644 11,325,235 25,253,369 

3,552 325,715 (58,455) (9,103,493) (10,248,130)
- -

- - 50,105 508,563 1,869,668 
- - - - - 

- - 50,105 508,563 1,869,668 

3,552 325,715 (8,350) (8,594,930) (8,378,462)

77,914 7,505,116 13,482 16,123,740 28,160,722 

81,466 $           7,830,831 $         5,132 $            7,528,810 $    19,782,260 $       
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Other Intergovernmental 2,185,879 $         2,665,879 $         1,365,667 $         (1,300,212)$       
Income on Investments 1,000,000 1,000,000 712,003 (287,997)
Other 162,051 476,000 87,196 (388,804)
Bond and Loan Proceeds 1,086,297 1,086,297 971,348 (114,949)
Transfers from Other Funds 12,025,641 16,000,706 14,199,683 (1,801,023)

Amounts Available for Appropriation 16,459,868 21,228,882 17,335,897 (3,892,985)
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Executive Offices 111,291 111,291 121,053 (9,762)
Economic Development 1,430,875 2,496,411 1,050,604 1,445,807 
Families, Parks & Recreation 3,173,296 3,353,296 2,871,466 481,830 
Finance 800,001 800,001 800,195 (194)
Fire 2,435,447 2,435,447 2,084,551 350,896 
General Administrative 4,539,252 5,019,997 4,059,862 960,135 
Housing 1,817,648 5,122,710 4,581,904 540,806 
Management, Budget and Accounting - - - - 
Non-departmental - - - - 
Police 2,107,718 2,251,718 2,990,622 (738,904)
Public Works 29,189,597 28,783,268 10,675,922 18,107,346 
Non-departmental:

Debt service 308,121 308,121 328,573 (20,452)
Transfers to Other Funds 8,900,858 8,900,858 8,900,858 - 

Total 54,814,104 59,583,118 38,465,610 21,117,508 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations (38,354,236) (38,354,236) (21,129,713) 17,224,523 

Fund Balance Allocation 38,354,236 38,354,236 - (38,354,236)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    (21,129,713)$     (21,129,713)$     

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetary 17,335,897 

comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Bond and loan proceeds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for
financial reporting purposes. (971,348)

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for
financial reporting purposes. (14,199,683)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances - governmental funds. 2,164,866 $         

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary

comparison schedule. 38,465,610 $       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Ecumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received is reported in the year
the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received for
financial reporting purposes. (5,532,382)

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditures for
financial reporting purposes. (8,900,858)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances-governmental funds. 24,032,370 $       
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT GRANTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 6,497,000 $         6,497,000 $         8,415,385 $         1,918,385 $         
Other Licenses, Permits and Fees 41,362 118,403 77,041 
Income on Investments - - 8,384 8,384 
Other - 69,742 89,444 19,702 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 6,497,000 6,608,104 8,631,616 2,023,512 
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Housing 14,481,623 15,198,337 8,464,392 6,733,945 

Total 14,481,623 15,198,337 8,464,392 6,733,945 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations (7,984,623) (8,590,233) 167,224 8,757,457 
Fund Balance Allocation 7,984,623 8,590,233 - (8,590,233)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over  

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    167,224 $            167,224 $            

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 8,631,616 $         
Differences - budget to GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary
resource but is not a current-year revenue for financial
reporting purposes. - 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 8,631,616 $         

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 8,464,392 $         

from the budgetary comparison schedule.

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for goods and services ordered but not

received is reported in the year the order is placed 
for budgetary purposes, but in the year they are received
for financial reporting purposes (45,328)

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds. 8,419,064 $         
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STATE HOUSING PARTNERSHIP FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 1,641,164 $         1,931,056 $         1,899,282 $         (31,774)$            
Income on Investments - - 133,743 133,743 
Other - - 17 17 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 1,641,164 1,931,056 2,033,042 101,986 
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Housing 3,970,448 4,260,340 1,884,208 2,376,132 

Total 3,970,448 4,260,340 1,884,208 2,376,132 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations (2,329,284) (2,329,284) 148,834 2,478,118 
-

Fund Balance Allocation 2,329,284 2,329,284 - (2,329,284)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over  

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    148,834 $            148,834 $            

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows of GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 2,033,042 $         
Differences - budget to GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary
resource but is not a current-year revenue for financial
reporting purposes. - 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 2,033,042 $         

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 1,884,208 $         

from the budgetary comparison schedule.

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for goods and services ordered but not

received is reported in the year the order is placed 
for budgetary purposes, but in the year they are received
for financial reporting purposes - 

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds. 1,884,208 $         
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FORFEITURES ACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental - $                        39,000 $              327,494 $            288,494 $            
Income on Investments 15,000  15,000 124,621 109,621 
Other -  - 4,100 4,100 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 15,000 54,000 456,215 402,215 
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Police 1,149,280 1,404,544 588,548 815,996 

Transfers to Other Funds - - - - 
Total 1,149,280 1,404,544 588,548 815,996 

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations (1,134,280) (1,350,544) (132,333) 1,218,211 

Fund Balance Allocation 1,134,280 1,350,544 - (1,350,544)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    (132,333)$          (132,333)$          

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 456,215 $            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 456,215 $            

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 588,548 $            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for services and good are reported in the year contracted
for budgetary purposes but are not expenditures for
financial reporting purposes - 

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but 
are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds. 588,548 $            
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

H.P. LEU GARDENS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental - $                        47,161 $              47,161 $              - $                        
Other Licenses, Permits, and Fees 1,161,211  1,161,211 832,798 (328,413)
Income on Investments -  - - - 
Other 12,500 12,500 994 (11,506)
Transfers from Other Funds 1,311,000 1,311,000 1,311,000 - 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 2,484,711 2,531,872 2,191,953 (339,919)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Families, Parks and Recreation 2,539,101 2,586,262 2,403,555 182,707 

Total 2,539,101 2,586,262 2,403,555 182,707 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations (54,390) (54,390) (211,602) (157,212)
Fund Balance Allocation 54,390 54,390 - (54,390)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    (211,602)$          (211,602)$          

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 2,191,953 $         
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (1,311,000)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 880,953 $            

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 2,403,555 $         
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for services and goods are reported in the year contracted
for budgetary purposes but are not expenditures for 
financial reporting purposes. (38,350)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds. 2,365,205 $         
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NARCOOSSEE ROAD CONSTRUCTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Income on Investments - $                        - $                        338,232 $            338,232 $            

Amounts Available for Appropriation - - 338,232 338,232 
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Public Works - 3,114,138 330,631 2,783,507 

Total - 3,114,138 330,631 2,783,507 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations - (3,114,138) 7,601 3,121,739 
Fund Balance Allocation - 3,114,138 - (3,114,138)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    7,601 $                7,601 $                

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 338,232 $            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary
resource but is not a current-year revenue for financial
reporting purposes. - 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 338,232 $            

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 330,631 $            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received is reported
in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the 
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. (318,114)

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds. 12,517 $              
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

PERFORMING ARTS AND EDUCATION CENTER CONSTRUCTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Other 103,363 $            103,363 $            106,189 $            2,826 $                
Transfers from Other Funds 50,105 50,105 50,105 - 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 153,468 153,468 156,294 2,826 
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):

Capital Outlays:
Public Works 153,468 153,468 164,644 (11,176)

Total 153,468 153,468 164,644 (11,176)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations - - (8,350) (8,350)
Fund Balance Allocation - - - - 
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Charges to Appropriations -0-  $                    -0-  $                    (8,350)$              (8,350)$              

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 156,294 $            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary
resource but is not a current-year revenue for financial
reporting purposes. - 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (50,105)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 106,189 $            

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. 164,644 $            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. - 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds. 164,644 $            
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  Total
Internal Labor Internal

Loan Pool Service Funds

13,848,824 $      22,912 $             67,818,196 $      
103,844 
532,991 

13,848,824 22,912 68,455,031 

10,972,698 - 10,972,698 
139,270,706 - 139,270,706 

- - 555,767 
- - 7,771,848 
- - 245,762 
- - 497,059 
- - 65,853,539 
- - (42,924,807)

615,053 - 615,053 
150,858,457 - 182,857,625 
164,707,281 22,912 251,312,656 

5,893 5,591 778,611 
- 3,831 81,284 

2,297,267 - 2,297,267 
- - 26,276 

900,000 - 900,000 
4,215,000 - 4,215,000 

- - 10,557,000 
7,418,160 9,422 18,855,438 

- - 302,175 
42,866,213 - 42,866,213 

112,187,654 - 112,187,654 
- - 23,914,035 

155,053,867 - 179,270,077 
162,472,027 9,422 198,125,515 

- - 31,999,168 
2,235,254 13,490 21,187,973 
2,235,254$       13,490$            53,187,141$     

      The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
      (continued)
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Project
Fleet Risk Construction Facilities

Management Management Management Management
Operating Revenues

User Charges 19,936,572 $      14,824,595 $      3,111,230 $        7,079,235 $        
Other 449,228 607,721 1,302 12,580 

Total Operating Revenues 20,385,800 15,432,316 3,112,532 7,091,815 

Operating Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Employee

Benefits 2,980,434 670,709 2,216,337 4,267,562 
Contractual Services, Materials

and Supplies 8,445,858 956,589 503,322 2,907,937 
Depreciation Expense 6,079,431 7,352 42,218 127,291 
Insurance and Other Expenses 1,614,823 10,665,109 216,634 698,281 

Total Operating Expenses 19,120,546 12,299,759 2,978,511 8,001,071 

Operating Income (Loss) 1,265,254 3,132,557 134,021 (909,256)

Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses)
Income on Investments 449,739 1,676,188 3,090 - 
Interest Expense (13,776) - (2,431) - 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 475,967 - - - 

Total Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses) 911,930 1,676,188 659 - 

Income (Loss) Before 
Contributions and Transfers 2,177,184 4,808,745 134,680 (909,256)

Capital Contributions 2,507,249 - 9,202 88,316 
Transfers In 491,473 - - 1,064,592 
Transfers (Out) (349,487) - (112,679) (527,176)

 2,649,235 - (103,477) 625,732 

Change in Net Assets 4,826,419 4,808,745 31,203 (283,524)

Net Assets - Beginning 39,115,851 2,187,382 (31,203) 283,524 

Net Assets - Ending 43,942,270 $      6,996,127 $        -0- $                    -0- $                    

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Governmental Activities
Internal Service Funds
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  Total
Internal Labor Internal 

Loan Pool Service Funds

5,601,225 $        - $                       50,552,857 $      
- - 1,070,831 

5,601,225 - 51,623,688 

45,671 11,473 10,192,186 

4,734 45 12,818,485 
- - 6,256,292 

102,675 - 13,297,522 
153,080 11,518 42,564,485 

5,448,145 (11,518) 9,059,203 

666,906 8 2,795,931 
(6,115,051) - (6,131,258)

- - 475,967 

(5,448,145) 8 (2,859,360)

- (11,510) 6,199,843 

- - 2,604,767 
- 25,000 1,581,065 
- - (989,342)
- 25,000 3,196,490 

- 13,490 9,396,333 

2,235,254 - 43,790,808 

2,235,254 $        13,490 $             53,187,141 $      

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

        -123-









 Total
Internal Labor Internal

Loan Pool Service Funds

5,448,145 $       (11,518)$          9,059,203 $        

- - 6,256,292 
91,243 - 91,243 

- - 112,701 
- - (90,279)

2,027,510 - 2,027,510 
204,339 - 204,339 

(2,142) 5,591 (924,762)
- 3,831 (170,582)

(82,166) - (82,166)
- - (311,918)
- - 1,864,217 

2,238,784 9,422 8,976,595 

7,686,929 $       (2,096)$            18,035,798 $      

        The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

General
Firefighters' Police Employee

Pension Pension Pension
Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 605,109 $           1,305,734 $        322,697 $           
Accounts Receivable 35,648 - 300 

640,757 1,305,734 322,997 
Investments, at Fair Value

U.S. Government Obligations 27,163,245 38,726,798 23,068,556 
Domestic Corporate Bonds 16,756,709 23,858,794 14,213,566 
Foreign Sovereign Bonds 400,428 571,311 341,170 
Domestic Stocks 81,954,588 118,946,408 65,247,180 
International Stocks 14,998,663 22,712,610 17,494,170 
Short-term Investments 7,650,019 11,304,418 7,615,534 
Mortgages 13,587,142 19,164,665 11,489,297 
Real Estate 16,050,412 18,506,644 9,897,103 
Accrued Income 621,795 883,680 498,177 
Defined Contribution Investments - - - 

Total Investments 179,183,001 254,675,328 149,864,753 

Securities Lending Collateral 65,843,012 92,905,143 47,034,162 
Participant Loans - - - 

Total Assets 245,666,770 348,886,205 197,221,912 

LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending 65,843,012 92,905,143 47,034,162 
Accounts Payable 362,971 405,824 218,986 

Total Liabilities 66,205,983 93,310,967 47,253,148 

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

and Other Purposes 179,460,787$   255,575,238$   149,968,764$   
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Defined Total
Contribution Employees' Employee 

Plan Disability Retirement
Fund Fund Funds

52 $                    5,697,760 $        7,931,352 $        
- - 35,948 

52 5,697,760 7,967,300 

- - 88,958,599 
- - 54,829,069 
- - 1,312,909 
- - 266,148,176 
- - 55,205,443 
- - 26,569,971 
- - 44,241,104 
- - 44,454,159 
- - 2,003,652 

81,220,838 - 81,220,838 
81,220,838 - 664,943,920 

- - 205,782,317 
3,408,665 - 3,408,665 

84,629,555 5,697,760 882,102,202 

- - 205,782,317 
- - 987,781 
- - 206,770,098 

84,629,555$     5,697,760$       675,332,104$   
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

General
Firefighters' Police Employee

Pension Pension Pension
Funds Funds Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer 2,541,887 $        6,498,015 $        2,883,092 $        
State 1,182,745 2,155,329 - 
State in Excess of 1997 Frozen Amounts 737,411 641,308 - 
Plan Members 1,804,899 2,306,238 1,273,046 
Plan Members Buybacks 3,837 18,050 1,777 
Transfers from the General Employee Pension Plan - - - 

Total Contributions 6,270,779 11,618,940 4,157,915 

Investment Income:
From Investment Activities

Net Increase in Fair
Value of Investments 22,976,847 32,900,552 17,421,228 

Interest 3,203,007 4,442,491 2,708,537 
Dividends 1,404,228 1,770,980 1,015,492 

Total Investment Income 27,584,082 39,114,023 21,145,257 
Investment Activity Expenses:

Investment Management Fees (625,397) (860,148) (512,205)
Custodian Fees (39,164) (54,869) (33,300)

Total Investment Expenses (664,561) (915,017) (545,505)
Net Income from Investing Activities 26,919,521 38,199,006 20,599,752 

From Securities Lending Activities:
Securities Lending 470,132 677,525 323,031 
Securities Lending Expenses:

Interest Expense (Returned to Borrower) (384,493) (553,491) (266,000)
Agent Fees (23,499) (34,089) (15,556)

Total Securities Lending Activities Expenses (407,992) (587,580) (281,556)
Net Income from Securities Lending Activities 62,140 89,945 41,475 

Total Net Investment Income 26,981,661 38,288,951 20,641,227 

Total Additions 33,252,440 49,907,891 24,799,142 

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 10,950,742 11,233,824 7,475,256 
Refunds of Contributions                  27,940 34,293 134,101 
Refund of Forfeitures to Employer - - - 
Transfers to the Defined Contribution Plan - - 3,661,840 
Administrative Expense 131,117 104,117 69,985 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 15,955 15,955 15,954 

Total Deductions 11,125,754 11,388,189 11,357,136 

Net Increase 22,126,686 38,519,702 13,442,006 

Net Assets Held in Trust For Pension Benefits:
Net assets - Beginning of Year 157,334,101 217,055,536 136,526,758 
Net assets - End of Year 179,460,787$   255,575,238$   149,968,764$   
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Defined Totals
Contribution Employees' Employee 

Plan Disability Retirement
Fund Fund Funds

5,003,720 $        - $                       16,926,714 $      
- - 3,338,074 
- - 1,378,719 

1,729,386 446,040 7,559,609 
- - 23,664 

3,661,840 - 3,661,840 
10,394,946 446,040 32,888,620 

10,659,400 - 83,958,027 
- 248,553 10,602,588 
- - 4,190,700 

10,659,400 248,553 98,751,315 

- - (1,997,750)
- - (127,333)
- - (2,125,083)

10,659,400 248,553 96,626,232 

- - 1,470,688 

- - (1,203,984)
- - (73,144)
- - (1,277,128)
- - 193,560 

10,659,400 248,553 96,819,792 

21,054,346 694,593 129,708,412 

5,668,898 439,055 35,767,775 
- - 196,334 

600,000 - 600,000 
- - 3,661,840 
- 14,736 319,955 
- - 47,864 

6,268,898 453,791 40,593,768 

14,785,448 240,802 89,114,644 

69,844,107 5,456,958 586,217,460 
84,629,555$     5,697,760$       675,332,104$   
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SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION 
 

The information provided herein contains schedules which the City deems necessary to provide additional 
budgetary, debt service, and risk management detail and required supplementary pension information. 

DESCRIPTION OF SCHEDULES 
 

Budget to Actual Comparison for the Operating Accounts of the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds of 
the primary government.  

  Wastewater System 

  Orlando Centroplex 

  Parking System 

  Stormwater Utility 

  Solid Waste Management 

  Fleet Management 

  Risk Management 

  Project/Construction Management 

  Facilities Management 

  Internal Loan  

Individual Year Risk Management Summary  

Multiple Year Pension Tables  

  General Employees' 

  Firefighter  

  Police 

Statements of Bonded Debt and Interest 

 Primary Government:    

  Community Redevelopment Agency Bonds 

  Special Assessment Revenue Bonds 

  Capital Improvement Special Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Wastewater System Bonds  

  Parking System Bonds 

 Component Unit: 

  Civic Facilities Authority Bonds 
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PROPRIETARY FUND BUDGETS 
  
The City adopts operating budgets for the proprietary funds on a modified accrual basis which is not the same basis of 
accounting as that used to account for the actual results of operations on an accrual basis. In addition, the budgets prepared 
are for the operating accounts of each fund. The following items indicate the primary differences between the budgetary basis 
and the GAAP basis used to account for the results of operations for the operating accounts: 

 

a.  Interest income earned on restricted assets is included in the results of operations. Such amounts are not budgeted in the 
operating accounts. This portion of interest income is restricted for a specific purpose (debt, capital projects, renewal and 
replacement, etc.) and is not normally available for operations.  

 

b.  Intrafund transfers to the restricted accounts are budgeted and transferred on a budgetary basis but are eliminated on a 
GAAP basis. 

 

c.  Renewal and replacement account expenses for certain repairs and maintenance are not reflected in the budgeted 
amounts of the operating accounts; however, transfers to the restricted accounts to maintain the required reserves are 
budgeted. 

 

d.  Interest expense is budgeted as debt service transfers, which include principal payments. The portion of the transfer 
representing principal payments has been adjusted to offset the related liability on a GAAP basis.  

 

e.  Depreciation expense is not budgeted; however, expenditures for capital outlays are budgeted. These outlays have been 
capitalized as fixed assets and eliminated from the results of operations on a GAAP basis.  

 

f.  Net Asset allocations are residual unappropriated liquid assets resulting from prior periods' operations which are budgeted 
and included as revenue on a budgetary basis but eliminated on a GAAP basis.  

 

The proprietary funds' budget to actual statements (for operating accounts) are presented in the Supplementary Information 
Section and demonstrate the adjustments necessary to reconcile to the GAAP change in net assets. 

 
 













CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
FLEET MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS ACTUAL AND BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance
Budgetary Favorable

Basis Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues

User Charges 19,936,573 $        20,265,436 $        (328,863)$           
Other 449,228 1,230,000 (780,772)

Total Operating Revenues 20,385,801 21,495,436 (1,109,635)

Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 2,980,434 3,217,842 237,408 
Contractual Services, Materials and Supplies 15,247,105 18,764,496 3,517,391 
Insurance and Other Expenses 1,614,823 1,617,876 3,053 

Total Expenses 19,842,362 23,600,214 3,757,852 

Operating Income (Loss) Before
Non-Operating Income and
Other Sources and (Uses) 543,439 (2,104,778) 2,648,217 

Non-Operating Income (Loss)
Income on Investments 449,739 175,059 274,680 
Principal Payments on Loans (1,096,945) (1,635,793) 538,848 
Interest Expense (13,776) (57,009) 43,233 

(660,982) (1,517,743) 856,761 

Income (Loss) Before  Other Sources and (Uses) (117,543) (3,622,521) 3,504,978 

Other Sources and (Uses)
Capital Contributions 2,507,249 - 2,507,249 
Transfers From Other Funds 491,473 491,473 - 
Transfers To Other Funds (349,487) (349,487) - 
Net Assets Allocation 3,480,535 3,480,535 - 

Total Other Sources and (Uses) 6,129,770 3,622,521 2,507,249 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses Per
Budget Ordinances 6,012,227 -0- $                     6,012,227 $          

Net Assets Allocation (3,480,535)
Encumbrance Adjustment 2,707,913 
Capitalization of Fixed Assets 4,093,333 
Depreciation Expense (6,079,431)  
Principal Payment on Loans 1,096,945 
Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets 475,967 

Change in Net Assets 4,826,419 $          

This schedule is prepared on a budgetary basis for the operating accounts of the proprietary fund and as such does not present
the results of operations on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles, but is presented for supplemental information.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
RISK MANAGEMENT FUND

TEN YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION

For the Year Ended September 30
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

5,802,000 $    6,194,000 $    6,809,000 $    7,235,000 $    7,695,000 $    10,075,000 $  
1,188,416 1,295,104 740,169 979,924 807,651 506,141 

6,990,416 $    7,489,104 $    7,549,169 $    8,214,924 $    8,502,651 $    10,581,141 $  

2,369,125 $    2,325,662 $    2,032,632 $    2,834,901 $    2,831,780 $    2,224,759 $    

3,413,294 $    2,381,251 $    4,137,283 $    5,005,359 $    5,032,879 $    5,103,313 $    

1,179,446 $    562,236 $       1,347,522 $    1,434,481 $    1,394,884 $    1,210,519 $    
2,524,798 1,297,594 3,070,019 2,906,812 2,647,104 - 
3,148,824 2,084,679 6,224,441 4,029,624 - - 
3,615,521 2,448,385 7,105,241 - - - 
3,974,001 2,880,259 - - - - 
4,134,902 - - - - - 

- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 

3,413,294 $    2,381,251 $    4,137,283 $    5,005,359 $    5,032,879 $    5,103,313 $    
4,460,535 2,956,901 7,260,518 7,444,110 6,032,119 - 
4,556,499 3,399,465 9,457,945 7,705,636 - - 
4,464,447 3,497,884 10,188,922 - - - 
5,048,460 3,320,163 - - - - 
5,221,736 - - - - - 

- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 
- - - - - - 

1,808,442 $    938,912 $       6,051,639 $    2,700,277 $    999,240 $       - $                   

6,990,416 $    7,489,104 $    7,549,169 $    8,214,924 $    8,502,651 $    10,581,141 $  
(5,221,736) (3,320,163) (10,188,922) (7,705,636) (6,032,119) (5,103,313)
1,768,680 $    4,168,941 $    (2,639,753)$  509,288 $       2,470,532 $    5,477,828 $    

Total Excess(Deficit) Funding of Reestimated Incurred Claims-10 Years Shown. 17,780,499 $  
Excess Funding of Reestimated Incurred Claims - Years 1981-1993. 3,225,835 
Recoveries from Special Disability Trust Fund in 1993-2003. 5,748,900 
Year End Acturarial Adjustment 2,642,722 
Excess Funding of Total Risk Management Program from Inception. (5) (22,401,828)
Net Assets at September 30, 2003 6,996,128 $    
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE AND 

DETERMINATION OF ACTUARIAL VALUE 

EXPLANATION AND SUMMARY OF MATERIALS 
  
  
  

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS 

INVESTMENT POLICY - BACKGROUND 
The City has three pension boards (General Employees', Firefighter and Police) which have historically utilized a 
similar investment policy statement. The policy differences have generally related to strategy constraints placed on 
the Firefighter and Police investment authority by Florida State Statutes which, until October 1, 1998, prohibited 
investment in non U.S. domiciled companies or lower rated securities. The investment strategy has, although it is 
not required, followed the general rules of ERISA (which guide the investment of private sector pension plans) 
which are principally: 

 

Diversification - to spread the risk and limit exposure to a particular type or group of investments. 

 

The Prudent Person Rule - requires the trustee to act as a fiduciary would in managing investments for a 
third party. 

 

The Firefighter and Police Pension Boards and the Pension Advisory Committee (PAC), which advises the City 
Council (sitting as the General Employees' Pension Board), meet quarterly with their Pension Consultant to review 
the performance of the portfolio. Performance is evaluated for each individual money manager and collectively by 
types of investment; equity, fixed income and real estate, and for the portfolio in aggregate. 

 

It is widely understood and well documented that the asset allocation mix is the key element to the pension boards' 
investment policy decisions and the expected investment results. The priority decision schedule used by the City 
Boards is as follows: 

 

1. Asset allocation mix 

2. Active/passive alternative 

3. Manager selection (by investment category) 

4. Actual investment decisions (made by managers selected) 

HISTORY (FOR THE MOST RECENT 12 MONTHS): 
 

Combined Board Actions - Police, Firefighter and General Employees’: 

 

During the year, the Pension Boards closely monitored the portfolio performance and target to actual allocations.  In 
June, each of the Pension Boards reviewed the asset allocation for their respective plans.  Both the Police and 
Firefighters’ Pension Boards increased the total allocation in equities from  55% of Plan assets to 58%.  To 
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accommodate this increase, both Boards reduced their allocation to bonds from 38% to 35%.  The General 
Employees’ Pension Plan, which is a closed plan, chose to decrease its allocation to equities by 2% and 
correspondingly increase its allocation to bonds (specifically mortgages) by 2%, moving its equity target to 54% 
and its bonds target to 40%.  The General Fund delayed its re-balancing  due to the struggles in the mortgage 
securities market toward the end of the fiscal year.  As of September 30, 2003, the actual allocations were adjusted 
to very close to targeted allocations, except as noted above. 

 

Through the utilization of a REIT investment specialist the Boards have achieved a broadly diversified investment 
portfolio including most real estate sectors such as Apartments, Retail and Industrial, etc. with geographic 
diversification as well. The Boards do not currently plan to invest directly or indirectly in land development 
companies, foreign real estate, or provide venture capital. 

 

Two of three closed-end Real Estate trusts in which the three pension funds are invested are in the final stages of the 
liquidation phase of the investment and only have small investment balances which represent reserves for 
contingenices related to sold properties and potential close-out expenses. The shares in the other closed-end fund 
were sold to the Alaska State Pension Investment Board in December 2003.  The proceeds of the sale were invested 
according to the asset allocation model for each pension fund. 

 

For further details, see the target to actual allocation schedules on pages 151, 152, and 153. 

 

Board Action – General Employees’: 

 

As a result of the introduction of the new 401a Defined Contribution (DC) Plan for General Employees on October 
1, 1998, a substantial reduction of cash flows into the Defined Benefit (DB) Plan has occurred as expected. To 
protect against adverse market conditions during the initial period of time to October of 2001 when a large 
percentage of DB Plan participants could elect to transfer the value of benefits, in cash, to their self-directed DC 
Plan accounts, the Board elected to initially isolate a portion of the DB Plan assets (approximately 25%) in a 
separate actively managed short bond account to provide additional liquidity for the transfers. Total participant 
transfers from the DB Plan to the DC Plan during the three (3) year initial period were $86,592,036. After the initial 
transfer period ended on September 30, 2001, the transfer amounts slowed considerably in fiscal 2002, to only 
$2,467,376, but increased again in fiscal 2003 to $3,661,840 (possibly due to the employees layed off that 
converted). As of September 30, 2003, total transfers into the DC Plan were $92,721,252. With the transfer amount 
dropping significantly in 2002, the Board decided to reduce the short bond account accordingly. At September 30, 
2003, this short bond account asset value was $2,014,765, or   1.3% of the DB Plan assets.  These transfers from the 
DB Plan to the DC Plan, payment of benefits, expenses and the net investment activity resulted in DB Plan asset 
balances as of September 30, 2003 and 2002 of $149,968,764 and $136,526,758, respectively.  
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COMPARABILITY OF PERFORMANCE 
 

Schedules on pages 154, 155 and 156 provide single, three and five-year average comparative investment results for 
the General Employees’, Firefighter and Police defined benefit pension funds, respectively. Performance is 
presented for the equity, fixed income, and real estate components of the portfolios and for the aggregate portfolios. 

 

The aggregate performance of each fund is compared to the "Composite Universe Median", which is a large group 
of pension funds investment results, constructed to reflect the City's pension funds target asset allocation. 

 

As indicated in the footnotes to these schedules, the construction of the Composite Universe is adjusted periodically 
to properly reflect investment allocation policy parameters in place during the measurement period. As an additional 
comparison of performance, a "reference fund" is constructed from appropriate nationally recognized indices in 
proportions to reflect investment allocation policy parameters. The construction of this comparative reference fund 
is also adjusted periodically to reflect appropriate policy for the period of evaluation. 

 

The investment returns for the  Firefighters’ and General Employees’ Pension Funds outperformed their 
benchmarks for the trailing five-year period due primarily to the overweighting of the Bond component of the 
portfolio and the Bond component’s relative real return during part of the five-year period.  The Firefighters’ 
Pension Fund benefited from a slight overweight in real estate and a slight underweight in equities.  The Police 
Pension Fund trailed its benchmark for the trailing five-year period by 0.1%, mainly due to a slightly higher 
weighting in equities in 2002 than the other two funds.  A small portion of assets is allocated to investment in Real 
Estate. As of September 30, 2003, the Real Estate component outperformed both the Equity and Bond components 
of the portfolio during both the three and five year periods, demonstrating  the benefits of diversification. 

 

Returns within the reporting and measurement periods have generally been volatile as evidenced by the Schedule 
"Market Indication of Quarterly Return". 

DETERMINATION OF ACTUARIAL EVALUATION 
 

As previously reflected in the Notes, the Boards elected to employ a four-year forward market smoothing approach 
with regard to asset valuation for actuarial purposes. This approach is designed to alleviate potential volatility which 
might otherwise be experienced under a pure market valuation alternative. For all periods for the Police Pension 
Plan and for the General Employees' and Firefighter Pensions for the periods before and including 1991-92, the 
realized and unrealized market gains/(losses) were determined for each year and the changes were electively spread 
over a four-year period with one quarter being distributed to the current year and each of the three succeeding 
periods. For the General Employees' and Firefighter Plans beginning in 1992-93, the difference between the actual 
versus assumed total investment return is smoothed over a four-year period. 

 

The Schedule on page 157 demonstrates the effect of the actuarial smoothing on all three pension plans for 2002-03 
and the five prior years, as well as reflecting the portion of the actuarial gain/(losses) to be distributed in future 
years resulting from current and past years experience. 



CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
GENERAL EMPLOYEES' POOLED PENSION PORTFOLIO
SUMMARY OF TARGET / ACTUAL ASSET ALLOCATION

 Policy Targets   Actual Asset Allocations 

9/91 - 9/94 - 3/99 - 9/00 - 6/03 to
3/91 9/94  3/99  9/00  6/03  Present 9/01 9/02 9/03

Equity 48.0 % 56.0 % 62.0 % 50.0 % 56.0 % 54.0 % 32.7 % 50.3 % 56.7 %
S&P 500 (index) 15.5 16.0 10.0
Large Cap (index) 10.0 9.0 5.6 9.0 10.0
Large Cap Value (index) 5.0  
Large Cap Value (active) 12.5 12.0 12.0 5.0 10.0 11.0 5.2 8.7 9.8
Large Cap Growth (active) 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 5.6 9.0 10.0
Medium Cap Value (active) 10.0 10.0 7.0 9.0 7.0 6.0 5.9 6.8 7.7
Small Cap Growth (active) 8.0 8.0 7.0 6.0 3.1 6.2 7.6
International (active) 8.0 15.0 13.0 12.0 12.0 7.3 10.6 11.6

Bonds 40.0 32.0 30.0 43.0 (1) 38.0 (1) 40.0 (1) 60.8 42.2 36.0
Short-term (1-3 yrs.) (2) 10.0 8.0 25.2 3.0 1.3
Govt/Corp 20.0 16.0 23.0 35.0 30.0 30.0 27.7 31.0 27.2
Mortgages 10.0 8.0 7.0 8.0 8.0 10.0 7.9 8.2 7.5
Convertibles

Real Estate 12.0 12.0 8.0 7.0 6.0 6.0 6.3 7.3 6.9
Open-ended
Closed-ended 12.0 12.0 8.0 2.2 2.6 1.8
REIT 7.0 6.0 6.0 4.1 4.7 5.1

Cash 0.2 0.2 0.4
Short-Term 0.2 0.2 0.4

Total 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

Notes:
(1) Excludes the short-term bond portfolio.
(2) This portfolio was established in March 1999 to be a funding vehicle for GE employees converting their accrued benefits to the new DC plan. 
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
FIREFIGHTER POOLED PENSION PORTFOLIO

SUMMARY OF TARGET / ACTUAL ASSET ALLOCATION

 Policy Targets   Actual Asset Allocations 

9/91 - 9/94 - 3/99 -   6/03 To
9/90 3/91 9/94  3/99  6/03 Present 9/01 9/02 9/03

Equity 48.0 % 48.0 % 48.0 % 50.0 % 55.0 % 58.0 % 43.5 % 49.9 % 56.0 %
S&P 500 (index) 15.5 15.5 14.0 10.0 4.0 4.0 3.1 3.4 3.7
Large Cap Value (index) 2.0 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.8
Large Cap Value (active) 12.5 12.5 12.0 14.0 7.0 8.0 6.2 6.2 6.8
Large Cap Growth 10.0 10.0 12.0 11.0 8.0 9.0 5.4 7.4 8.0
Medium Cap Growth (index) 7.0 7.0 3.9 6.4 7.8
Medium Cap Value (active) 10.0 10.0 10.0 15.0 8.0 8.0 9.9 7.7 8.4
Small Cap Growth (active) 10.0 11.0 5.7 9.3 11.1
International (active) 9.0 9.0 7.5 7.8 8.4

Bonds 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 38.0 35.0 47.0 40.1 34.4
Short-term (1-3 yrs.) 10.0 10.0 10.0
Govt/Corp 20.0 20.0 20.0 30.0 30.0 27.0 36.4 31.8 26.8
Mortgages 7.5 10.0 10.0 10.0 8.0 8.0 10.6 8.3 7.5
Convertibles 2.5

Real Estate 12.0 12.0 12.0 10.0 7.0 7.0 9.3 9.7 9.3
Open-ended
Closed-ended 12.0 12.0 12.0 10.0 1.7 2.2 1.4
REIT 7.0 7.0 7.6 7.5 7.9

Cash 0.2 0.3 0.3
Short-Term 0.2 0.3 0.3

Total 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

ALL SERIES
2003-2032

Governmental Activities

Conroy Road Republic Drive
Community Special Tax Increment Capital Improvement

Fiscal Redevelopment Assessment Revenue Ref. Revenue Wastewater (1)
Year Agency Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Revenue Bonds

2004 2,790,437 $            2,842,190 $            3,334,594 $            8,562,360 $            15,143,852 $          
2005 2,790,372 2,280,690 3,332,894 8,518,981 15,520,687 
2006 2,789,350 2,283,840 3,333,994 8,476,176 15,547,056 
2007 2,782,086 2,284,790 3,334,244 8,434,721 15,563,447 
2008 2,786,015 2,283,540 3,335,056 5,276,341 15,558,598 
2009 2,771,705 2,280,090 3,331,806 5,237,960 15,604,979 
2010 2,774,252 2,284,440 3,333,081 5,169,874 15,626,640 
2011 2,773,618 2,281,040 3,330,444 5,088,242 15,632,859 
2012 1,135,461 2,282,390 3,333,756 5,015,777 15,659,372 
2013 1,127,555 2,280,550 3,335,356 4,925,326 15,680,819 
2014 1,127,005 2,280,520 3,334,156 4,852,680 15,715,424 
2015 1,128,393 2,282,010 3,334,344 3,288,390 15,797,561 
2016 1,131,515 2,279,730 3,334,662 3,287,121 4,592,670 
2017 1,126,125 2,283,680 3,334,856 6,685,360 - 
2018 - 2,283,280 3,334,669 8,470,478 - 
2019 - 2,283,530 3,333,844 8,463,353 - 
2020 - 2,284,140 3,332,125 8,451,728 - 
2021 - 2,284,820 3,334,256 8,453,097 - 
2022 - 2,280,280 3,334,725 8,447,354 - 
2023 - 2,280,520 3,333,625 7,372,297 - 
2024 - 2,279,960 3,332,737 4,481,353 - 
2025 - 2,283,310 3,335,025 4,359,973 - 
2026 - 2,279,990 - 4,238,593 - 
2027 - - - 4,117,213 - 
2028 - - - 3,995,833 - 
2029 - - - 3,874,453 - 
2030 - - - 3,753,073 - 
2031 - - - 3,631,693 - 
2032 - - - 3,200,313 - 

29,033,889 $          53,049,330 $          73,344,249 $          168,130,113 $        191,643,964 $        

 

Notes:
(1) For the Series 1997A Bonds, interest was computed at 2.422%, which is the CPI-U used for October 1, 2003

payment and assumed spreads as follows:  1.17% (2003); 1.19% (2004); 1.21% (2005);
1.23% (2006) and 1.25% (2007).  The Muni CPIs maturing on October 15, 2015 are assumed to be remarketed 
on October 1, 2007 at a spread of 1.25%.  This resulted in estimated rates of 3.592% to 3.672%.

(2) Orange County Civic Facilities Authority Fund.

Primary Government

Business-type 
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Component Unit

Activities

Civic Total
Parking Facilities Principal & Interest
Revenue Total Authority Reporting 
Bonds Principal & Interest Bonds (2) Entity

2,210,560 $            34,883,993 $                 528,300 $                  35,412,293 $                 
2,206,688 34,650,312 523,488 35,173,800 
2,203,535 34,633,951 522,426 35,156,377 
2,200,745 34,600,033 315,812 34,915,845 
2,197,946 31,437,496 313,938 31,751,434 
2,194,747 31,421,287 311,050 31,732,337 
2,190,750 31,379,037 192,150 31,571,187 
2,191,375 31,297,578 - 31,297,578 
2,187,250 29,614,006 - 29,614,006 
2,183,250 29,532,856 - 29,532,856 

- 27,309,785 - 27,309,785 
- 25,830,698 - 25,830,698 
- 14,625,698 - 14,625,698 
- 13,430,021 - 13,430,021 
- 14,088,427 - 14,088,427 
- 14,080,727 - 14,080,727 
- 14,067,993 - 14,067,993 
- 14,072,173 - 14,072,173 
- 14,062,359 - 14,062,359 
- 12,986,442 - 12,986,442 
- 10,094,050 - 10,094,050 
- 9,978,308 - 9,978,308 
- 6,518,583 - 6,518,583 
- 4,117,213 - 4,117,213 
- 3,995,833 - 3,995,833 
- 3,874,453 - 3,874,453 
- 3,753,073 - 3,753,073 
- 3,631,693 - 3,631,693 
- 3,200,313 - 3,200,313 

21,966,846 $          537,168,391 $               2,707,164 $               539,875,555 $               

        -159-



CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE REFUNDING AND REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 2002
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 4.000 238,596 $             225,095 $             675,000 $           1,138,691 $        
2005 3.000 225,096 214,595 700,000 1,139,691 
2006 2.750 214,596 204,627 725,000 1,144,223 
2007 3.200 204,627 192,787 740,000 1,137,414 
2008 3.500 192,787 179,312 770,000 1,142,099 
2009 3.625 179,312 164,993 790,000 1,134,305 
2010 3.875 164,993 149,009 825,000 1,139,002 
2011 4.000 149,009 131,909 855,000 1,135,918 
2012 4.125 131,909 113,552 890,000 1,135,461 
2013 4.250 113,553 94,002 920,000 1,127,555 
2014 4.375 94,003 73,002 960,000 1,127,005 
2015 4.500 73,003 50,390 1,005,000 1,128,393 
2016 4.600 50,390 26,125 1,055,000 1,131,515 
2017 4.750 26,125 - 1,100,000 1,126,125 

2,057,999 $          1,819,398 $          12,010,000 $      15,887,397 $      
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS - SERIES 1993
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 5.500 305,585 $             276,161 $             1,070,000 $          1,651,746 $          
2005 5.600 276,160 244,521 1,130,000 1,650,681 
2006 5.700 244,521 210,606 1,190,000 1,645,127 
2007 5.800 210,606 174,066 1,260,000 1,644,672 
2008 5.875 174,066 134,850 1,335,000 1,643,916 
2009 6.000 134,850 92,550 1,410,000 1,637,400 
2010 6.000 92,550 47,700 1,495,000 1,635,250 
2011 6.000 47,700 - 1,590,000 1,637,700 

1,486,038 $          1,180,454 $          10,480,000 $        13,146,492 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
REPUBLIC DRIVE (UNIVERSAL BOULEVARD)

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS - SERIES 2002
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due April 1 Service

2004 2.000 999,797 $             999,797 $             1,335,000 $          3,334,594 $       
2005 2.125 986,447 986,447 1,360,000 3,332,894 
2006 2.500 971,997 971,997 1,390,000 3,333,994 
2007 2.750 954,622 954,622 1,425,000 3,334,244 
2008 5.000 935,028 935,028 1,465,000 3,335,056 
2009 3.500 898,403 898,403 1,535,000 3,331,806 
2010 3.625 871,541 871,540 1,590,000 3,333,081 
2011 3.750 842,722 842,722 1,645,000 3,330,444 
2012 4.000 811,878 811,878 1,710,000 3,333,756 
2013 4.000 777,678 777,678 1,780,000 3,335,356 
2014 5.125 742,078 742,078 1,850,000 3,334,156 
2015 5.125 694,672 694,672 1,945,000 3,334,344 
2016 5.125 644,831 644,831 2,045,000 3,334,662 
2017 5.125 592,428 592,428 2,150,000 3,334,856 
2018 5.125 537,334 537,335 2,260,000 3,334,669 
2019 5.125 479,422 479,422 2,375,000 3,333,844 
2020 5.125 418,562 418,563 2,495,000 3,332,125 
2021 5.125 354,628 354,628 2,625,000 3,334,256 
2022 4.750 287,362 287,363 2,760,000 3,334,725 
2023 4.875 221,812 221,813 2,890,000 3,333,625 
2024 4.875 151,369 151,368 3,030,000 3,332,737 
2025 4.875 77,512 77,513 3,180,000 3,335,025 

14,252,123 $        14,252,126 $        44,840,000 $        73,344,249 $     
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CONROY ROAD SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS - SERIES 1998A

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due November 1 Due May 1 Due May 1 Service

2004 (1) 805,345 $                  805,345 $             - $                         1,610,690 $       
2005 5.500 805,345 805,345 670,000 2,280,690 
2006 5.500 786,920 786,920 710,000 2,283,840 
2007 5.500 767,395 767,395 750,000 2,284,790 
2008 5.500 746,770 746,770 790,000 2,283,540 
2009 5.500 725,045 725,045 830,000 2,280,090 
2010 5.500 702,220 702,220 880,000 2,284,440 
2011 5.800 678,020 678,020 925,000 2,281,040 
2012 5.800 651,195 651,195 980,000 2,282,390 
2013 5.800 622,775 622,775 1,035,000 2,280,550 
2014 5.800 592,760 592,760 1,095,000 2,280,520 
2015 5.800 561,005 561,005 1,160,000 2,282,010 
2016 5.800 527,365 527,365 1,225,000 2,279,730 
2017 5.800 491,840 491,840 1,300,000 2,283,680 
2018 5.800 454,140 454,140 1,375,000 2,283,280 
2019 5.800 414,265 414,265 1,455,000 2,283,530 
2020 5.800 372,070 372,070 1,540,000 2,284,140 
2021 5.800 327,410 327,410 1,630,000 2,284,820 
2022 5.800 280,140 280,140 1,720,000 2,280,280 
2023 5.800 230,260 230,260 1,820,000 2,280,520 
2024 5.800 177,480 177,480 1,925,000 2,279,960 
2025 5.800 121,655 121,655 2,040,000 2,283,310 
2026 5.800 62,495 62,495 2,155,000 2,279,990 

11,903,915 $             11,903,915 $        28,010,000 $        51,817,830 $     

Note:

(1)    Interest is paid at 5.50% on $4,630,000 of bonds and 5.80% on $23,380,000 of bonds for an average
         interest rate of 5.75%.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CONROY ROAD SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS - SERIES 1998B

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due November 1 Due May 1 Due November 1 (1) Service

2004 5.250 31,500 $                   - $                         1,200,000 $                 1,231,500 $       

Note:

(1)    The Series 1998B Bonds are subject to Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption prior to maturity if there
         is a deposit of Prepayments or Pledged Impact Fee Revenues into the 1998B Prepayment Subaccount
         of the 1998 Redemption Account.  During the 2002/2003 fiscal year, $25,000 of the Series 1998B
         Bonds were redeemed.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING SPECIAL REVENUE BONDS-SERIES 1998A

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

             

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate -% Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 5.000 1,285,826 $          1,218,201 $          2,705,000 $          5,209,027 $          
2005 5.500 1,218,202 1,140,101 2,840,000 5,198,303 
2006 5.750 1,140,102 1,053,995 2,995,000 5,189,097 
2007 5.750 1,053,995 963,001 3,165,000 5,181,996 
2008 4.350 963,002 959,412 165,000 2,087,414 
2009 4.400 959,413 955,672 170,000 2,085,085 
2010 4.400 955,673 951,822 175,000 2,082,495 
2011 4.500 951,823 947,547 190,000 2,089,370 
2012 4.600 947,548 943,062 195,000 2,085,610 
2013 4.700 943,063 938,245 205,000 2,086,308 
2014 4.800 938,245 933,085 215,000 2,086,330 
2015 4.900 933,085 927,572 225,000 2,085,657 
2016 4.900 927,573 921,815 235,000 2,084,388 
2017 4.900 921,815 915,812 245,000 2,082,627 
2018 5.000 915,813 773,312 5,700,000 7,389,125 
2019 5.000 773,313 623,687 5,985,000 7,382,000 
2020 5.000 623,688 466,687 6,280,000 7,370,375 
2021 4.750 466,688 310,056 6,595,000 7,371,744 
2022 4.750 310,057 145,944 6,910,000 7,366,001 
2023 4.750 145,944 -                            6,145,000 6,290,944 

17,374,868 $        16,089,028 $        51,340,000 $        84,803,896 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE BONDS-SERIES 1998B

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

             

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate -% Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 4.000 362,966 $             332,767 $             1,510,000 $          2,205,733 $          
2005 4.100 332,766 301,812 1,510,000 2,144,578 
2006 4.130 301,811 270,668 1,510,000 2,082,479 
2007 4.200 270,667 238,958 1,510,000 2,019,625 
2008 4.250 238,957 206,870 1,510,000 1,955,827 
2009 4.300 206,870 174,405 1,510,000 1,891,275 
2010 4.380 174,405 141,374 1,510,000 1,825,779 
2011 4.500 141,373 107,399 1,510,000 1,758,772 
2012 4.600 107,398 72,669 1,510,000 1,690,067 
2013 4.630 72,668 37,750 1,510,000 1,620,418 
2014 5.000 37,750 -                            1,510,000 1,547,750 

2,247,631 $          1,884,672 $          16,610,000 $        20,742,303 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE BONDS-SERIES 2002

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

             

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate -% Due October 1 Due April 1 Due April 1 Service

2004 (1) 573,800 $             573,800 $             - $                         1,147,600 $          
2005 (1) 588,050 588,050 - 1,176,100 
2006 (1) 602,300 602,300 - 1,204,600 
2007 (1) 616,550 616,550 - 1,233,100 
2008 (1) 616,550 616,550 - 1,233,100 
2009 (1) 630,800 630,800 - 1,261,600 
2010 (1) 630,800 630,800 - 1,261,600 
2011 (1) 620,050 620,050 - 1,240,100 
2012 (1) 620,050 620,050 - 1,240,100 
2013 (1) 609,300 609,300 - 1,218,600 
2014 (1) 609,300 609,300 - 1,218,600 
2015 (1) 601,366 601,367 - 1,202,733 
2016 (1) 601,366 601,367 - 1,202,733 
2017 (1) 601,366 601,367 3,400,000 4,602,733 
2018 (1) 540,676 540,677 - 1,081,353 
2019 (1) 540,676 540,677 - 1,081,353 
2020 (1) 540,676 540,677 - 1,081,353 
2021 (1) 540,676 540,677 - 1,081,353 
2022 (1) 540,676 540,677 - 1,081,353 
2023 (1) 540,676 540,677 - 1,081,353 
2024 (1) 540,676 540,677 3,400,000 4,481,353 
2025 (1) 479,986 479,987 3,400,000 4,359,973 
2026 (1) 419,296 419,297 3,400,000 4,238,593 
2027 (1) 358,606 358,607 3,400,000 4,117,213 
2028 (1) 297,916 297,917 3,400,000 3,995,833 
2029 (1) 237,226 237,227 3,400,000 3,874,453 
2030 (1) 176,536 176,537 3,400,000 3,753,073 
2031 (1) 115,846 115,847 3,400,000 3,631,693 
2032 (1) 55,156 55,157 3,090,000 3,200,313 

14,446,948 $        14,446,966 $        33,690,000 $        62,583,914 $        

(1)  The Series 2002 Bonds are Designated Maturity Debt under the Covenant Ordinance.  There are seven initial maturities
(2004, 2005, 2006, 2008, 2010, 2012, and 2014) which are anticipated to be rolled over, with final maturities in the years
shown above.  The initial maturities bear interest at 3% (2004 through 2008, inclusive) and 4% (2010 through 2014, inclusive).
The interest rates for all subsequent maturities is estimated at 3.57%, which is based upon the yield of the 10 year general
obligation note rated "AA" as published by Municipal Market Data, as of September 30, 2003.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 1993B

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 4.600 700,457 $             640,428 $             2,610,000 $          3,950,885 $          
2005 4.700 640,427 576,390 2,725,000 3,941,817 
2006 4.800 576,390 507,750 2,860,000 3,944,140 
2007 4.900 507,750 434,250 3,000,000 3,942,000 
2008 5.000 434,250 355,750 3,140,000 3,930,000 
2009 5.000 355,750 273,250 3,300,000 3,929,000 
2010 5.000 273,250 186,625 3,465,000 3,924,875 
2011 5.000 186,625 95,500 3,645,000 3,927,125 
2012 5.000 95,500 - 3,820,000 3,915,500 

3,770,399 $          3,069,943 $          28,565,000 $        35,405,342 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 1997A

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Estimated Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Interest Due October 1 Service

2004 (1) 1,384,205 1,760,000 $          3,144,205 $              
2005 (1) 1,320,986 1,900,000 3,220,986 
2006 (1) 1,252,358 2,050,000 3,302,358 
2007 (1) 1,177,902 2,215,000 3,392,902 
2008 (1) 1,097,010 2,390,000 3,487,010 
2009 (1) 1,009,249 2,585,000 (2) 3,594,249 
2010 (1) 914,328 2,790,000 (2) 3,704,328 
2011 (1) 811,879 3,015,000 (2) 3,826,879 
2012 (1) 701,168 3,255,000 (2) 3,956,168 
2013 (1) 581,645 3,515,000 (2) 4,096,645 
2014 (1) 452,574 3,795,000 (2) 4,247,574 
2015 (1) 313,221 4,100,000 (2) 4,413,221 
2016 (1) 162,670 4,430,000 (2) 4,592,670 

11,179,195 $        37,800,000 $        48,979,195 $            

Note:

(1) Interest was computed at 2.422%, which is the CPI-U used for the October 1 payment and assumed Spreads
as follows:  1.19% (2004); 1.21% (2005); 1.23% (2006) and 1.25% (2007).  The Muni CPIs maturing on
October 1, 2015 are assumed to be remarketed on October 1, 2007 at a Spread of 1.25%. This resulted in
estimated rates of 3.592% to 3.672%.

(2) Mandatory redemption of the term bonds.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
WASTEWATER SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 1997C

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 4.450 810,494 $             762,768 $             2,145,000 $          3,718,262 $          
2005 4.450 762,767 712,817 2,245,000 3,720,584 
2006 4.500 712,816 659,942 2,350,000 3,722,758 
2007 4.550 659,941 604,204 2,450,000 3,714,145 
2008 4.600 604,204 545,209 2,565,000 3,714,413 
2009 4.750 545,209 481,440 2,685,000 3,711,649 
2010 4.850 481,440 413,298 2,810,000 3,704,738 
2011 4.900 413,297 341,145 2,945,000 3,699,442 
2012 5.000 341,145 263,896 3,090,000 3,695,041 
2013 5.100 263,895 181,148 3,245,000 3,690,043 
2014 5.150 181,147 93,340 3,410,000 3,684,487 
2015 5.200 93,340 -                     3,590,000 3,683,340 

5,869,695 $          5,059,207 $          33,530,000 $        44,458,902 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
WASTEWATER SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 2002A

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 3.000 1,007,875 $          972,625 $             2,350,000 $          4,330,500 $          
2005 3.500 972,625 924,675 2,740,000 4,637,300 
2006 3.000 924,675 883,125 2,770,000 4,577,800 
2007 3.000 883,125 841,275 2,790,000 4,514,400 
2008 5.000 841,275 770,900 2,815,000 4,427,175 
2009 3.250 770,900 724,181 2,875,000 4,370,081 
2010 3.500 724,180 673,519 2,895,000 4,292,699 
2011 5.000 673,519 600,894 2,905,000 4,179,413 
2012 5.000 600,894 526,769 2,965,000 4,092,663 
2013 5.250 526,769 342,362 7,025,000 7,894,131 
2014 5.250 342,363 151,000 7,290,000 7,783,363 
2015 4.000 151,000 - 7,550,000 7,701,000 

8,419,200 $          7,411,325 $          46,970,000 $        62,800,525 $        

        -171-



CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
PARKING FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 1994A

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 4.50 418,235 $             387,325 $             1,405,000 $          2,210,560 $          
2005 4.60 387,325 354,363 1,465,000 2,206,688 
2006 4.70 354,362 319,173 1,530,000 2,203,535 
2007 4.80 319,172 281,573 1,600,000 2,200,745 
2008 4.90 281,573 241,373 1,675,000 2,197,946 
2009 5.00 241,372 198,375 1,755,000 2,194,747 
2010 5.00 198,375 152,375 1,840,000 2,190,750 
2011 5.00 152,375 104,000 1,935,000 2,191,375 
2012 5.00 104,000 53,250 2,030,000 2,187,250 
2013 5.00 53,250 - 2,130,000 2,183,250 

2,510,039 $          2,091,807 $          17,365,000 $        21,966,846 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CIVIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY

COMPONENT UNIT
CIVIC FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS - SERIES l973
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due April 1 Service

2004 6.75 55,350 $               55,350 $               210,000 $             320,700 $           
2005 6.75 48,263 48,263 220,000 316,526 
2006 6.75 40,838 40,838 235,000 316,676 
2007 6.75 32,906 32,906 250,000 315,812 
2008 6.75 24,469 24,469 265,000 313,938 
2009 6.75 15,525 15,525 280,000 311,050 
2010 6.75 6,075 6,075 180,000 192,150 

223,426 $             223,426 $             1,640,000 $          2,086,852 $        
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
CIVIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY

COMPONENT UNIT
GUARANTEED ENTITLEMENT  REVENUE BONDS - SERIES 1976

STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Year Ending Interest Interest Principal Total Debt
September 30 Rate - % Due October 1 Due April 1 Due October 1 Service

2004 5.75 16,388 $               11,212 $               180,000 $             207,600 $             
2005 5.75 11,212 5,750 190,000 206,962 
2006 5.75 5,750 - 200,000 205,750 

33,350 $               16,962 $               570,000 $             620,312 $             
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
 

The Statistical Schedules differ from other financial presentations because they generally disclose more 
than one fiscal year and may present non-accounting data such as social and economic data and financial 
trends of the City. 

 

LIST OF SCHEDULES 
 

General Governmental Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

General Governmental Revenues and Other Financing Sources  

Tax Revenue by Source 

Property Tax Levies and Collections  

Assessed and Estimated Value of Taxable Property Net of Exemptions  

Property Tax Rates and Tax Levies-Direct and Overlapping Governments  

Special Assessment Collections  

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita 

Legal Debt Limit  

Computation of Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Debt 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded 

 Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures and Other Uses 

Schedules of Revenue Bond Coverage:  

 Primary Government:   

• Community Redevelopment Agency Tax Increment Bonds 

• Wastewater System Fund 

• Parking System Fund 

• Schedule of Internal Loan Fund Revenue Dilution Test 

Component Unit: 

• Civic Facilities Authority 

Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits 

Demographic Statistics 

Schedule of Ten Largest Taxpayers 

Schedule of Largest Employers 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 

Cross-Reference Index 





1999  (5) % 1998 % 1997 % 1996 % 1995 % 1994 %

14,812,121 $   5.7 16,044,656 $    7.0 11,258,316 $    4.9 10,256,474 $    5.2 9,786,789 $      5.1 10,006,499 $    5.4

- -         - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

18,122,277 6.9 - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

- -         - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

- -         - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

4,130,597 1.6 5,268,062 2.3 7,209,826 3.1 6,491,412 3.3 9,507,976 5.0 6,045,922 3.3

- -         2,369,195 1.0 2,580,033 1.1 2,526,668 1.3 2,398,043 1.3 2,385,042 1.3

- -         - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

25,260,431 9.6 30,790,010 13.4 20,586,243 9.0 19,930,643 10.1 19,554,639 10.3 19,746,420 10.7

10,056,012 3.8 8,591,514 3.7 15,773,523 6.9 15,172,133 7.7 14,802,466 7.8 14,411,721 7.8

- -         459,176 0.2 375,961 0.2 392,276 0.2 373,973 0.2 351,329 0.2

- -         - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

62,585,587 23.9 61,553,821 26.9 56,467,482 24.7 51,922,447 26.6 49,707,462 25.8 46,973,879 25.3

- -         6,141,916 2.7 5,759,492 2.5 5,750,468 2.9 4,936,962 2.6 5,063,598 2.7

- -         2,357,557 1.0 2,084,745 0.9 1,970,053 1.0 2,014,540 1.1 1,820,455 1.0

30,257,756 11.6 28,936,723 12.6 27,016,312 11.8 25,714,668 13.0 23,999,306 12.6 23,085,919 12.5

- -         - -         - -         - -         - -         - -         

6,209,967 2.4 3,460,977 1.5 3,578,205 1.6 2,828,071 1.4 2,912,538 1.5 5,191,965 2.8
  

50,273,820 19.2 36,664,387 16.0 37,634,450 16.4 24,915,469 12.6 24,534,037 12.9 22,291,791 12.0

15,303,618 5.8 11,465,960 5.0 22,839,159 10.0 13,084,973 6.6 11,850,039 6.2 15,427,788 8.3

17,324,604 6.6 7,311,125 3.2 10,617,807 4.6 10,729,555 5.4 9,674,299 5.1 7,705,389 4.2

7,496,283 2.9 8,136,588 3.5 5,382,430 2.3 5,417,881 2.7 4,700,854 2.5 4,660,579 2.5

261,833,073 $ 100.0 229,551,667 $  100.0 229,163,984 $  100.0 197,103,191 $  100.0 190,753,923 $  100.0 185,168,296 $  100.0
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2003 % 2002 % 2001 % 2000 %

Property Taxes 71,676,754 $    26.1 68,620,497 $    23.9 68,984,150 $    26.3 57,589,699 $    23.7

Franchise Taxes 22,643,185 8.2 21,725,686 7.6 20,732,223 7.9 18,625,360 7.7

Special Assessments 657,176 0.2 609,552 0.2 227,691 0.1 158,058 0.1

Licenses, Permits and Fees 28,899,263 10.5 26,702,092 9.3 32,909,193 12.6 27,836,526 11.5

Fines and Forfeitures 2,178,656 0.8 2,448,643 0.9 2,407,844 0.9 2,422,399 1.0

Earnings on Investments 5,193,503 1.9 3,749,630 1.3 12,304,595 4.7 8,999,745 3.7

Contributions Orlando Utilities Comm. 32,992,766 12.0 28,203,772 9.9 32,091,000 12.3 30,787,504 12.7

Intergovernmental Revenue 42,868,565 15.6 40,514,890 14.2 41,696,891 15.9 40,123,794 16.5

Miscellaneous 14,134,065 5.1 10,323,238 3.6 11,514,552 4.4 7,556,219 3.1

Transfers from Other Funds 52,761,514 19.2 50,484,915 17.7 36,354,415 13.9 42,528,879 17.5

Proceeds of Bonds and Loans 1,081,799 0.4 32,580,095 11.4 2,490,064 1.0 6,176,913 2.5

Total 275,087,246 $  100.0 285,963,010 $  100.0 261,712,618 $  100.0 242,805,096 $  100.0

Note:
(1) This schedule includes revenues of the General Fund, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Fund after elimination of transfers

between these funds.
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1999 % 1998 % 1997 % 1996 % 1995 % 1994 %

53,911,928 $   20.3 51,285,519 $    20.6 47,183,672 $    17.8 45,086,129 $    22.7 44,830,696 $    22.6 42,770,637 $    21.1

17,654,965 6.6 16,748,733 6.7 15,256,556 5.7 15,088,673 7.6 14,305,818 7.2 13,743,111 6.8

103,245 -         197,260 0.1 2,991,079 1.1 - -         - -         - -         

31,076,493 11.7 27,029,085 10.8 23,210,218 8.8 20,289,136 10.2 18,276,037 9.2 17,684,099 8.7

2,251,575 0.8 2,208,143 0.9 1,711,216 0.6 2,018,899 1.0 1,805,903 0.9 1,605,267 0.8

5,724,206 2.2 9,551,111 3.8 6,167,491 2.3 5,171,705 2.6 5,164,807 2.6 3,886,980 1.9

31,350,352 11.8 29,459,375 11.8 26,418,723 9.9 25,112,000 12.6 19,431,000 9.8 18,215,000 9.0
  

41,403,512 15.6 35,803,181 14.4 50,800,936 19.2 37,273,300 18.7 43,890,704 22.2 33,644,922 16.6

10,783,255 4.1 8,249,782 3.3 10,742,718 4.0 8,968,142 4.5 5,151,239 2.6 4,555,235 2.2

38,600,689 14.5 39,574,952 15.9 31,605,862 11.9 30,729,135 15.5 34,970,558 17.7 29,660,101 14.6

33,024,324 12.4 29,267,847 11.7 49,839,028 18.7 9,100,000 4.6 10,238,860 5.2 37,092,810 18.3

265,884,544 $ 100.0 249,374,988 $  100.0 265,927,499 $  100.0 198,837,119 $  100.0 198,065,622 $  100.0 202,858,162 $  100.0
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Property Taxes
Utilities

Fiscal Debt Franchise Services Total
Year Operations Service Taxes Taxes (1) Taxes

1994 42,770,637 $    - $                     13,743,111 $    21,631,723 $    78,145,471 $    

1995 44,830,696 -                        14,305,818 22,606,912 81,743,426 

1996 45,086,129 -                        15,088,673 25,543,013 85,717,815 

1997 47,183,672 -                        15,256,556 27,975,875 90,416,103 

1998 51,285,519 - 16,748,733 29,397,561 97,431,813 

1999 53,911,928 - 17,654,965 29,881,899 101,448,792 

2000 57,589,699 - 18,625,360 33,478,429 109,693,488 

2001 68,984,150 -                        20,732,223 32,689,117 122,405,490 

2002 68,620,497 -                        21,725,686 40,004,796 130,350,979 

2003 71,676,754 -                        22,643,185 38,462,398 132,782,337 

Note:

(1) Utilities Service Tax revenues are received and placed in a trust fund.  This tax is pledged as collateral for the Wastewater
System and Capital Improvement  bonds outstanding.

TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE
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Distribution Total Collection Delinquent
Fiscal Total
Year Levy Operations Debt Operations Debt Operations Debt

1994 45,378,340 45,378,340  $   -  $                  44,955,362  $   -  $                  422,978  $      -  $                  
 

1995 47,182,573 47,182,573 - 46,698,978 - 483,595 - 

1996 48,061,479 48,061,479 - 47,454,089 - 607,390 - 

1997 49,722,008 49,722,008 - 49,214,383 - 507,625 - 

1998 54,701,322 54,701,322 - 54,182,556 - 518,766 - 

1999 57,160,583 57,160,583 - 56,460,746 - 699,837 - 

2000 60,936,713 60,936,713 - 59,371,156 - 1,565,557 - 

2001 70,660,149 70,660,149 - 69,899,791 - 760,358 - 

2002 72,798,658 72,798,658 - 72,194,379 - 604,279 - 

2003 76,097,392 76,097,392 - 75,096,841 - 1,000,551 - 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
REAL AND BUSINESS TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

NET OF EXEMPTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Real Property Personal Property Totals
Fiscal Assessed Estimated (2) Assessed Estimated (2) Assessed Estimated

Year (1) Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Value Value

1994 6,303,653,388  $  7,416,062,809  $  1,304,176,981  $  2,371,230,711  $  7,607,830,369  $  8,606,225,741  $  

1995 6,402,373,781 7,532,204,448 1,361,552,611 2,475,550,202 7,763,926,392 8,804,548,465 

1996 6,609,441,679 7,775,813,740 1,423,718,337 2,588,578,795 8,033,160,016 9,120,851,693 

1997 7,228,749,511 8,504,411,189 1,548,308,496 2,815,106,356 8,777,058,007 10,002,345,019 

1998 7,681,067,592 9,036,550,108 1,582,582,525 2,877,422,773 9,263,650,117 10,477,643,886 

1999 8,246,105,113 9,701,300,133 1,614,560,062 2,935,563,749 9,860,665,175 11,104,239,406 

2000 9,406,864,847 11,066,899,820 2,007,656,526 3,650,284,593 11,414,521,373 12,960,868,256 

2001 10,401,534,347 12,237,099,232 2,181,941,004 3,967,165,462 12,583,475,351 14,261,327,384 

2002 11,106,733,091 13,066,744,813 2,053,283,775 3,733,243,227 13,160,016,866 16,799,988,040 

2003 12,116,917,563 14,255,197,133 1,997,916,571 3,632,575,584 14,114,834,134 17,887,772,717 

Source: Orange County Appraiser

(1) Assessed values are determined as of January 1 for each fiscal year.
(2) Real Property is assessed at 85% of estimated market value and Personal Property assessments at 55%.

                                                                                                             -182-





 CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collections  
Fiscal Liens and  Unpaid
Year Assessed Adjustments Balances

1994 42,313 $               16,983 $               25,330 $               

1995 - - - 
 

1996 38,315 38,315 - 

1997 47,909 46,759 1,150 

1998 84,544 48,356 36,188 

1999 158,533 87,245 71,288 

2000 288,908 206,851 82,057 

2001 269,711 176,005 93,706 

2002 160,449 20,143 140,306 

2003 210,193 49,069 161,124 

Total 1,300,875 $          689,726 $              611,149 $             
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                 CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
                 RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

                 TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
                 LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Less Net
Taxable Gross Debt Net Debt

Fiscal Assessed Bonded Service Bonded Per
Year Population Value Debt Funds Debt Capita

1994 170,780 7,607,830,369$  - $               - $               - $               - $           

1995 170,307 7,763,926,392 - - - - 

1996 173,122 8,033,160,016 - - - - 

1997 176,373 8,777,058,007 - - - - 

1998 180,462 9,263,650,117 - - - - 

1999 184,639 9,860,665,175 - - - - 

2000 188,013 11,414,521,373 - - - - 

2001 192,152 12,583,475,351 - - - - 

2002 194,913 13,160,016,866 - - - - 

2003 201,923 14,114,834,134 - - - - 
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
LEGAL DEBT LIMIT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Neither the City of Orlando charter or code nor the Florida State Statutes limits the amount of debt
the City of Orlando can issue.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA        
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING        

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT        
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003       

Applicable to
City of Orlando

Bonds
Governmental Unit Outstanding Percent (1) Amount

Library District
Refunding  Bonds - Series 1993 3,450,000 $          23.02% 794,190 $           

Total Overlapping Debt 794,190 

Total Direct Debt (2)  - 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 794,190 $           

Notes:

(1) Ratio of assessed Valuation of Taxable property in overlapping unit to that within the City of Orlando.

(2) The City of Orlando does not currently have any general obligation debt.
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       CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
       RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES

       FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL
       GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (1)

       LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of
Debt Service Requirements Total Debt Service

Fiscal General To General
Year Principal Interest Total Expenditures Expenditures

1994 -  $                -  $                -  $                185,168,296  $   -  $                      

1995 - - - 190,753,923 -                          

1996 - - - 197,103,191 -                          

1997 - - - 229,163,984 -                          

1998 - - - 229,551,667 -                          

1999 - - - 261,833,073 -                          

2000 - - - 258,881,807 -                          

2001 - - - 270,483,552 -                          

2002 - - - 303,163,563 -                          

2003 - - - 300,798,607 -                          

Note:

(1) This schedule includes expenditures and other uses of the General Fund, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects
after elimination of transfers between these funds.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Revenue
Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal For Debt
Year Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1994 5,107,698  $     640,000  $        1,818,142  $     2,458,142  $     2.08 

1995 4,854,428 990,000 1,779,576 2,769,576 1.75 

1996 4,956,695 1,030,000 1,734,317 2,764,317 1.79 

1997 4,986,610 1,070,000 1,684,726 2,754,726 1.81  

1998 6,166,797 1,130,000 1,629,171 2,759,171 2.24 

1999 6,696,256 1,185,000 1,575,567 2,760,567 2.43 

2000 6,969,843 1,245,000 1,503,975 2,748,975 2.54 

2001 7,990,792 1,305,000 1,433,714 2,738,714 2.92 

2002 8,971,158 1,375,000 1,310,012 2,685,012 3.34 

2003 9,455,284 1,505,000 1,088,361 2,593,361 3.65 
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REPUBLIC DRIVE (UNIVERSAL BOULEVARD) DISTRICT
TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Revenue
Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal For Debt
Year Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

2003 6,984,001  $     780,000  $        2,202,354  $     2,982,354  $     2.34 

(1) FY 2003 was the first year of the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF PARKING SYSTEM REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Revenue
Parking Occupational Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Revenue License For Debt
Year Available (1) Fees (2) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1994 (3) 3,335,039  $     355,000  $        3,690,039  $     205,457  $    1,150,110  $ 1,355,567  $ 2.72 

1995 4,517,479 1,500,000 6,017,479 605,000 1,312,558 1,917,558 3.14 

1996 (4) 4,733,479 1,500,000 6,233,479 1,106,965 1,439,779 2,546,744 2.45 

1997 4,422,005 1,500,000 5,922,005 1,253,195 1,594,710 2,847,905 2.08 

1998 5,014,724 1,500,000 6,514,724 1,863,819 1,465,756 3,329,575 1.96 

1999 4,071,099 1,500,000 5,571,099 1,432,597 1,469,340 2,901,937 1.92 

2000 4,883,533 1,500,000 6,383,533 1,479,325 1,409,009 2,888,334 2.21 

2001 4,505,388 1,500,000 6,005,388 2,460,577 1,302,411 3,762,988 1.60 

2002 3,999,948 1,500,000 5,499,948 1,621,248 1,175,539 2,796,787 1.97 

2003 4,207,130 1,500,000 5,707,130 1,699,434 1,304,814 3,004,248 1.90 

Notes:

(1) Includes the net revenue of the Parking System operations and the net Parking Fines revenue.
 

(2) During the fiscal year the first $1,500,000 of Occupational License revenue is temporarily committed to the parking issue.
Once the monthly 1/6 interest/1/12 principal payment (from parking) in combination with the Occupational License reserve equal the
maximum annual debt service, then each parking payment creates an equal release of the Occupational License reserve.  Assuming
adequate parkingrevenues, the total Occupational License reserve is released.  The $355,000 represents the revenues received after the
date of sale.Most occupational licenses are paid in advance and recognized in October for the year then starting.

(3) The Parking Fund issued Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds, 1994 Series A (new) and Parking Facilities Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds
1994 Series B to refund the September 1, 1982 Public Facilities Refunding and Improvement Bonds on February 16, 1994.

(4) Reflects the initial year debt service on the Courthouse Garage construction loan.
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                 CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
                 SCHEDULE OF INTERNAL LOAN FUND REVENUE DILUTION TEST

             LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Utilities
General Services

Fund Tax Fund Revenue
Covenant Covenant Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Revenues Revenues For Debt Dilution 
Year Available (1) Available (1) Service Principal Interest Total Test (2)

1994 85,929,519  $   21,631,723  $   107,561,242  $  5,260,000  $  5,762,624  $  11,022,624  $  10.25 %
1995 91,924,239 22,606,912 114,531,151 5,335,000 6,370,093 11,705,093 10.22 
1996 105,370,372 24,825,948 130,196,320 2,015,000 6,090,219 8,105,219 6.23 
1997 110,386,406 27,975,875 138,362,281 2,100,000 6,117,777 8,217,777 5.94 
1998 123,551,261 29,397,561 152,948,822 2,200,000 5,038,188 7,238,188 4.73 
1999 134,880,130 29,881,899 164,762,029 2,305,000 5,940,275 8,245,275 5.00 
2000 135,127,826 33,478,429 168,606,255 4,035,000 6,317,357 10,352,357 6.14 
2001 145,792,157 32,689,117 178,481,274 4,165,000 5,667,950 9,832,950 5.51 
2002 130,714,036 40,004,796 170,718,832 4,295,000 4,757,555 9,052,555 5.30 
2003 152,143,469 38,462,398 190,605,867 4,445,000 5,583,130 10,028,130 5.26 

Notes:

(1) Has a junior lien pledge on non ad-valorem (property tax) revenues subordinate to essential service plus other revenues paid into the trust.
Program includes fixed and variable rate elements.  Variable rate elements only have to amortize over the last one-third of its nominal term
(normally 30 years).  The ability to use other revenues (paid into the trust) allows loans to other funds to reduce the debt service required 
to be paid from the Pledged revenues but does not alter the dilution test. 

(2) New borrowing are subject to a 25% maximum dilution limit, comparing the level of debt service to the covenant revenues.
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
COMPONENT UNIT

CIVIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY FUND

Schedule of Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Bonds, Series 1976, Coverage              
Last Ten Fiscal Years              

Revenue
Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal For Debt
Year Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1994 1,969,237  $   100,000  $      103,035  $      203,035  $      9.70 
1995 1,969,237 105,000 97,500 202,500  9.72 
1996 1,969,237 110,000 91,695 201,695  9.76 
1997 1,969,237 115,000 85,562 200,562 9.82 
1998 1,969,237 125,000 78,963 203,963 9.65 
1999 1,969,237 130,000 71,820 201,820 9.76 
2000 1,969,237 140,000 64,125 204,125 9.65 
2001 1,969,237 150,000 55,860 205,860 9.57 
2002 1,969,237 160,000 47,025 207,025 9.51 
2003 1,969,237 170,000 37,620 207,620 9.48 

Schedule of Civic Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 1973, Coverage              
Component Unit              

Last Ten Fiscal Years              

Revenue
Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal For Debt
Year Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1994 1,696,718  $   115,000  $      213,300  $      328,300  $      5.17 
1995 538,298 120,000 205,538 325,538 1.65 
1996 429,230 130,000 197,438 327,438 1.31 
1997 434,708 135,000 188,662 323,662 1.34 
1998 394,381 145,000 179,550 324,550 1.22 
1999 1,540,136 155,000 169,762 324,762 4.74 
2000 679,604 165,000 159,300 324,300 2.10 
2001 690,874 175,000 148,162 323,162 2.14 
2002 687,322 185,000 136,350 321,350 2.14 
2003 652,776 195,000 123,862 318,862 2.05 
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Commercial Residential Bank Deposits
Construction (1) Construction (1) (in thousands)

Number Number Savings and
Year of Units Value of Units Value Banks(2) Loans(2)

1994 79 155,651,971  $   483 87,801,835  $     5,838,769 1,099,281  $       

1995 126 48,560,559 563 124,726,053 6,157,364 832,699 

1996 124 159,851,882 589 114,302,239 6,463,102 867,052 

1997 202 381,141,048 513 124,047,529 6,775,685 809,448 

1998 148 223,707,358 664 164,034,950 7,729,844 783,683 

1999 208 233,950,548 606 139,665,167 7,982,503 782,683 

2000 291 251,447,775 698 157,672,661 8,250,069 811,514 

2001 315 312,027,682 751 169,785,251 9,520,361 806,225 

2002 261 138,893,660 813 232,632,069 8,250,399 790,921 

2003 143 168,197,908 1,458 305,851,751 9,365,587 656,540 

Notes: 

(1) Figures are for fiscal year October 1 - September 30.

(2) FDIC: Http://www.fdic.gov
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Percentage

 1. Universal City Fla. Partners Entertainment 1,025,778,398 $     7.28 %

 2. Highwood/Florida Holdings LP Developer 164,271,822 1.16

 3. Forbes Taubman Orlando Developer 120,364,124 0.85

 4. ZML-Sun Center L L P Developer 99,650,845 0.71

 5. MMM Lakewood, Ltd. Developer 85,242,168 0.60

 6. Orlando Outlet World Commercial 62,486,799 0.44

 7. U.S. Office Holdings Developer 56,883,119 0.40

 8. Orlando NTC Partners Developer 48,829,793 0.35

 9. Magnolia Associates Ltd. Commercial 45,864,877 0.32

10. Weingarten Nostat Inc. Commercial 45,081,241 0.32

Total Taxable Assessed Value of 10 Largest Taxpayers 1,754,453,186 12.43

Total Taxable Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers 12,360,380,948 87.57

Total Taxable Assessed Value of All Taxpayers 14,114,834,134 $   100.00 %
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CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF LARGEST EMPLOYERS IN THE ORLANDO 

METROPOLITAN STATISTICAL AREA (MSA)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Number of
Employer Type of Business Employees Percentage

 1. Walt Disney World Entertainment 53,000 6.13 %

 2. Orange County Public Schools Government 25,000 2.89

 3. Florida Hospital Health 12,808 1.48

4. Publix Super Markets, Inc. Service 12,600 1.46

5. Universal Studios Florida Entertainment 12,000 1.39

6. Orlando Regional Medical Center Health 12,000 1.39

 7. Wal Mart Service 11,600 1.34

 8. Orange County Government Government 10,356 1.20

 9. Seminole County Public Schools Government 8,824 1.02

10. Winn Dixie Super Markets, Inc. Service 8,025 0.93

11. Lockheed Martin Defense 7,500 0.87

12. Seminole County Government Government 7,456 0.86

Other Employees Various 682,925 79.04

Total 864,094 100.00 %

Source:  Economic Development Commission of Mid-Florida, Inc.
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   CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
   MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

   SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Date of Incorporation July 31, 1875

City Charter Adopted February 4, 1885

Form of Government Mayor/Council

Area of City 107 sq. miles
          

Miles of Streets, Sidewalks, and Bike Paths:
Streets - Paved 595 miles
Streets - Unpaved 2 miles
Streets - Brick 53 miles
Sidewalks 514 miles
Bikepaths 79.35 miles
Concrete 0.16 miles

Miles of Sewers:
Storm 286 miles
Sanitary 820 miles

Fire Protection:
Stations 14 
Employees - Sworn 447 
Employees - Civilian 58 

Police Protection:
Stations 1 
Special Teams' Offices and Substations 14 
Employees - Sworn Actual 698 
Employees - Reserves 27 
Employees - Civilian 290 
Vehicular Patrol Units - Patrol Cars 449 

Motor Cycles  35 
Other Vehicles 35 
Unmarked 196 

Horse Patrol 8 
Bicycle Patrol 72 

Electric Utility Customers:
Residential 93,550 
Commercial 15,208 

Recreation:
Park Acreage 2,973 
Parks 96 
Neighborhood Recreation Centers 15 
Senior Centers 2 
Swimming Pools 9 
Beach Facilities 1 
Boat Ramps 5 
Gymnasiums 5 
Golf Course 1 
Playgrounds 27 
Nature Parks 1 
Tennis Courts 37 
Volleyball Courts (Sand) 10 
Racketball Courts 6 
Basketball Courts 40 
Little League, Baseball/Softball Fields 33 
Soccer /Football Fields 11 
Track Fields 1 

Lakes 89 

        -199-



      CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA
      CROSS-REFERENCE INDEX

Required 
Supplement

Basic Information Combining
Financial OtherThan Financial Supplemental Statistical

Fund Title Statements MD&A Statements Information Information
Governmental Activities

Major Governmental Funds
General Fund 16-22 96 
Utilities Service Tax 16-22 97 
Gas Tax Revenue 16-22 98 
Transportation Impact Fees 16-22 99 
Community Redevelopment Agency 16-22 100 158, 160-164 189-190
Capital Improvement 16-22 110 165-167

Non-Major Funds
Other Govermental Funds: 106-109

Housing & Urban Development Grants 106-109, 111
State Housing Partnership Fund 106-109-112
Forfeitures Act 106-109, 113
H.P. Leu Gardens 106-109, 114
Cemetery 106-109
Police Camp 106-109
Narcoossee Road Construction 106-109, 116
Performing Arts and Education Center
    Construction 106-109, 117
Parks Initiative 106-109, 118

Internal Service Funds:
Fleet Management 120-127 140
Risk Management 120-127 141, 146-147
Project/Construction Management 120-127 142
Facilities Management 120-127 143
Internal Loan 120-127 144 193 
Labor Pool 120-127 145

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Wastewater System 24-31 135, 158, 168-171 191 
Orlando Centroplex 24-31 136 
Parking System 24-31 137, 159, 172 192 
Stormwater Utility 24-31 138 
Solid Waste Management 24-31 139 

Fiduciary Funds
Employee Retirement Funds 32-33 128-131
Agency Fund 32 132 
General Employees' Pension 101-102 128-131 148-150, 151, 154, 157
Firefighter Pension 101-102 128-131 148-150, 152, 155, 157
Police Pension 101-102 128-131 148-150, 153, 156, 157
Defined Contribution Plan Fund 128-131
Employees' Disability Income 128-131

Component Units
Downtown Development Board 34-35
Civic Facilities Authority 34-35 173-174 194 
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